
 
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE  Contact:  Jane Creer  

Committee Administrator 
  Direct : 020-8379- 4093 
Wednesday, 24th June, 2009 at 7.30 pm  Tel: 020-8379-1000 

 Ext:  4093  
 Fax: 020-8379-3177 
 Textphone: 020 8379 4419 
 E-mail:  jane.creer@enfield.gov.uk 

              

Venue:  Conference Room 
The Civic Centre, Silver Street, 
Enfield, Middlesex, EN1 3XA 

 Council website: www.enfield.gov.uk 

 
 
MEMBERS 
Councillors : Alan Barker (Chairman), Don Delman (Vice-Chairman), 
Jayne Buckland, Lee Chamberlain, Andreas Constantinides, Annette Dreblow, 
Peter Fallart, Jonas Hall, Ahmet Hasan, Chris Joannides, Donald McGowan, 
Toby Simon, Dino Lemonides, Kieran McGregor and Anne-Marie Pearce 
 

 
N.B. Members of the public are advised that the order of business on 

the agenda may be altered at the discretion of the Committee. 
 

Any member of the public interested in attending the meeting should 
ensure that they arrive promptly at 7.15pm. 

 
 

AGENDA – PART 1 
 
1. WELCOME AND LEGAL STATEMENT   
 
2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
3. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  (Pages 1 - 2) 
 
 Members of the Planning Committee are invited to identify any personal or 

prejudicial interests relevant to items on the agenda. Please refer to the 
guidance note attached to the agenda.  
 

4. MINUTES  (Pages 3 - 10) 
 
 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 20 May 2009. 

 

Public Document Pack



5. REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION  (Pages 11 - 166) 

 
 5.1 Applications dealt with under delegated powers. 

 (A copy is available in the Members’ Library) 
 
5.2 Planning applications and applications to display advertisements. 
 
5.3 Appeal information 
 Section 1 : New Town Planning Application Appeals 
 Section 2 : Decisions on Town Planning Application Appeals 
 

6. ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE CONSERVATION ADVISORY GROUP  (Pages 
167 - 174) 

 
 To receive the report of the Director of Place Shaping and Enterprise (Report 

No. 25), summarising the contribution made by the Conservation Advisory 
Group (CAG) over the 2008/09 municipal year. 

INF 
 

7. ADDITIONAL MEETING OF PLANNING COMMITTEE   
 
 To agree to an additional meeting of the Planning Committee to consider the 

Southgate College planning application. 
 

8. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
 If necessary, to consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the 

Local Government Act 1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting 
for any items of business moved to part 2 of the agenda on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in those 
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local 
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006).  
(There is no part 2 agenda) 
 

 
 
 



 

DEC/JB/JK/1 

YES 

NO 

NO 

YES 

NO 

DECLARING INTERESTS FLOWCHART - QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF 
 
 

What matters are being 
discussed at the meeting? 

Do any relate to my interests whether 
already registered or not? 

Is a particular matter close to me? 
 
Does it affect: 
� me or my partner; 
� my relatives or their partners; 
� my friends or close associates; 
� either me, my family or close associates: 

• job and business; 

• employers, firms you or they are a partner of and companies 
you or they are a Director of 

• or them to any position; 

• corporate bodies in which you or they have a shareholding of 
more than £25,000 (nominal value); 

� my entries in the register of interests 
 
more than it would affect the majority of people in the ward affected by the 
decision, or in the authority’s area or constituency? 

P
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
in

te
re

s
t 

You can participate 
in the meeting and 
vote 

Does the matter affect your financial interests or 
relate to a licensing, planning or other regulatory 
matter; and 
Would a member of the public (knowing the 
relevant facts) reasonably think that your 
personal interest was so significant that it would 
prejudice your judgement of public interest? 

P
re

ju
d

ic
ia

l 
in

te
re

s
t 

NO 

YES 

YES 

You may have a 
personal interest 

Note: If in any doubt about a potential interest, members are asked to seek advice from 
Democratic Services in advance of the meeting. 

 

Do the public have speaking rights at the meeting?  
 

You should declare the interest and 
withdraw from the meeting by leaving 
the room.  You cannot speak or vote 
on the matter and must not seek to 
improperly influence the decision. 

You should declare the interest but can remain 
in the meeting to speak.  Once you have 
finished speaking (or the meeting decides you 
have finished - if earlier) you must withdraw from 
the meeting by leaving the room.   

YES 

You may have a 
prejudicial interest 

Declare your personal interest in the matter.  You can 
remain in meeting, speak and vote unless the interest is 
also prejudicial; or 
If your interest arises solely from your membership of, 
or position of control or management on any other 
public body or body to which you were nominated by 
the authority e.g. Governing Body, ALMO, you only 
need declare your personal interest if and when you 
speak on the matter, again providing it is not prejudicial. 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20.5.2009 

 

- 8 - 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 
HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 20 MAY 2009 

 
COUNCILLORS  
 
PRESENT Alan Barker, Dogan Delman, Jayne Buckland, Lee 

Chamberlain, Andreas Constantinides, Annette Dreblow, 
Peter Fallart, Jonas Hall, Ahmet Hasan, Chris Joannides, 
Toby Simon, Dino Lemonides and Kieran McGregor 

 
ABSENT Donald McGowan and Anne-Marie Pearce 

 
OFFICERS: Bob Ayton (Schools Organisation & Development), Linda 

Dalton (Legal rep), Andy Higham (Area Planning Manager), 
Mike Hoyland (Senior Transport Planner) and Aled Richards 
(Head of Development Services), Jane Creer (Secretary) and 
Ann Redondo (Secretary) 

  
 
Also Attending: Councillor Henry Pipe. 

Approximately 15 members of the public, applicants, agents 
and their representatives. 
Peter Fisk, Vice Chairman of the Conservation Advisory 
Group. 

 
10   
WELCOME AND LEGAL STATEMENT  
 
NOTED 
 
1.  The Chairman welcomed attendees to the Planning Committee and 
welcomed Councillor Lee Chamberlain as a new member of the committee.  
 
2.  Farewells were given to Councillors Chaudhury Anwar and Terence Smith, 
who were no longer members of the committee following restructuring agreed 
at Annual Council. 
 
3.  The new Vice Chairman of Planning Committee was Councillor Delman. 
 
4.  The Chairman introduced Linda Dalton, Legal representative, who read a 
statement regarding the order and conduct of the meeting. 
 
11   
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
NOTED that apologies for absence were received from Councillors McGowan 
and Pearce, and apologies for lateness from Councillor Buckland. 
 
12   
DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  

Agenda Item 4Page 3



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20.5.2009 

 

- 9 - 

 
NOTED that there were no declarations of interest in respect of items on the 
agenda. 
 
13   
MINUTES  
 
AGREED that the minutes of the meeting held on 30 April 2009 be confirmed 
as a correct record. 
 
14   
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION  
 
RECEIVED the report of the Assistant Director, Planning and Environmental 
Protection (Report No. 7). 
 
15   
APPLICATIONS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED AUTHORITY  
 
NOTED that a copy of those applications dealt with under delegated powers 
was available in the Members’ Library and via the Council’s website. 
 
16   
ORDER OF AGENDA  
 
AGREED that the order of the agenda be varied to accommodate the 
members of the public in attendance at the meeting. The minutes follow the 
order of the meeting. 
 
17   
TP/09/0423  -  90-120, GREEN LANES, LONDON, N13 5UP  
 
NOTED 
 
1.  The Planning Officer’s introduction to the application, highlighting the key 
issues, planning history, and improvements made to the design.  
 
2.  The arrival of Councillor Buckland at the meeting during the introductory 
slide presentation but before the Planning Officer’s update. 
 
3.  The Metropolitan Police raised no objection in terms of “Secure by Design”. 
 
4.  The statement of Councillor Henry Pipe, Palmers Green Ward Councillor, 
including: 

a.  He welcomed the principle of such development of the site, but had 
three outstanding objections. 
b.  Concerns regarding the height of the central section and associated 
massing and lack of architectural detail to break up the frontage. 

Page 4



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20.5.2009 

 

- 10 - 

c.  Concerns regarding the extent of affordable housing and quality of 
accommodation. 
d.  Concerns regarding the design at this strategically important site, 
and that the opportunity should be taken to set a benchmark standard 
for other redevelopment in the area around the North Circular Road. 
e.  He would not like to see low quality commercial units dominated by 
take-aways and requested that the proportion of A1 use be increased. 
f.  He sympathised with concerns about amenity space provision. 
 

5.  The response of Mr Innes Gray, of Consensus Planning, representing their 
client Beechwood Homes as the applicant, including: 

a.  This application was the result of 12 months’ discussion with officers 
and the scheme had been modified to reduce its scale and massing 
and had now been recommended for approval. 
b.  The existing buildings were unsightly and poor quality and this 
development would enhance the area with shops and residential 
provision and make a significant improvement to the environment. 
c.  No letters of objection had been sent in relation to this application. 
d.  If permission was granted, development would begin immediately, 
and St. Pancas Housing Association would take possession as soon as 
the housing was completed. 
e.  Benefits included improvements to the adjacent brook and highway 
safety and a contribution for improvements to Broomfield Park. 
f.  Housing would be affordable and suitable for first time buyers. 
 

6.  Lengthy general discussion by the committee with issues raised including: 
a.  Suggestions that the bland frontage be improved for example with 
juliet balconies or bands of coloured brickwork, and that Condition 1 be 
amended in relation to external finishing materials. 
b.  The decking/communal amenity area should be actively managed 
and play apparatus should be provided for young children. 
c.  Members’ continuing concerns regarding height and massing, 
density, acceptability of the amenity space and that Broomfield Park 
was not conveniently accessible. 
d.  Concern about access to the car park area, and that gating may 
prevent fly-tipping. 
e.  Car parking provision would be inadequate for the residences and 
shops. 
f.  Discussion on further restriction to use of retail units. 
g.  Comments that the development would be an improvement to 
current buildings on the site and would provide much needed 
accommodation. 
 

7.  Officers’ clarification of changes made to the scheme to address previous 
reasons for refusal of permission, and confirmation of the unit sizes and 
tenure. 
 
8.  Officers’ advice regarding housing allocation, with the recommendation to 
be amended to confirm nomination rights to affordable housing. 
 

Page 5



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20.5.2009 

 

- 11 - 

9.  Confirmation that there had been dialogue with the Council’s Place 
Shaping team, who had no objection in principle. 
 
10.  Councillor Simon’s proposal, seconded by Councillor Constantinides, that 
the officers’ recommendation be accepted, subject to amendments to 
landscaping conditions to be specific about provision and management of play 
area on amenity deck. 
 
11.  Advice from the Legal representative on voting eligibility and procedures. 
 
12. Votes were recorded on request as follows: 
For:  Councillors Simon, Buckland, Constantinides, Hasan, Lemonides, 
McGregor and Fallart. 
Against:  Councillors Delman, Chamberlain, Dreblow, Hall and Joannides. 
 
 
AGREED that subject to the completion of a Section 106 Agreement 
regarding a financial contribution towards education and play and open space 
provision together with the provision of 30 affordable units on site and 
nomination rights for this Council, the Assistant Director (Environment & 
Streetscene) be authorised to grant planning permission subject to the 
conditions set out in the report and amendments below. 
 
Amendment to Conditions 
 
Condition 1 - The development shall not commence until details of the 
external finishing materials to be used have been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The submitted details shall include 
materials which articulate the development to mitigate its overall mass and the 
development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details.  
 
Reason: To ensure the external appearance of the development is articulated 
and detailed to result in an acceptable external appearance. 
 
Condition 22 - The development shall not commence until a landscaping 
scheme has been submitted to and approved by the local planning authority. 
The landscaping scheme shall include details of trees, shrubs and grass to be 
planted on the site, including adequate replacement of the existing trees 
together with details of a dedicated play area for children on the amenity deck. 
The planting scheme shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details in the first planting season after completion or occupation of the 
development whichever is the sooner. Any planting which dies, becomes 
severely damaged or diseased within five years of planting shall be replaced 
with new planting in accordance with the approved details. The play area shall 
be provided and available for use prior to the occupation of the first residential 
unit.  
 
Reason:  
(i) To ensure the development provides an acceptable residential environment 
for future occupiers and a satisfactory appearance within the street scene; 

Page 6



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20.5.2009 

 

- 12 - 

(ii) to ensure that the development does not prejudice highway safety. 
 
Condition 33 - Prior to the commencement of the development a management 
plan, including long term design objectives, management responsibilities and 
maintenance schedules for all landscaped areas (except privately owned 
domestic gardens) and the approved play area, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The management plan 
shall be carried out as approved. 
 
Reason:  
(i) To protect the natural features and character of the area and identify 
opportunities for enhancement of biodiversity in line with national planning 
policy in PPS9; 
(ii) to ensure the approved landscaping and play area is maintained to the 
highest standards for the benefit of residents; 
(II) to ensure the approved landscaping and play area contribute to an 
acceptable provision of amenity space 
 
New Condition 
 
Condition 36 – Details of a means of securing access to the car park and 
service area shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning 
authority. The approved details shall be implemented prior to the occupation 
of the development and thereafter retained in such form unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the local planning authority. 
 
Reason:  
(i) In order to ensure parking and servicing is retained at all times for the 
benefit of occupiers of the development; 
(ii) in the interests of highway safety. 
 
18   
AD/09/0020  -  CENTRAL LIBRARY, CECIL ROAD, ENFIELD, EN2 6TG  
 
NOTED the Planning officer’s confirmation that permission was sought for the 
installation of display advertisements until the end of April 2010, that no signs 
would be illuminated, and that displays would feature white text on a blue 
background. 
 
AGREED that advertisement consent be granted subject to the condition set 
out in the report for the reasons set out in the report. 
 
19   
LBE/09/0008  -  ELDON JUNIOR SCHOOL, ELDON ROAD, EDMONTON, 
N9 8LG  
 
AGREED that in accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town and Country 
Planning (General) Regulations 1992, planning permission be deemed to be 
granted, subject to the conditions set out in the report, for the reasons set out 
in the report. 

Page 7



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20.5.2009 

 

- 13 - 

 
20   
LBE/09/0009  -  ELDON JUNIOR SCHOOL, ELDON ROAD, EDMONTON, 
N9 8LG  
 
NOTED the School Organisation and Development Officer’s clarification of the 
centre’s use and purpose, and that there would be no loss of children’s 
useable playing field space. 
 
AGREED that in accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town and Country 
Planning (General) Regulations 1992, planning permission be deemed to be 
granted, subject to the conditions set out in the report and amendment below, 
for the reasons set out in the report. 
 
Amendment to Condition 5 
 
That this permission shall be for a limited period expiring no later than three 
years from the date of this decision notice after which the building hereby 
permitted shall be removed and the land reinstated to its original grassed 
condition to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
21   
TP/09/0436  -  87, ULLESWATER ROAD, LONDON, N14 7BN  
 
NOTED 
 
1.  Planning officers had received revised plans, which gave a more accurate 
reflection of building heights, but the recommendation remained the same. 
 
2.  Receipt of an additional letter of objection from local residents read out by 
the Planning officer, including that the proposed building was out of keeping 
with the street in design and scale and materials, there could not be side 
access and the proposal was unbuildable. 
 
3.  Under ‘Background’ on page 57 the report should read “…the Inspector 
when dismissing the appeal on TP/07/2194”. 
 
4.  Officers’ confirmation that the Planning Inspector had no objection to the 
infilling of the space 
 
5.  Members’ concerns in relation to storage and trundling facilities for wheelie 
bins, and that developers should be advised of the Council’s waste and 
recycling policy for future applications. 
 
6.  Officers’ advice in relation to removal of previous environmentally friendly 
features. 
 
AGREED that planning permission be granted subject to the conditions set 
out in the report for the reasons set out in the report. 

Page 8



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20.5.2009 

 

- 14 - 

 
22   
TP/93/0350/VAR5  -  23, THE GRANGEWAY, LONDON, N21 2HB  
 
NOTED 
 
1.  Officers’ clarification of the proposal and the planning history and context 
of the original approved opening hours. 
 
2.  Receipt of two additional letters of objection from local residents, including 
concerns about current late operating hours and associated noise and activity. 
 
3.  Officers’ confirmation that original planning approval conditions did not 
state when the operation should cease activity, and acceptance of this 
proposal and condition would allow greater control by the planning authority 
and use of appropriate enforcement measures. 
 
AGREED that planning permission be granted subject to the condition set out 
in the report for the reasons set out in the report. 
 
23   
TOWN PLANNING APPEALS  
 
NOTED 
 
1.  The Committee noted the information on town planning application appeals 
received from 11/04/2009 to 06/05/2009. 
 
2.  Officers were evaluating the yearly figures and would present a report to 
Committee in July. 
 
24   
ADDITIONAL MEETING OF PLANNING COMMITTEE  
 
AGREED to defer this item to the next meeting. 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 - 1 - 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2009/2010 - REPORT NO.  24 
 
COMMITTEE: 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 
24.06.2009 
 
REPORT OF: 
Assistant Director, Planning 
and Environmental Protection 
 
Contact Officer: 
David Snell Tel: 020 8379 3838 
Andy Higham Tel: 020 8379 3848 
 
 
5.1 APPLICATIONS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS INF 
 
5.1.1 In accordance with delegated powers, 278 applications were determined 

between 08/05/2009 and 11/06/2009, of which 218 were granted and 60 
refused. 

 
5.1.2 A Schedule of Decisions is available in the Members’ Library. 
 

Background Papers 
 
To be found on files indicated in Schedule. 

 
5.2 PLANNING APPLICATIONS AND APPLICATIONS TO DISPLAY 

ADVERTISEMENTS  DEC 
 
 On the Schedules attached to this report I set out my recommendations in 

respect of planning applications and applications to display advertisements.  I 
also set out in respect of each application a summary of any representations 
received and any later observations will be reported verbally at your meeting. 

 
 Background Papers 
 

(1) Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 states that the 
Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the 
development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any 
other material considerations.  Section 54A of that Act, as inserted by 
the Planning and Compensation Act 1991, states that where in making 
any determination under the Planning Acts, regard is to be had to the 
development, the determination shall be made in accordance with the 
plan unless the material considerations indicate otherwise.  The 
development plan for the London Borough of Enfield is the Unitary 
Development Plan (UDP). 

 
(2) Other background papers are those contained within the file, the 

reference number of which is given in the heading to each application. 
 
 
 

ITEM 5 AGENDA - PART 1 

SUBJECT - 
 

MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS 

Agenda Item 5Page 11



 - 2 - 

 
5.3 APPEAL INFORMATION  INF 
 
 The Schedule attached to the report lists information on town planning 

application appeals received between 07/05/2009 and 09/06/2009 and also 
contains information on decisions taken during this period. 

Page 12



LIST OF APPLICATIONS 
TO BE DETERMINED 

BY THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 
ON: 24th June 2009 

 1

 

 

APPLICATION: LBE/09/0010 RECOMMENDATION: Granted Subject to 
Conditions 

WARD: Southgate Green 
Location: 124 & 132, WATERFALL ROAD, LONDON, N14 7JN 
PAGE No:  18  
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 

APPLICATION: LBE/09/0011 RECOMMENDATION: Granted Subject to 
Conditions 

WARD: Haselbury 
Location: MILLFIELD THEATRE, SILVER STREET, LONDON, N18 1NB 
PAGE No:  25  
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 

APPLICATION: LBE/09/0013 RECOMMENDATION: Granted Subject to 
Conditions 

WARD: Bush Hill Park 
Location: FIRS FARM PRIMARY SCHOOL, RAYLEIGH ROAD, LONDON, N13 5QP 
PAGE No:  32  
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 

APPLICATION: LBE/09/0014 RECOMMENDATION: Granted Subject to 
Conditions 

WARD: Bush Hill Park 
Location: FIRS FARM PRIMARY SCHOOL, RAYLEIGH ROAD, LONDON, N13 5QP 
PAGE No:  39  
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 

APPLICATION: LBE/09/0015 RECOMMENDATION: Granted Subject to 
Conditions 

WARD: Southgate 
Location: EVERSLEY INFANT SCHOOL, CHASEVILLE PARK ROAD, LONDON, 
N21 1PD 
PAGE No:  47  
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 

APPLICATION: LBE/09/0016 RECOMMENDATION: Granted Subject to 
Conditions 

WARD: Southbury 
Location: SUFFOLKS PRIMARY SCHOOL, BRICK LANE, ENFIELD, EN1 3PU 
PAGE No:  54  
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 

Page 13



APPLICATION: LBE/09/0017 RECOMMENDATION: Granted Subject to 
Conditions 

WARD: Turkey Street 
Location: HONILANDS PRIMARY SCHOOL, LOVELL ROAD, ENFIELD, EN1 4RE 
PAGE No:  60  
 

 
APPLICATION: LBC/08/0024 RECOMMENDATION: Granted Subject to 

Conditions 
WARD: Palmers Green 
Location: TRURO HOUSE, 176, GREEN LANES, LONDON, N13 5UJ 
PAGE No:  67  
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 

APPLICATION: TP/08/2244 RECOMMENDATION: Granted with conditions 
subject to GOL 

WARD: Palmers Green 
Location: TRURO HOUSE, 176, GREEN LANES, LONDON, N13 5UJ 
PAGE No:  87  
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 

APPLICATION: TP/07/1029 RECOMMENDATION: Refusal 
WARD: Edmonton Green 
Location: 4, PRINCES ROAD, LONDON, N18 3PR 
PAGE No:  121  
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 

APPLICATION: TP/09/0435 RECOMMENDATION: Granted Subject to 
Conditions 

WARD: Lower Edmonton 
Location: 21, EXETER ROAD, LONDON, N9 0JY 
PAGE No:  133  
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 

APPLICATION: TP/09/0604 RECOMMENDATION: Granted Subject to 
Conditions 

WARD: Highlands 
Location: CHASE FARM HOSPITAL, THE RIDGEWAY, ENFIELD, MIDDLESEX, 
EN2 8JR 
PAGE No:  138  
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 

APPLICATION: TP/09/0664 RECOMMENDATION: Granted Subject to 
Conditions 

WARD: Ponders End 

Page 14



Location: ALMA PRIMARY SCHOOL, ALMA ROAD, ENFIELD, MIDDLESEX, EN3 
4UQ 
PAGE No:  144  
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING COMMITTEE - 24th June 2009 

Page 17



© Crown copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Enfield.
License No LA086363, 2003

Scale 1/1250 Date 10/6/2009

LBE/09/0010

Centre = 529479 E 193366 N

Page 18



Application Number:  LBE/09/0010 Ward:  Southgate Green       
Date of Registration:  27th April 2009 

Contact:  Jennie Rebairo 3822 

Location: 124 & 132, WATERFALL ROAD, LONDON, N14 7JN 

Proposal: Widening of existing vehicular access to both properties. 

Applicant Name & Address:

Hussain Rab, Highway Services - LBE 
ENFIELD COUNCIL DEPOT 
7, MELLING DRIVE 
ENFIELD
EN1 4BS 

Agent Name & Address:

RECOMMENDATION: That in accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning 
(General) Regulations 1992, planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED subject to the 
following conditions: 

1. C51A Time Limited Permission 

Site and Surroundings 

Waterfall Road is an adopted highway linking Southgate Green to Arnos Grove and New 
Southgate. The properties fronting the road on its southern side are semi-detached residential 
dwellings with existing vehicular crossovers. On the opposite side of the roads is the Walker 
Cricket Ground and Cemetery both of which lies within the Southgate Green Conservation Area. 

Proposal

Permission is sought for the widening of vehicle crossings at Nos. 124 and 132, Waterfall Road. 
In both cases, the proposal involves an increase of 1.8m in width, of the existing crossover giving 
a total shared crossing width of 5.2m. 

Relevant History 

Planning permission has recently been granted in February 2009 for the widening of existing 
crossovers at Nos 104,106,134 and 144, Waterfall Road (ref: TP/08/2223) 

Consultations

Public

Consultation letters were sent to 5 neighbouring properties. No objections have been received.  

External: None 

Page 19



Internal

Transportation raises no objection. 

Relevant Policies 

London Plan

4B.8   Respect local context and character 

Unitary Development Plan Policies

(I)GD1  Regard to surroundings 
(I)GD2  Development to improve the environment 
(II)GD3  Aesthetic and functional design 
(II)GD8  Access and Servicing 
(II)T13   Creation or improvement of an access onto the public highway 
(II)T17  Give high priority to the needs of pedestrians. 

Other Material Considerations

Revised Technical Standards for Footway Crossovers 

Analysis 

Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Surrounding Area

The widening of the two existing crossovers will form part of a comprehensive program of street 
works incorporating the works previously approved under ref: LBE/08/2223. Consequently, it is 
considered that the resultant appearance will be fully integrated with the street scene and thus 
acceptable. It is also noted that the widening of the existing crossovers does not involve any loss 
of existing street trees. 

Impact on Highway Safety

The widening of the existing crossovers by 1.8 metres to create an overall width of 5.2 metres 
and enables cars to better access the existing forecourt which is used to provide off street 
parking. No objections are raised in terms of highway safety. 

Sustainable Design and Construction

Whilst improvements to drainage through the use of porous materials and soakaways can often 
be sought in cases involving new vehicle access and off street parking, both forecourts are 
already hard surfaced and thus, no improvement (if necessary) can be secured. 

Conclusion

In the light of the above it is recommended that consent be approved for the following reason: 

The proposed widening of the vehicle crossings will not give rise to conditions prejudicial to the 
free flow and safety of traffic on the adjoining highway and does not detract from the from the 
character of the immediate area nor unduly detract from the residential amenities of the 

Page 20



neighbouring occupiers having regard to Policies (I)GD1, (I)GD2, (II)GD3, (II)GD6 and (II)T13 of 
the Unitary Development Plan. 

Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



© Crown copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Enfield.
License No LA086363, 2003

Scale 1/1250 Date 10/6/2009

LBE/09/0011

Centre = 533000 E 192620 N

Page 25



Application Number:  LBE/09/0011 Ward:  Haselbury       
Date of Registration:  23rd April 2009 

Contact:  Rob Singleton 3837 

Location: MILLFIELD THEATRE, SILVER STREET, LONDON, N18 1NB 

Proposal: Change of use of former library space to Bar, bistro and function room. 

Applicant Name & Address:

Ms  Lorraine Cox, LB of Enfield Culteral Services 
London Borough of Enfield 
9th Floor, Civic Centre 
P.Box 58, Silver Street 
Enfield
Middx
EN1 3XJ 

Agent Name & Address:

Mr  Andrew Wood, Ingleton Wood 
10, Lake Meadows Business Park 
Woodbrook Crescent 
Billericay
Essex 
CM12 0EQ 

Recommendation: That in accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning 
(General) Regulations 1992, planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED subject to the 
following conditions: 

1. C19 Details of Refuse Storage & Recycling Facilities 

2. C20 Details of Fume Extraction 

3. C59 Cycle parking spaces 

4. Deliveries and collections to and from the premises shall only take place between the 
hours of 08.00 and 13.00 Monday to Saturday only.  

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of nearby residential properties. 

5. The premises shall only be open for business between the hours of 09.00 and 23.00 
Monday to Sunday (including bank holidays); and all activity associated with the use shall 
cease within 1 hour of the closing time specified above.  

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby residential 
properties.

6. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 
1987, or any amending Order, the premises shall only be used as a mixed use bar, bistro
and function room and shall not be used for any other purpose within Use Class A3, A4 
and D2 or for any other purpose.

Page 26



Reason: To prevent the introduction of a use that would give rise to conditions prejudicial 
to the character of the area, amenities of local residents and the free flow and safety of 
vehicles using the adjoining highways. 

7. The use of the premises hereby approved shall not commence until details of disabled 
parking and access have been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

Reason: To ensured safe and equitable access for disabled users. 

8. C51A Time Limited Permission 

Site and Surroundings 

The site comprises the former library premises within the Millfield Theatre complex. It is bounded 
by residential development to the east, the A406 North Circular Road to the south and west, and 
Silver Street to the north.  The main existing vehicle and pedestrian access to the building is from 
Silver Street, with primary access limited to an entrance in the north elevation. 

The premises, although not listed, are within the curtilage of Millfield House: a Grade II* Listed 
Building.  It should also be noted that the adjacent Gate House and boundary wall are also listed. 

Proposal

Permission is sought for the change of use of the former library to a bar/bistro/function area.  It is 
posited that the proposed mixed use would serve to enhance the viability of the centre while 
supporting the existing community function of the site.   

The proposal seeks to exploit the potential of the premises for continued daytime use in contrast 
to the sparse and predominantly evening function of the theatre area, through operating hours of
0900-2300 seven days per week (including bank holidays). As a result, the proposal would result 
in a net increase of 6 employees. 

While Millfield Theatre has a dedicated car parking facility accommodating a maximum of 36 cars, 
it is envisaged that the car park will only be open for public use during daylight hours, with access 
rescinded for evening performances.  No details of disabled access have been submitted with the 
scheme.

Associated alterations to the external appearance of the property to include the formation of a 
new entrance and canopy to the east elevation to provide direct access to the bar, bistro function 
room have been accepted in principle under ref: LBE/09/0006. 

Relevant Planning History 

LBE/85/0008 – the Theatre and Library were approved subject to conditions In April 1986 

Consultations

Public

Consultation letters were sent to 3 neighbouring properties. No  objections have been received.  

Page 27



External

Any reply from English Heritage will be reported at the meeting. 

Internal

Transportation raise no objections to the proposal. However, in the absence of details specifying 
disabled parking provision and cycle parking suggest a condition to secure the issues are 
addressed.

Relevant Policies 

London Plan

3A.17  Addressing the needs of London’s diverse population 
4B.5   Creating an inclusive environment 
4B.8    Respect local context and communities 

Unitary Development Plan

(I)GD1  Regard to surroundings 
(I)GD2  Development to improve the environment 
(II)GD3 Aesthetic and functional design 
(II)GD6  Traffic generation 
(II)GD8  Access & servicing 
(II)T16   Pedestrian and disabled access 
(II)C12  Maintenance of listed buildings in public and private ownership 
(II)C17  Development within the curtilage of a listed building 
(II)C18  Preservation of historic form character and use of listed buildings 
(I)CS1  Community services 
(II)CS1 To facilitate through the planning process the work of various  community services 
(II)CS2  To ensure development for community services complies with the 

Council’s environmental policies 
(II)CS3  Optimum use of land 

Local Development Framework: Preferred Options

The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires the Council to replace the UDP with a 
Local Development Framework (LDF). The LDF Core Strategy will set out the spatial vision and 
strategic objectives for the Borough. The Core Strategy is at an early stage in its adoption 
process. As this continues the weight given to it will grow and the relevant objectives are reported 
to demonstrate the degree to which the proposals are consistent with the emerging policy 
direction.

Core Policy 1:   Sustainable and efficient land use 
Core Policy 26: Leisure and culture 
Core Policy 27: Visitors and tourism 

Other Policy Considerations

PPS1:  Delivering Sustainable Communities 
PPG13:  Transport 
PPG15:  Planning and the Historic Environment 

Page 28



Analysis 

Principle of Development

The principle of development is considered to be acceptable as the intended mixed use of the 
former library area to provide a bar/bistro/function area is broadly compatible with the overarching 
and existing theatre use. It also forms a complementary relationship of function and use.  
Notwithstanding this point, the proposal seeks to more fully exploit the potential of the site and 
expand operation hours to capture formerly under-utilised daytime hours for community uses, 
enhancing the vitality and viability of the site as well as establishing a wider attraction for visitors 
and tourists to the area.

Noise and Disturbance

In light of the established use of the site relative to its proximity of the classified road and the 
significant separation afforded by this spacious 0.37ha plot to the nearest residential dwelling, it is 
considered that the relatively high levels of expected patronage resultant from a more intensive 
use of the property would not adversely impact upon the residential amenities of neighbouring 
properties having regard to Policies (I)GD1, (I)GD2 and (II)GD3 of the Unitary Development Plan. 

Parking and Access

The premises has designated parking facilities located to the west of the main building.  During 
daytime opening, it is envisaged that the existing provision of 36 spaces coupled with relatively 
good transport accessibility, would be sufficient to accommodate projected patronage and 
function of the site.  In the evenings the applicant has indicated that the car park will be closed for 
public use. While it is acknowledged that at maximum capacity, there is potential for 365 patrons. 
However, the proposal does not seek to alter existing arrangements, which in light of the existing 
theatre use, demonstrates that the resulting harm to the surrounding area would be negligible.  
Demand for parking can thus be acceptably accommodated onto the surrounding and largely 
unrestricted residential streets or indeed, deferred to public transport.  However, a condition to 
provide secured cycle parking provision to the site could only enhance its accessibility. 

Transportation concur with these observations and hence raise no objection.  It is noted, 
however, that details relating to disabled access to the premises have been omitted from the 
scheme, which in consideration of the admission that the public use of car parking in the evening 
is prohibited, raises concerns relating to disabled access at these times. To address this, a 
condition is recommended to secure necessary disabled parking provision. 

Conclusion

The proposed change of use of the former library area to a mixed use bar, bistro and function is 
compatible addition to the site, complementary to the primary theatre usage contributing 
positively to community services and visitor attraction, thus in light of the above, it is 
recommended that planning permission be approved for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed change of use of the former library building to bar, bistro and function room 
(mixed use class A3/A4/D2) actively contributes to community service provision and is 
complementary to the existing theatre use to create viable visitor and tourist attraction and 
thus is compliant with Policies (I)AR1, (II)CS1 and (II)CS2 of the Unitary Development 
Plan; Core Policies 1, 26 and 27 of the emerging Core Strategy of the Local Development 
Framework; and, 3A.17, 4B.5 and 4B.8 of the London Plan. 

Page 29



2. The proposed change of use of the former library to a bar, bistro and function room would 
be appropriately located and not give rise to conditions through an increase in noise and 
disturbance prejudicial to the amenities enjoyed by neighbouring residential properties in 
terms of noise and disturbance having regard to Policies (I)GD1, (I)GD2 and (II)GD1 of 
the Unitary Development Plan. 

3. The proposed change of use would not prejudice the provision of on-street parking, nor 
would it give rise to conditions prejudicial to the free flow and safety of traffic on the 
adjoining highways having regard to Policies (II)GD6 and (II)GD8 of the Unitary 
Development Plan, Policy 3C.23 of the London Plan and PPG13: Transport. 

Page 30



Page 31



© Crown copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Enfield.
License No LA086363, 2003

Scale 1/2500 Date 10/6/2009

LBE/09/0013

Centre = 532716 E 193369 N

Page 32



Application Number:  LBE/09/0013 Ward:  Bush Hill Park       
Date of Registration:  12th May 2009 

Contact:  Kate Perry 3846 

Location: FIRS FARM PRIMARY SCHOOL, RAYLEIGH ROAD, LONDON, N13 5QP 

Proposal: Installation of a temporary classroom building with access ramps to north east of site. 

Applicant Name & Address:

Director of Children Services 
CIVIC CENTRE 
SILVER STREET 
ENFIELD
MIDDLESEX 
EN1 3XA 

Agent Name & Address:

Mr  Joe Pellegrini, Architectural Services 
CIVIC CENTRE 
SILVER STREET 
ENFIELD
MIDDLESEX 
EN1 3XA 

Recommendation: In accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning (General) 
Regulations 1992, planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED subject to the following 
conditions:

1. C50 Limited Period Permission 

Site and Surroundings 

The application site is a Primary School situated within a predominantly residential area. 
Immediately to the north of the site are Firs Farm Playing Fields which are designated 
Metropolitan Open Land.  The School playing fields, located towards the southern end of the site, 
were designated Metropolitan Open Land in the 1997 UDP Interim Amendments. However, this 
designation lapsed when the Interim Amendment to the UDP where not saved. 

The School comprises a 2.98 hectare site and consists of part 2 storey, part single storey 
buildings and 5 existing temporary classrooms. The main vehicular and pedestrian access to the 
site is from Rayleigh Road with secondary pedestrian access from Harrington Terrace (Great 
Cambridge Road). 

Proposal

Permission is sought to install a temporary single storey classroom for a period of 18 months 
following the demolition of an existing temporary building. It is proposed to site the new building 
on a similar footprint to the existing structure albeit set slightly further in to the site adjacent to the 
main two storey school building. 

Page 33



Positioned a minimum of 5 metres from the eastern boundary of the site (to the rear of 69-72 
Harington Terrace), the classroom building would be 8.3 metres wide, 11.3 metres long and have 
a maximum height of 3.4 metres. It would be located on an existing area of hard stand. 

The replacement classroom provides improved accommodation in response to increased demand 
for school places in the locality. This is a temporary response and comprehensive development 
proposals are being developed which would alleviate the need for temporary classroom 
accommodation in the long term. 

Relevant History 

There has been a significant number of permissions relating to the placement of temporary 
buildings within the school curtilage, the last being in May 2006. 

It should be noted that an application for a further temporary classroom is reported elsewhere on 
this agenda under ref: LBE/09/0014. 

Consultation

Public

Consultation letters have been sent to 97 neighbouring properties. No replies have been 
received.

External    None 

Internal

Transportation have raised no objection 

Relevant Policies 

London Plan

3A.17  Addressing the needs of London’s diverse population 
3A.24        Education Facilities 
3D10  Metropolitan Open Land 
3D.11  Open Space 
4B.5         Creating an inclusive environment 
4B.8          Respect local context and communities 

Unitary Development Plan

(I)GD1  Regard to surroundings 
(I)GD2       Development to improve the environment 
(II)GD3      Character and Appearance 
(II)GD6      Traffic generation 
(II)GD8      Access & servicing 
(II)CS1      To facilitate through the planning process the work of various 
             community services 
(II)CS2           To ensure development for community services complies 

with the Council’s environmental polices 
(II)O5  Development adjacent to MOL 
(II)010  Contribution of Open Space 

Page 34



Local Development Framework - Core Strategy Preferred Options

The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires the Council to replace the UDP with a 
Local Development Framework (LDF). The LDF Core Strategy will set out the spatial vision and 
strategic objectives for the Borough. The Core Strategy is at an early stage in its adoption 
process. As this continues the weight given to it will grow and the relevant objectives are reported 
to demonstrate the degree to which the proposals are consistent with the emerging policy 
direction.

SO3          Protect and enhance Enfield's environmental quality 
SO9          New social facilities 
SO10  Address social deprivation, child poverty and inequalities in 
               health and educational attainment 
SO16         Preserve the local distinctiveness 
SO17         Safeguard established communities and the quality of the local 
             environment 

Other Material Considerations

PPS1         Delivering Sustainable Communities 
PPG13  Transportation 
PPS17  Open Space, Sport and Recreation 

Analysis 

Impact on Character and Appearance of Surrounding Area

The proposed single storey building would reflect the existing single storey form of the other 
temporary buildings on the school site and would replace an existing temporary classroom 
building. Whilst it would have a contrasting appearance to that of the main school building, it 
would not represent a prominent structure as it would be situated against the main 2 storey 
school building. The building would also be screened from the MOL by the existing two storey 
school building and thus, it is considered that in the short term, it would not detract from the 
appearance and character of the school or the visual amenities of the surrounding area. 

Impact on Neighbouring Properties

The proposed building would be sited a minimum of 5 metres from the boundary of the site with 
the rear gardens of nos. 70 – 72 Harrington Terrace on the Great Cambridge Road. These are 
the closest residential properties to the proposal. There would be a minimum gap of 24 metres 
between the new building and these houses which includes a 3 metre wide access way which 
serves the rear of these properties and runs along the schools eastern boundary. The dwellings 
are 2 storey terraced properties all of which have existing single storey outbuildings / garages at 
the far end of their rear gardens. There is also a close-boarded fence and some tree screening on 
the eastern site boundary. On this basis, and given the building is replacing an existing structure 
which is sited closer to the boundary, the building would not affect the outlook or amenities 
enjoyed by these residential occupiers. 

Impact on Traffic Generation and Parking

The proposal would result in 1 additional member of full-time staff and 1 additional part-time staff 
member. There is no  increase in the number of pupils. As a result, it is accepted that no increase 
in parking is required and it is considered that any additional traffic associated with the proposal 

Page 35



would be minimal and would not harm the existing free flow and safety of traffic on Rayleigh 
Road. In addition, the siting of the building would not affect any existing access arrangements. 
However, the proposal is integral to plans to enlarge the school from a two form entry school to a 
three form entry school as the building currently proposed will allow classroom space for the 
existing students whilst building works to the main school buildings are carried out.  . 

It should be noted that the traffic generation implications of this proposal have been assessed in 
the light of the concurrent proposal considered elsewhere on this agenda under ref: LBE/09/0013. 

Conclusion

The additional classroom accommodation supports current educational needs at the school 
pending more comprehensive proposals which are being developed and in the light of the above 
assessment; it is considered that the proposed development is acceptable. The proposal would 
also be consistent with the Council’s emerging strategic objectives that encourage new social 
facilities and address inequalities in educational attainment whilst safeguarding the quality of the 
local environment. Accordingly it is recommended that the proposal is approved for the following 
reasons:

1. The proposed temporary classroom meets an educational need and is a valuable 
community facility that would not detract from the character  and appearance or the visual 
amenities of the surrounding area having regard to Policies (I)GD1, (I)GD2 and (II)GD3 of 
the Unitary Development Plan and Policies 3A.24 and 4B.8 of the London Plan, as well as 
the objectives of PPS1. 

2. The proposed temporary classroom would not affect the amenities of  adjoining or nearby
residential properties having regard to Policies (I)GD1 and (I)GD2 of the Unitary 
Development Plan. 

3. The proposed development does not involve an increase in pupils at  the school and 
therefore, does not give rise to conditions prejudicial to the free flow and safety of vehicles 
and pedestrians using the adjoining highways having regard to Policies (II)GD6 and 
(II)GD8 of the Unitary Development Plan as well as the objectives of PPG13. 

Page 36



G
R

A
S

S

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

  
P

A
R

K
IN

G

2
0

.1
m

Lamb'sTerrace

D
E

A
N

S
W

A
Y

PERRYGARDENS

P
U

R
L
E

Y
R

O
A

D

BEXLEYGARDENS

VictorVillas

B
M

2
0

.1
4

m

P
o

s
ts

GREATCAMBRIDGEROAD

P
la

y
in

g
 F

ie
ld

RAYLEIGH CLOSE

L
B

MYRTLEROAD

T
H

E
F

A
IR

W
A

Y

P
O

L
B

S
E

L
H

U
R

S
T

R
O

A
D

2
9

4
3

5
7

2 to 24

1

5
9

6
97

4

6
0

1

13

23

33

4
4

3
2

2
2

1

7

2
0

1
8

6
3

7
5

8
7

9
7

1
0

7

46

34

22

12

2

5
8

4
6

3
4

2
2

2

39to47

48to53

55

60

65

72

76

1

10

1
0

5

1
1

1

8

1

33

27

21

16

10

5

5

1 1
a

1

2

14

26

7

1

2

3
1

8

1
3

1

2

1
4

2
7

5

38

50

6068

H
A
R
LO

W
R
O

A
D

G
R

A
S

S

A
R

E
A

 O
F

 M
IX

E
D

 T
R

E
E

S

T
A

R
M

A
C

N
E

W
 P

L
A

Y
G

R
O

U
N

D
S

T
U

M
P

S
T

U
M

P

3

4
3

5
3

T
C

B
B

M
 2

0
.7

6
m

Shelter

2
1

.9
m

1
9

.9
m

1
0

2

H
a

ll

S
c
h

o
o

l 
H

o
u

s
e

WardBdy

W
a
rd

B
d
y

C
R

CR

F
IR

S
 F

A
R

M
 P

R
IM

A
R

Y
 S

C
H

O
O

L

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

S
 

A
C

C
E

S
S

 R
O

U
T

E

W
IL

D
 L

IF
E

 A
R

E
A

Fence

Boundary

Boundary

N

R
A

Y
L

E
IG

H
R

O
A

D

KiplingTerrace

1
9
3
4
2
0
 
N

1
9
3
4
4
0
 
N

1

7

8

1
6

2
7

2

6

1
0

1
1

1
2

1
9

2
2

2
3

2
4

2
5

2
9

3
4

3
5

3
6

3

1
3

1
8

4

5

2
6

9

1
4

1
5

1
7

2
0

2
8

3
0

3
1

3
2

2
1

3
3

S
T
U
M
P

S
T
U
M
P

B
U
S
H

H
O
L
L
Y

B
U
S
H

L
P

2
1
.0
7

R
S

R
S

G 2
1
.4
2

G 2
0
.1
6

G

G

G
V

R
E

R
E

R
E

R
E

M
H
 
C
L

2
1
.0
1

G 2
0
.9
4

G 2
0
.4
3

M
H
 
C
L

2
0
.6
7

L
P

R
/
C
 
B
IN

W
V

W
V

W
V

W
V

B
B

C
O

N
C

C
O

N
C

C
O

N
C

C
O

N
C

C
P

S

B
P

B
P

B
P

DRAINAGECHANNEL

G
R

A
S

S

G
R

A
S

S

G
R

A
S

S

G
R

A
S

S

G
R

A
S

S
G

R
A

S
S

G
R

A
S

S

G
R

A
S

S

G
R

A
S

S

G
R

A
S

S

E
A

R
T

H
 M

O
U

N
D

R
O

W
O
F

TY
RE

S

A
D

V
E

N
T

U
R

E
 P

L
A

Y
 A

R
E

A

C
P

S

C
P

S

C
P

S

C
P

S
C

P
S

C
P

S

C
P

S

C
P

S

G
R

A
S

S

G
R

A
S

S

G
R

A
S

S
G

R
A

S
S

G
R

A
S

S

G
R

A
S

S

G
R

A
S

S

G
R

A
S

S

G
R

A
S

S

G
R

A
S

S

C
L
F

1
. 0

H

C
L
F

1
.0

H

CLF1.0H

C
L
F

1
.0

H

A
R

E
A

 O
F

 M
IX

E
D

 T
R

E
E

S

S
C

H
O

O
L

 H
O

U
S

E

G
A

R
A

G
E

A
R

E
A

 O
F

 M
IX

E
D

 T
R

E
E

S

A
R

E
A

 O
F

 M
IX

E
D

 T
R

E
E

S

C
L
F

1
.0

H

C
L
F

1
.0

H

C
L
F

1
.0

H

M
IX

E
D

 H
E

D
G

E
 2

.0
H

M
IX

E
D

 H
E

D
G

E
 2

.0
H

S
T

O
R

E

R
G

C
P

S

C
P

S
T

M
A

C

T
M

A
C

T
M

A
C

T
M

A
C

T
M

A
C

T
M

A
C

T
M

A
C

T
M

A
C

T
M

A
C

T
M

A
C

T
M

A
C

T
M

A
C

T
M

A
C

G
R

A
S

S

C
P

S

B
E

N
C

H

B
E

N
C

H
B

E
N

C
H

B
E

N
C

H

BENCH

B
E

N
C

H

B
E

N
C

H

B
E

N
C

H

B
E

N
C

H

F
B

F
IR

S
 F

A
R

M
 P

R
IM

A
R

Y
 S

C
H

O
O

L

C
L
A

S
S

 R
O

O
M

C
L
A

S
S

 R
O

O
M

C
L
A

S
S

 R
O

O
MC

L
A

S
S

 R
O

O
M

C
L
A

S
S

 R
O

O
M

C
P

S

IR
F

1
.4

H

IR
F

1
.4

H

C
LF

1
.2

H

IR
F

 1
.1

H

IRF1.1H

S
P

SC
P

S

C
P

S

S
P

S
C

P
S

C
P

S
C

P
S

S
P

S
S

P
S

S
P

S

F
B

G
R

A
S

S

G
R

A
S

S

G
R

A
S

S

G
R

A
S

S

S
H

R
U

B
S

S
H

R
U

B
S

W
M

F
2.

1H

CLF1.2H

CLF1.2H

CLF1.2H

CLF1.2H

CLF1.2H

P
F

1
.0

H

PF1.0H

PF1.0H

T
M

A
C

T
M

A
C

T
M

A
C

PF0.9H

B
W

2.
2H

M
IX

E
D

 S
H

R
U

B
S

B
W

 2
.2

H

BW
2.2H

CLF1.7H

CLF1.7H

CLF1.7H

BW+IRF1.6H

P
F

1
.0

H

B
E
N

C
H

S
IG

N

RAMPUP

C
O

N
C

R
A
M

P
U
P

R
A

M
P

 U
P

B
R

W
+

IR
F

BRW+IRF

B
R

W

R
A

M
P

 U
P

C
P

S
R

A
M

P
U

P

R
W

P

G

IL
 2

0
.0

3
1
5

0

1
5

0

15
0

1
5

0

1
5

0

(R)

W
A

T
E

R
P

E

L
P

F
IG

LVSL

L
V

L
V

LV SL

L
V

S
L

L
V

L
V

S
L

LV

W
M

F
2.

1H

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

C
0
0
0

1

C
0
0
3

3

1
7

m
\U

+
0

0
B

2

G
a

ra
g

e

C
0

0
3

4

B
o

ile
r

R
o
o
m

5
0

m
\U

+
0

0
B

2

C
0

0
0

2

F
0
0
2

5

H
a
ll

2
1

2
m

\U
+

0
0

B
2

F
0

0
0

1

C
0
0
2

7

K
it
c
h
e
n

2
5

m
\U

+
0

0
B

2

C
0
0
0

8

C
0
0

2
9

K
it
c
h
e
n

4
m

\U
+
0
0

B
2

C
0

0
0

4

C
0

0
3

1

E
le

ct
ri
c
it
y

R
o
o
m

6
m

\U
+
0
0

B
2

C
0

0
0

3

C
o
rr

id
o
r

4
m

\U
+
0
0

B
2

C
0

0
0

6

C
0
0
2

8

K
it
c
h

e
n

T
o
il

e
t

6
m

\U
+
0
0

B
2

C
0
0
0

7

C
0
0
3

0

M
a
le

T
o
ile

t

2
m

\U
+
0
0

B
2

C
0
0
0

5

F
0
0
2

3

L
ib

ra
ry

/
IT

R
o
o
m

7
7

m
\U

+
0

0
B

2

F
0
0
0

6

M
a
in

E
n

tr
a

n
c
e

1
8

m
\U

+
0

0
B

2

F
0
0
1

1

C
o

rr
id

o
r

6
8

m
\U

+
0

0
B

2

F
0

0
1

2

A
d

m
in

O
ff
ic

e

1
8

m
\U

+
0

0
B

2

F
0
0
1

3

S
to

re

5
m

\U
+

0
0

B
2

F
0
0
1

5

S
to

re

6
m

\U
+

0
0

B
2

F
0

0
2

0
D

e
p
u

t y
H

e
a
d
te

a
ch

e
r'
s

O
ff

ic
e

2
6

m
\U

+
0

0
B

2

F
0
0
1

6

H
a
ll

8
1

m
\U

+
0

0
B

2

F
0
0
1

9

C
o
rr

id
o

r

3
7

m
\U

+
0

0
B

2

F
0
0
1

8

S
m

a
ll

C
la

ss
ro

o
m

1
8

m
\U

+
0

0
B

2

F
0

0
1

7

H
e
a

d
te

a
c
h

e
r'
s

O
ff
ic

e

1
7

m
\U

+
0

0
B

2

F
0
0
1

4

S
ta

ff
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

A
re

a

1
7

m
\U

+
0

0
B

2

F
0
0

2
1

B
o

ile
r

R
o
o
m

1
0

m
\U

+
0

0
B

2

F
0
0
2

3

S
t a

f f
R

o
o

m

4
7

m
\U

+
0

0
B

2

F
0
0

2
2

F
0
0
1

8

F
e
m

a
le

T
o
il

e
t

1
0

m
\U

+
0

0
B

2

F
0
0

0
7

F
0
0
1

7

C
o
rr

id
o
r

5
5

m
\U

+
0

0
B

2

F
0
0
0

5

F
0

0
1

9

C
le

a
n

e
r

3
m

\U
+
0
0

B
2

F
0
0
0

8

F
0
0
2

2

M
a
le

T
o
ile

t

8
m

\U
+
0
0

B
2

F
0
0
0

9

F
0
0
1

6

C
la

s
s

ro
o
m

5
5

m
\U

+
0

0
B

2

F
0
0
2

5

O
ff

ic
e

1
7

m
\U

+
0

0
B

2

F
0
0
0

4F
0
0
1

7
A

M
e
d

ic
a

lR
o
o

m

1
2

m
\U

+
0

0
B

2

F
0
0
0

3

S
to

re

2
m

\U
+
0
0

B
2

F
0
0
2

4

F
0
0

1
2

C
o
r r

id
o
r

1
2

3
m

\U
+

0
0
B

2

F
0
0

2
6

F
0
0
1

4

G
ir

ls
T

o
ile

t

1
0

m
\U

+
0

0
B

2

F
0
0

2
7

F
0
0
1

3

C
l a

s
s
ro

o
m

5
6

m
\U

+
0

0
B

2

F
0
0
2

9

F
0
0

1
0

C
la

s
s
ro

o
m

5
5

m
\U

+
0

0
B

2

F
0
0
3

1

F
0
0

0
9

S
t o

re

1
7

m
\U

+
0

0
B

2

F
0
0
3

0

F
0
0
1

1

G
ir

ls
T

o
ile

t

5
m

\U
+
0
0

B
2

F
0
0
2

8

F
0
0
0

7

S
to

re

5
m

\ U
+
0
0

B
2

F
0
0
3

2
F

0
0
0

8

B
o

ys
T
o

ile
t

9
m

\U
+

0
0

B
2

F
0
0
3

3

F
0
0
0

6

C
la

s
s
ro

o
m

5
6

m
\U

+
0

0
B

2

F
0
0
3

4

F
0
0
0

2

S
ta

ir
w

e
ll

2
0

m
\U

+
0

0
B

2

F
0
0
3

5

W
C

-
1

W
H

B
-

1

S
H

O
W

E
R

'S
-

0

U
R

IN
A

L
'S

-
0

W
C

-
0

W
H

B
-

3

S
H

O
W

E
R

'S
-

0

U
R

IN
A

L
' S

-
0

W
C

-
1

W
H

B
-

1

S
H

O
W

E
R

'S
-

0

U
R

IN
A

L
'S

-
0

S
H

O
W

E
R

'S
-

0

U
R

IN
A

L
' S

-
0

W
H

B
-

3

W
C

-
3

S
H

O
W

E
R

'S
-

0

W
C

-
0

U
R

IN
A

L
'S

-
0

W
H

B
-

1

F
0
0
0

2

3
m

\U
+
0
0

B
2

P
E

S
to

re

S
H

O
W

E
R

'S
-

0

W
C

-
1

U
R

IN
A

L
'S

-
2

W
H

B
-

2

U
R

IN
A

L
'S

-
0

W
C

-
1

S
H

O
W

E
R

'S
-

0

W
H

B
-

1

F
0
0
2

1

D
is

a
b
le

d

3
m

\U
+
0
0

B
2

F
0
0
1

0

S
H

O
W

E
R

'S
-

1

U
R

IN
A

L
' S

-
0

W
H

B
-

2

W
C

-
0

S
H

O
W

E
R

'S
-

0

U
R

IN
A

L
'S

-
0

W
H

B
-

1

W
C

-
0

U
R

IN
A

L
'S

-
0

S
H

O
W

E
R

'S
-

0

W
H

B
-

0

W
C

-
4

U
R

IN
A

L
'S

-
0

S
H

O
W

E
R

'S
-

0

W
H

B
-

6

W
C

-
0

U
R

IN
A

L
'S

-
0

S
H

O
W

E
R

'S
-

0

W
H

B
-

0

W
C

-
2

U
R

IN
A

L
'S

-
0

S
H

O
W

E
R

'S
-

0

W
H

B
-

1

W
C

-
0

U
R

IN
A

L
'S

-
0

S
H

O
W

E
R

'S
-

0

W
H

B
-

1

W
C

-
0

U
R

IN
A

L
'S

-
0

S
H

O
W

E
R

'S
-

0

W
H

B
-

1

W
C

-
0

U
R

IN
A

L
'S

-
0

S
H

O
W

E
R

'S
-

0

W
H

B
-

1

W
C

-
0

U
R

IN
A

L
'S

-
0

S
H

O
W

E
R

'S
-

0

W
H

B
-

6

W
C

-
0

U
R

IN
A

L
'S

-
5

S
H

O
W

E
R

'S
-

0

W
H

B
-

0

W
C

-
2

1
m

\U
+
0
0

B
2

S
to

re

F
0
0
3

6

4
7

8
3

3480

1
0

5
4
5

7490

5
5

0
0

4630

1
6

4
9
8

13217

9
7

6
9

8725

3744 3700 3770 3670 2190

4230 8120 4990

1
0

1
8
0

4
7

0
0

4
7

0
0

4
6

9
0

4
6

9
0

4
6

8
9

6
2

0
0

1
0

0
0

0

4
3

6
0

4
3

7
0

2780 3879

8580

8695

8580

8700

7
0

5
5

7
0

4
5

7
0

5
5

7
0

5
0

5
3

2
0

3160

FF
C C

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

U
P

S
to

re

T
o
ile

t

W
H

B
-

1

W
C

W
C

min

Classroom 60sq.m.

Heckmondwike
Diamond

min

PB

PB

PB

C/Lofprojectoranddrywhiteboard

PB

C.H.

C.H.

M

PB

PB

PB

PB

CH
PB

min

C.H.

PB

CH
PB

PB

Classroom 60sq.m.

PB

PB

C/Lofprojectoranddrywhite
board

PB

PB

PB

PB

818
818

1619
818

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 m

a
n

h
o

le
 b

e
li
e
v
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
fo

u
l 
d

ra
in

a
g
e
, 

a
p

p
ro

xi
m

a
te

lo
c
a

ti
o
n

 i
n
d

ic
a

te
d

T
h
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
m

u
s
t 

c
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
a

n
 i
n

v
e
s

ti
g

a
ti

s
u

rf
a
c
e
 w

a
te

r 
d

ra
in

a
g

e
 i

n
 t

h
e
 v

ic
in

it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 n
e

w
  

fo
u

l 
a
n

d
 s

u
rf

a
c

a
n

d
 c

o
n

n
e
c
ti

o
n

s
 i

n
to

 t
h
e

 e
x

is
ti
n

g
 s

y
s

te
m

s
 w

E
x
is

t i
n

g
f o

u
l d

ra
in

a
g
e

,
a

p
p
ro

x
i m

a
t e

lo
c
at

io
n

i n
d
i c

a
t e

d

20850

7895 7
6

0
0

N
e
w

1
0
0
m

m
S

W
D

ra
in

N
ew

1
00

m
m

S
W

D
ra

in

7
9

0
0

R
W

P

ELEC

R
A

M
P

U
P

O/H

O/H
TEL

E
X

. 
D

R
A

IN
 

R
E

M
O

V
E

D
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 H

ir
e

d
 T

e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 C
la

s
s
ro

o
m

S
u

m
m

e
r 

2
0

0
9

T
h

is
 m

a
p

 i
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 u

p
o

n
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

S
u

rv
e

y
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
n

tr
o

lle
r 

o
f 

H
e

r 
M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
ti
o

n
a

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
  

c
  

C
ro

w
n

 C
o

p
y
ri
g

h
t.

 
U

n
a

u
th

o
ri

s
e

d
 r

e
p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

fr
in

g
e

s
 C

ro
w

n
 C

o
p

y
ri
g

h
t 

a
n

d
 m

a
y
 l
e

a
d

 t
o

 p
ro

s
e

c
u

ti
o

n
 o

r
c
iv

il 
p

ro
c
e

e
d

in
g
s
. 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 O
f 

E
n

fi
e

ld
 L

A
 0

8
6

3
6

3
 2

0
0

0
.

N

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 T

e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 C
la

s
s
ro

o
m

S
u

m
m

e
r 

2
0

0
9

 -
 B

y
 O

th
e

rs

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 t

e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 c
la

s
s
ro

o
m

to
 b

e
 d

e
m

o
lis

h
e

d
 b

y
 o

th
e

rs
S

p
ri

n
g
 /

 S
u

m
m

e
r 

2
0

0
9

S
c
h

o
o

l 
G

ro
u

n
d

s
  

: 
 A

re
a

 2
.7

8
2

 h
a

D
/E

2
3

0
/0

0
1

7
8
5

/A
/A

L
(0

)0
1

2
3

/0
3

/0
9

J
E

D

F
ir

s
 F

a
rm

 P
ri

m
a

ry
 S

c
h

o
o

l

R
a
y
le

ig
h

 R
o

a
d

, 
L

o
n

d
o

n
, 

N
1

3
 5

Q
P

H
ir

e
d

 T
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 C

la
s

s
ro

o
m

, 
U

n
it

 A
 -

 2
0

0
9

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

R
e

v
is

io
n

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
.

D
ra

w
in

g
 T

it
le

D
a

te

D
ra

w
n

P
ro

je
c
t

C
A

D
 F

ile
 N

o
.

D
a

te
N

o
te

s
R

e
v

C
o

u
n

c
il

J
E

D
A

rc
h

it
e

c
t 

\ 
S

.O
.

1
:1

2
5

0
 @

 A
3

S
c
a
le

P
O

 B
o

x
 5

1
, 
C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
,

S
il

v
e
r 

S
tr

e
e

t,
 E

n
fi

e
ld

, 
M

id
d
le

s
e

x
 E

N
1

 3
X

B

T
e

l:
 0

2
0

 8
3

7
9

 6
7
0

5
C

o
p
y
 p

a
th

 f
ro

m
 W

in
d

o
w

s
 E

x
p

lo
re

r

rc
h

it
e

c
tu

ra
l

Page 37



CLA
SSR

OO
M M

IN 
69m

²

STO
RE 

MIN
 7m

²

WC
WC

LOB
BY

11
2
7
0

We
t Pla

y Ar
ea

Fire exti
ngu

ishe
r

Hec
kmo

ndw
ike 

Sup
aco

rd

30 N
o co

at h
ook

s on
 

250
m h

igh 
bac

king
 

plat
e

sec
ured

 to w
all h

eigh
t 

to b
e co

nfirm
ed.

C.H
.

C.H
.

C.H
.

M

Hec
kmo

ndw
ike

 Dia
mon

d

Pro
ject

or s
upp

ort b
rack

et, 
to b

e hu
ng f

rom
 cei

ling
.

PB

2
4
4
4

3025 2200 2825

8600

15
0
0

8
19

Pro
ject

or ty
pe d

ry w
hite

with
 grid

 line
s.PB

PB

PB

3300
approx

B A

D
C

ELE
VAT

ION
 A

ELE
VAT

ION
 B

ELE
VAT

ION
 C

ELE
VAT

ION
 D

PB

Sta
inle

ss s
ink 

with
 

drin
king

 wa
ter s

upp
ly 

ove
r

Poly
floo

r Po
lysa

fe S
tand

ard 
floo

r 
cov

erin
g w

ith 1
50 m

m c
ove

 ski
rting

s 
usin

g flo
orin

g an
d co

ve f
orm

ers 
to s

tore
, 

toile
ts a

nd w
et p

lay 
area

350 NTS

Poly
flor 

Poly
safe

 Sta
nda

rd

Belf
ast 

sink

Dad
o

Tru
nkin

g

C/L
 of p

roje
ctor

 and
 dry

 wh
ite b

oard

PB

D/E
230

/001
785

/A/A
L(0

)04
24/0

3/09
JED

Firs
 Far

m P
rim

ary 
sch

ool
Ray

leig
h R

oad
, Lo

ndo
n, N

13 5
QP

Hire
d T

emp
ora

ry C
lass

roo
m, U

nit 
A - 

200
9

Pla
n &

 Ele
vati

ons
Rev

ision
Dra

wing
 No

.

Dra
wing

 Titl
e

Dat
e

Dra
wn

Pro
ject

CAD
 File

 No
.

Dat
e

Not
es

Rev

Cou
ncil

DMArc
hite

ct \ 
S.O

.

1:10
0 @

 A2
Sca

le

PO
 Bo

x 5
1, C

ivic
 Ce

ntr
e,

Silv
er S

tre
et, 

Enf
ield

, M
idd

les
ex 

EN
1 3

XB
Tel

: 02
0 8

379
 67

05
Cop

y pa
th fr

om 
Win

dow
s Ex

plor
er

rch
itec

tur
al

Page 38



© Crown copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Enfield.
License No LA086363, 2003

Scale 1/2500 Date 10/6/2009

LBE/09/0014

Centre = 532716 E 193369 N

Page 39



Application Number:  LBE/09/0014 Ward:  Bush Hill Park       
Date of Registration:  13th May 2009 

Contact:  Kate Perry 3846 

Location: FIRS FARM PRIMARY SCHOOL, RAYLEIGH ROAD, LONDON, N13 5QP 

Proposal: Installation of temporary classroom building to south east of site. 

Applicant Name & Address:

London Borough of Enfield 
C/O Agent 

Agent Name & Address:

Mr Joe Pellegrini, Architectural Services 
CIVIC CENTRE 
SILVER STREET 
ENFIELD
MIDDLESEX 
EN1 3XA 

Recommendation:

In accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning (General) Regulations 1992, 
planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED subject to the following conditions: 

1. C50 Limited Period Permission 

Site and Surroundings 

The application site is a Primary School situated within a predominantly residential area. 
Immediately to the north of the site are Firs Farm Playing Fields which are designated 
Metropolitan Open Land.  The School playing fields, located towards the southern end of the site, 
were designated Metropolitan Open Land in the 1997 UDP Interim Amendments. However, this 
designation lapsed when the Interim Amendment to the UDP where not saved. 

The School comprises a 2.98 hectare site and consists of part 2 storey, part single storey 
buildings and 5 existing temporary classrooms. The main vehicular and pedestrian access to the 
site is from Rayleigh Road with secondary pedestrian access from Harrington Terrace (Great 
Cambridge Road). 

Proposal

Permission is sought to install a temporary single storey building of 168 sq.m containing two 
classrooms adjacent  to the eastern site boundary and the rear gardens of Nos. 56-59 Harrington 
Terrace (Great Cambridge Road). The building is required for a four-year period to accommodate 
short term demand for additional school places and to assist the expansion of the school from a 2 
Form Entry  to a 3 Form Entry School. 

Positioned a minimum of 13 metres from the eastern boundary of the site, the classroom building 
would be 8.2 metres wide, 21 metres long and have a maximum height of 3.7 metres. 

Page 40



Relevant History 

There has been a significant number of permissions relating to the placement of temporary 
buildings within the school curtilage, the last being in May 2006. 

It should be noted that an application for a further temporary classroom is reported elsewhere on 
this agenda under ref: LBE/09/0013. 

Consultation

Public

Consultation letters have been sent to 97 neighbouring properties. No replies have been 
received.

External:    None 

Internal:

Transportation raise no objection 

Relevant Policies 

London Plan

3A.17  Addressing the needs of London’s diverse population 
3A.24        Education Facilities 
3D10  Metropolitan Open Land 
3D.11  Open Space 
4B.5         Creating an inclusive environment 
4B.8          Respect local context and communities 

Unitary Development Plan

(I)GD1  Regard to surroundings 
(I)GD2       Development to improve the environment 
(II)GD3      Character and Appearance 
(II)GD6      Traffic generation 
(II)GD8      Access & servicing 
(II)CS1      To facilitate through the planning process the work of various 
             community services 
(II)CS2           To ensure development for community services complies 

with the Council’s environmental polices 
(II)O5  Development adjacent to MOL 
(II)010  Contribution of Open Space 

Local Development Framework - Core Strategy Preferred Options

The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires the Council to replace the UDP with a 
Local Development Framework (LDF). The LDF Core Strategy will set out the spatial vision and 
strategic objectives for the Borough. The Core Strategy is at an early stage in its adoption 
process. As this continues the weight given to it will grow and the relevant objectives are reported 

Page 41



to demonstrate the degree to which the proposals are consistent with the emerging policy 
direction.

SO3          Protect and enhance Enfield's environmental quality 
SO9          New social facilities 
SO10         Address social deprivation, child poverty and inequalities in 
             health and educational attainment 
SO16         Preserve the local distinctiveness 
SO17         Safeguard established communities and the quality of the local 
             environment 

Other Material Considerations

PPS1         Delivering Sustainable Communities 
PPG13  Transport 
PPS 17:  Planning for Open Space, Sport and Recreation. 

Analysis 

Impact on Character and Appearance of Surrounding Area

Although the building would be located on a grassed area, it would not encroach on to the 
extensive playing field and would be situated adjacent to existing temporary classrooms. Given 
the present educational need and the fact that the building is only required for a temporary period 
when the land can be reinstated to its original grassed condition, on balance, it is considered this 
small loss of an open grass area is considered acceptable.  

The proposed single storey building would reflect the existing single storey form of the other 
temporary buildings at the school. It would be located partially within the envelope of these 
buildings and although visible when viewed from the playing field, would not be unduly intrusive. 
In addition, whilst it would have a contrasting appearance to that of the main school building, it 
would not represent a prominent structure as it would be located to the rear of the existing 
buildings on the site. The building would therefore be screened from the MOL by the existing two 
storey school building and thus, it is considered that in the short term, it would not detract from 
the appearance and character of the school, the visual amenities of the surrounding area or 
encroach significantly in to the important open space provided by the school playing fields. 

Impact on Neighbouring Properties

The proposed building would be sited a minimum of 13 metres from the boundary of the site with 
the rear gardens of Nos. 56 – 59 Harrington Terrace on the Great Cambridge Road. These are 
the closest residential properties to the proposal. There would be a minimum gap of 31metres 
between the new building and these houses which includes a 3 metre wide access way which 
serves the rear of these properties and runs along the schools eastern boundary. The dwellings 
are 2 storey terraced properties most of which have existing single storey outbuildings / garages 
at the far end of their rear gardens. There is also a close-boarded fence and some tree screening 
on the eastern site boundary. On this basis, and given its dimensions and single storey nature, 
the building would not affect the outlook or amenities enjoyed by these residential occupiers. 

Impact on Traffic Generation and Parking

The proposal would result in 1 additional member of full-time staff and 1 additional part-time staff 
member. There is no increase in the number of pupils and the implications of any future increase 
would be considered as part of an application to develop the school. As a result, it is accepted 

Page 42



that no increase in parking on site is required and it is considered that any additional traffic 
associated with the proposal would not harm the existing free flow and safety of traffic on 
Rayleigh Road. In addition, the siting of the building would not affect any existing access 
arrangements. However, the proposal is integral to plans to enlarge the school from a two form 
entry school to a three form entry school. The building currently proposed will provide classroom 
space for the existing students whilst building works to the main school buildings are carried out.   

It should be noted that the traffic generation implications of this proposal have been assessed in 
the light of the concurrent proposal considered elsewhere on this agenda under ref: LBE/09/0013. 

Conclusion

The additional classroom accommodation supports current educational needs at the school 
pending more comprehensive proposals which are being developed and in the light of the above 
assessment; it is considered that the proposed development is acceptable. The proposal would 
also be consistent with the Council’s emerging strategic objectives that encourage new social 
facilities and address inequalities in educational attainment whilst safeguarding the quality of the 
local environment. Accordingly it is recommended that the proposal is approved for the following 
reasons:

1. The proposed temporary classroom meets an educational need and is a valuable 
community facility that would not detract from the character  and appearance or the visual 
amenities of the surrounding area having regard to Policies (I)GD1, (I)GD2, (II)GD3, 
(II)CS1 and (II)CS2 of the Unitary Development Plan and Policies 3A.24 and 4B.8 of the 
London Plan, as well as the objectives of PPS1. 

2. Due to the temporary nature of the proposed building, the proposed building does not 
result in a permanent loss of open grassed area and having regard also to the present 
educational needs, is considered acceptable having regard to Policies (I)GD1, (I)GD2, 
(II)GD3, (II)CS1, (II)CS2 and (II)O  of the Unitary Development Plan. As well as the 
objectives of PPS17. 

3. The proposed temporary classroom would not affect the amenities of  adjoining or nearby
residential properties having regard to Policies (I)GD1 and (I)GD2 of the Unitary 
Development Plan. 

4. The proposed development does not involve an increase in pupils at  the school and 
therefore, does not give rise to conditions prejudicial to the free flow and safety of vehicles 
and pedestrians using the adjoining highways having regard to Policies (II)GD6 and 
(II)GD8 of the Unitary Development Plan as well as the objectives of PPG13. 

Page 43



GR
ASS

EXI
STI

NG
  PA

RKI
NG

20.1
m

Lamb'sTerrace

DEA
NSW

AY

PERRYGARDENS

PUR
LEY

ROA
D

BEXLEYGARDENS

VictorVillas

BM
20.1

4m

Pos
ts GREATCAMBRIDGEROAD

Play
ing 

Fiel
d

RAYLEIGH CLOSE

LB

MYRTLEROAD

THE
FAIR

WA
Y

PO

LB

SEL
HUR

ST
RO

AD

29

43

57

2 to 24

1

59

6974

60

1

13

23

33

4 4

32

22

1

7

20
18

63
75

8 7
9 7

107

46

34

22

12

2

58

46

34

22

2

39to47

48to53

55

60

65

72

76

1

10

105
111

8

1
33

27

21

16

10

5

5

1 1a

1

2

14

26

7

1

2
3

1

8

13

1

2

14

27

5

38

50

6068

HARLOWROAD

GR
ASS

ARE
A O

F M
IXE

D T
REE

S

TAR
MA

C

NEW
 PL

AYG
RO

UND
STU

MP

STU
MP

3

43

53

TCB
BM 

20.7
6m

Shelter

21.9
m

19.9
m

10

2

Hall

Sch
ool 

Hou
se

WardBdy

War
d Bd

y

CR

CR

FIR
S F

ARM
 PR

IMA
RY 

SCH
OO

L

CO
NTR

ACT
OR

S 
ACC

ESS
 RO

UTE

WIL
D L

IFE
 AR

EA

Fence
Boundary

Boundary

RAY
LEI

GH R
OAD

KiplingTerrace

1
9
3
4
2
0
 
N

1
9
3
4
4
0
 
N

1

7

8

1
6

2
7

2

6

1
0

1
1

1
2

1
9

2
2

2
3

2
4

2
5

2
9

3
4

3
5

3
6

3

1
3

1
8

4

5

2
6

9

1
4

1
5

1
7

2
0

2
8

3
0

3
1

3
2

2
1

3
3

S
T
U
M
P

S
T
U
M
P

B
U
S
H

H
O
L
L
Y

B
U
S
H

L
P

2
1
.0
7

R
S

R
S

G 2
1
.4
2

G 2
0
.1
6

G

G

G
V

R
E

R
E

R
E

R
E

M
H
 
C
L

2
1
.0
1

G 2
0
.9
4

G 2
0
.4
3

M
H
 
C
L

2
0
.6
7

L
P

R
/
C
 
B
IN

W
V

W
V

W
V

W
V

B
B

CON
C

CON
C

CON
C

CON
C

CPS

BP

BP

BP

DRAINAGECHANNEL

GRA
SS

GRA
SS

GRA
SS

GRA
SS

GRA
SS

GRA
SS

GRA
SS

GRA
SS

GRA
SS

GRA
SS

EAR
TH 

MO
UND

ROW OF TYRES

ADV
ENT

URE
 PL

AY 
ARE

A

CPS

CPS

CPS

CPS
CPS

CPS

CPS
CPS

GRA
SS

GRA
SS

GRA
SS

GRA
SS

GRA
SS

GRA
SS

GRA
SS

GRA
SS

GRA
SS

GRA
SS

C LF
1. 0H

CLF
1.0H

CLF1.0H

CLF
1 .0 H

ARE
A O

F M
IXE

D T
REE

S

SCH
OO

L H
OUS

E
GAR

AGE

ARE
A O

F M
IXE

D T
REE

S

ARE
A O

F M
IXE

D T
REE

S

CL F
1 .0 H

CL F
1 .0 H

CL F
1 .0 H

MIX
ED 

HED
GE 

2.0H
MIX

ED 
HED

GE 
2.0H

STO
RE

RG

CPS
CPS

TMA
C

TMA
C

TMA
C

TMA
C

TMA
C

TMA
C

TMA
C

TMA
C

TMA
C

TMA
C

TMA
C

TMA
C

TMA
C

GRA
SS

CPS
BEN

C H

BEN
CH

BEN
CH

BEN
CH

BENCH

BEN
CH

BEN
CHBEN

CH

BEN
CH FB

FIR
S F

ARM
 PR

IMA
RY 

SCH
OO

L

CLA
SS 

ROO
M

CLA
SS 

ROO
M

CLA
SS 

ROO
MCLA

SS 
ROO

MCLA
SS 

ROO
M

CPS

IRF
1.4H

IRF
1.4H

CLF
1.2H

IRF
 1.1

H

IRF1.1H

SPSCPS

CPS

SPS
CPS

CPS
CPS

SPS
SPS

SPS

FB

GRA
SS

GRA
SS

GRA
SS

GRA
SS

SHR
UBS

SHR
UBS

WMF2.1H

CLF1.2H

CLF1.2H

CLF1.2H

CLF1.2H

CLF1.2H

PF 1
.0H

PF1.0H

PF1.0H

TMA
C

TMA
C

TMA
C

PF0.9H

BW
2.2H

MIX
ED 

SHR
UBS

BW
 2.2

H

BW 2.2H

CLF1.7H

CLF1.7H

CLF1.7H
BW+IRF1.6H

PF 1
.0H

BEN
CH

SIG
N

RAMPUP

CON
CRAM

PUP

RAM
P U

PBRW
+IR

F

BRW+IRF

BRW
RAM

P U
P

CPS
RAM

PU
P

RW
P

G

IL 2
0.03

150
150

150

1 50

150

(R)

WA
TER

PE

L
P

FIG

LVSL

LV
LV

LV SL

LVS
L

LV

L V S
L

LV

WMF2.1H

UP

UP

UP

UP

C00
01

C00
33

17m
\U+

00B
2

Gar
age

C00
34

Boi
lerR

oom
50m

\U+
00B

2
C00

02

F00
25

Hal
l

212
m\U

+00
B2

F00
01

C00
27

Kitc
hen

25m
\U+

00B
2

C00
08

C00
29

Kitc
hen

4m\
U+0

0B2
C00

04

C00
31

Ele
ctric

ityR
oom

6m\
U+0

0B2
C00

03

Cor
rido

r
4m\

U+0
0B2

C00
06

C00
28

Kitc
hen

Toi
let

6m\
U+0

0B2
C00

07

C00
30

Mal
eT

oile
t

2m\
U+0

0B2
C00

05

F00
23

Lib r
ary

/IT
Roo

m
77m

\U+
00B

2
F00

06

Mai
nE

ntra
nce

18m
\U+

00B
2

F00
11

Cor
rido

r
68m

\U+
00B

2
F00

12

Adm
inO

ffice
18m

\U+
00B

2
F00

13

Sto
re

5m\
U+0

0B2
F00

15
Sto

re
6m\

U+0
0B2

F00
20

Dep
ut y

Hea
dtea

che
r' sO

ffice
26m

\U+
00B

2
F00

16

Hal
l

81m
\U+

00B
2

F00
19

Cor
rido

r
37m

\U+
00B

2
F00

18

Sm
allC

lass
roo

m
18m

\U+
00B

2
F00

17

Hea
dte

ach
er's

Off i
ce

17m
\U+

00B
2

F00
14

Sta
ffR

eso
urce

sA
rea

17m
\U+

00B
2

F00
21

Boi
lerR

oom
10m

\U+
00B

2
F00

23
St a

f fR
oom

47m
\U+

00B
2

F00
22

F00
18

Fem
ale

Toi
let

10m
\U+

00B
2

F00
07

F00
17

Cor
rido

r
55m

\U+
00B

2
F00

05

F00
19

Cle
ane

r
3m\

U+0
0B2

F00
08

F00
22

Mal
eT

oile
t

8m\
U+0

0B2
F00

09

F00
16

Cla
ssro

om
55m

\U+
00B

2
F00

25

Offi
ce

17m
\U+

00B
2

F00
04F00

17A
Med

ical
Roo

m
12m

\U+
00B

2
F00

03

Sto
re

2m\
U+0

0B2
F00

24

F00
12

Cor
rido

r
123

m\U
+00

B2
F00

26

F00
14

Girl
sTo

ilet
10m

\U+
00B

2
F00

27

F00
13

Cl a
ssro

om
56m

\U+
00B

2
F00

29

F00
10

Cla
ssro

om
55m

\U+
00B

2
F00

31

F00
09

St o
re

17m
\U+

00B
2

F00
30

F00
11

Girl
sTo

ilet
5m\

U+0
0B2

F00
28

F00
07

Sto
re

5m\
U+0

0B2
F00

32
F00

08
Boy

sTo
ilet

9m\
U+0

0B2
F00

33

F00
06

Cla
ssro

om
56m

\U+
00B

2
F00

34

F00
02

Sta
irwe

ll
2 0m

\U+
00B

2
F00

35

WC
-1

WH
B-

1

SHO
WE

R'S
-0

UR
INA

L'S
-0

WC
-0

WH
B-

3

SHO
WE

R'S
-0

U R
INA

L' S
-0

WC
-1

WH
B-

1

SHO
WE

R'S
-0

UR
INA

L'S
-0

SHO
WE

R'S
-0

UR
INA

L' S
-0

WH
B-

3
WC

-3

SHO
WE

R'S
-0

WC
-0

UR
INA

L'S
-0

WH
B-

1

F00
02

3m\
U+0

0B2
PE

Sto
re

SHO
WE

R'S
-0

WC
-1

UR
INA

L'S
-2

WH
B-

2

UR
INA

L'S
-0

WC
-1

SHO
WE

R'S
-0

WH
B-

1

F00
21

Dis
able

d
3m\

U+0
0B2

F00
10

SHO
W E

R'S
-1

UR
INA

L' S
-0

WH
B-

2
WC

-0

SHO
WE

R'S
- 0

UR
INA

L'S
-0

WH
B-

1
WC

-0

UR
INA

L'S
-0

SHO
WE

R'S
-0

WH
B-

0
WC

-4

UR
INA

L'S
-0

SHO
WE

R'S
-0

WH
B-

6
WC

-0

UR
INA

L'S
-0

SHO
WE

R'S
-0

WH
B-

0
WC

-2

UR
INA

L'S
-0

SHO
WE

R'S
-0

WH
B-

1
WC

-0
UR

INA
L'S

-0
SHO

WE
R'S

-0

WH
B-

1
WC

-0
UR

INA
L'S

-0
SHO

WE
R'S

-0

WH
B-

1
WC

-0
UR

INA
L'S

-0
SHO

WE
R'S

-0

WH
B-

1
WC

-0

UR
INA

L'S
-0

SHO
WE

R'S
-0

WH
B-

6
WC

-0

UR
INA

L'S
-5

SHO
WE

R'S
-0

WH
B-

0
WC

-2

1m\
U+0

0B2
Sto

re
F00

36

478
3

3480

105
45

7490

550
0

4630

164
98

13217

976
9

8725

3744 3700 3770 3670 2190

4230 8120 4990

101
80

470
0

470
0

469
0

469
0

468
9

620
0

100
00

436
0

437
0

2780 3879

8580

8695

8580

8700

705
5

704
5

705
5

705
0

532
0

3160

FF
C C

UP

UP
UP

UP
UP

UP
UP

UPUP

Sto
re

Toil
et

WH
B-

1

WCWC

min

Classroom 60sq.m.

Heckmondwike Diamond

min

PB

PB

PB

C/Lofprojectoranddrywhiteboard

PB

C.H.

C.H.
M

PB

PB

PB

PB

CH PB

min

C.H.

PB

CH PB

PB

Classroom 60sq.m.

PB

PB

C/Lofprojectoranddrywhiteboard

PB

PB

PB

PB

818818
1619818

Exis
ting

 ma
nho

le b
elie

ved
 to b

e
foul

 dra
inag

e, a
ppro

xim
ate

loca
tion

 ind
icate

d

The
 con

trac
tor 

mu
st c

arry
 ou

t an
 inv

est
igat

i
sur

face
 wa

ter 
dra

inag
e in

 the
 vic

init
y of

 the
 

and
 agr

ee t
he p

rop
ose

d n
ew 

 fou
l an

d su
rfa c

and
 con

nec
tion

s in
to t

he e
xis

ting
 sys

tem
s w

Ex is
t i ng

f oul
dra

ina g
e, a

p pro
xi m

at e
lo ca

t io n
i ndi c

at ed

20850

7895 760
0

New
100

m m
SW

Dra
in

New
100

mm
SW

Dra
in

790
0

RW
P

ELEC

RAM
PU

P

O/H

O/H TEL

EX.
 DR

AIN
 

REM
OVE

D 

Pro
pos

ed H
ired

 Tem
pora

ry C
lass

room
Sum

mer
 200

9 B
y O

ther
s.

This
 ma

p is
 bas

ed u
pon

 Ord
nan

ce S
urve

y m
ater

ial w
ith t

he p
erm

issio
n of

 Ord
nan

ce
Sur

vey
 on 

beh
alf o

f the
 Co

ntro
ller 

of H
er M

ajes
ty's 

Sta
tion

ary 
Offi

ce  
c  C

row
n C

opy
righ

t. 
Una

utho
rise

d re
prod

ucti
on i

nfrin
ges

 Cro
wn 

Cop
yrig

ht a
nd m

ay l
ead

 to p
rose

cuti
on o

r
civil

 pro
cee

ding
s. L

ond
on B

orou
gh O

f En
field

 LA
 086

363
 200

0.

N

Pro
pos

ed T
emp

orar
y Cl

ass
room

Sum
mer

 200
9

Exis
ting

 tem
pora

ry c
lass

room
to b

e de
mol

ishe
d by

 oth
ers

Spr
ing 

/ Su
mm

er 2
009

Sch
ool 

Gro
und

s  : 
 Are

a 2.
782

 ha

D/E
230

/001
785

/B/A
L(0

)01
23/0

3/09
JED

Firs
 Far

m P
rim

ary 
Sch

ool
Ray

leig
h R

oad
, Lo

ndo
n, N

13 5
QP

Tem
por

ary 
Cla

ssr
oom

, Un
it B

 - S
umm

er 2
009

Loc
atio

n P
lan

Rev
isio

n
Dra

wing
 No

.

Dra
wing

 Titl
e

Dat
e

Dra
wn

Pro
ject

CAD
 File

 No
.

Dat
e

Not
es

Rev

Cou
ncil

JEDArc
hite

ct \ 
S.O

.

1:12
50 @

 A3
Sca

le

PO
 Bo

x 5
1, C

ivic
 Ce

ntr
e,

Silv
er S

tre
et, 

Enf
ield

, M
idd

les
ex 

EN
1 3

XB
Tel

: 02
0 8

379
 67

05
Cop

y pa
th fr

om 
Win

dow
s Ex

plor
er

rch
itec

tur
al

Page 44



Floo
r

acc
ess

trap

Wa
ste 

pipe
 for

con
den

sing
pipe

.

WM
E

Wa
ste 

pipe
for con

den
sing

pipe
.

We
stE

leva
tion

,A

Eas
tEl

eva
tion

,C

Nor
thE

leva
tion

,B

Sou
thE

leva
tion

,D

Exte
rnal

 wa
ll co

lour
 to m

atch
exis

ting
 sch

ool 
buil

ding
 bric

kwo
rk. 

WP
B p

ly

WP
B p

ly

Exte
rnal

 wa
ll co

lour
 to

mat
ch e

xist
ing 

sch
ool

buil
ding

 bric
kwo

rk. 

3150

Ven
tilat

ed S
unp

ipes
 /

roof
ligh

ts to
 toil

ets

B

C

D

A

350

Exte
rnal

 wa
ll co

lour
 to m

atch
exis

ting
 sch

ool 
buil

ding
 bric

kwo
rk. 

WP
B p

ly

min

Cla
ssro

om
60s

q.m
.

Lob
by

11.8
sq.m

Pro
ject

or ty
pe d

ry w
hite

with
 grid

 line
s.

Dad
o

Tru
nkin

g

Fire
 ext

ingu
ishe

r

Hec
kmo

ndw
ike

Diam
ond

Hec
kmo

ndw
ike 

Sup
aco

rd

Poly
flor 

Poly
safe

Sta
nda

rd
Poly

flor 
Poly

safe
 Sta

nda
rd

Toil
et fl

oors
 :  P

olyf
lor P

olys
afe,

 Sta
nda

rd,
with

 150
mm

 cov
ed s

kirti
ng, 

usin
g th

e
floo

ring
 and

 cov
e fo

rme
rs.

Trim
 to t

op e
dge

 of c
ove

d sk
irtin

g.

min

Pro
ject

or s
upp

ort b
rack

et,
to b

e hu
ng f

rom
 cei

ling
.

PB

PB

PB

C/L
 of p

roje
ctor

 and
 dry

 wh
ite b

oard

PB
C.H

.

C.H
.M

PB
PB

PB

PBCH PB

min C.H
.PBCH PB

PB

30 N
o co

at h
ook

s on
 250

m h
igh 

bac
king

plat
e se

cure
d to

 wa
ll (h

eigh
t to 

be
con

firm
ed).

Pinb
oard

 stri
p ru

n ab
ove

 the
se i

tem
s.

Cla
ssro

om
60s

q.m
.

Pro
ject

or ty
pe d

ry w
hite

with
 grid

 line
s.

Dad
o

Tru
nkin

g

Fire
 ext

ingu
ishe

r

Hec
kmo

ndw
ike 

Sup
aco

rd

Poly
flor 

Poly
safe

 Sta
nda

rd

Pro
ject

or s
upp

ort b
rack

et,
to b

e hu
ng f

rom
 cei

ling
.

PB

PB C/L
 of p

roje
ctor

 and
 dry

 wh
ite b

oard

PB

PB
PB

PB

30 N
o co

at h
ook

s on
 250

m h
igh 

bac
king

plat
e se

cure
d to

 wa
ll (h

eigh
t to 

be
con

firm
ed).

Pinb
oard

 stri
p ru

n ab
ove

 the
se i

tem
s.

818
818

161
9

818

789
5

7900

208
50

7600

Buil
ding

 foo
tprin

t
Tota

l are
a 

164
.715

sq.m
.

Sto
res 

inc.
lunc

hbo
x st

.
& se

rvic
es

5sq
.m e

ach

Poly
flor 

Poly
safe

Sta
nda

rd

RL
RL

RL
RL

D/E
230

/001
785

/B/A
L(0

)04
24/0

3/09
JED

Firs
 Far

m P
rim

ary 
Sch

ool
Ray

leig
h R

oad
, Lo

ndo
n, N

13 5
QP

Tem
por

ary 
Cla

ssr
oom

, Un
it B

 - S
um

mer
 200

9
Pla

n an
d E

leva
tion

s
Rev

ision
Dra

wing
 No

.

Dra
wing

 Titl
e

Dat
e

Dra
wn

Pro
ject

CAD
 File

 No
.

Dat
e

Not
es

Rev

Cou
ncil

JEDArc
hite

ct \ 
S.O

.

1:10
0 @

 A2
Sca

le

PO
 Bo

x 5
1, C

ivic
 Ce

ntr
e,

Silv
er S

tre
et, 

Enf
ield

, M
idd

les
ex 

EN
1 3

XB
Tel

: 02
0 8

379
 67

05
Cop

y pa
th fr

om 
Win

dow
s Ex

plor
er

rch
itec

tur
al

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



© Crown copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Enfield.
License No LA086363, 2003

Scale 1/2500 Date 10/6/2009

LBE/09/0015

Centre = 530495 E 195457 N

Page 47



Application Number:  LBE/09/0015 Ward:  Southgate       
Date of Registration:  13th May 2009 

Contact:  Kate Perry 3846 

Location: EVERSLEY INFANT SCHOOL, CHASEVILLE PARK ROAD, LONDON, N21 1PD 

Proposal: Installation of a temporary classroom building to south of main building. 

Applicant Name & Address:

London Borough of Enfield 
C/O Agent 

Agent Name & Address:

Mr Joe Pellegrini, Architectural Services 
CIVIC CENTRE 
SILVER STREET 
ENFIELD
MIDDLESEX 
EN1 3XA 

Recommendation: In accordance with the Town and Country Planning (General) Regulations 
1992, the application be deemed to be GRANTED subject to the following conditions 

1. C14 Details of Access and Junction 

2. C50 Limited Period Permission 

Site and Surroundings 

The application site is a School situated within a predominantly residential area at the corner of 
Oakwood Crescent and Chaseville Park Road. The School comprises a 1.96 hectare site and 
consists of a 2 storey junior building of 1173 sq.m, and a separate single storey Infants building of 
1173 sq.m. There are also 2 existing temporary classrooms. Vehicular access is from Chaseville 
Park Road. Pedestrian access is from Oakwood Crescent and Chaseville Park Road.  

Proposal

Permission is sought to install a temporary single storey classroom building to the south side of 
the Infant School on the school playing field. The proposal is part of a longer term plan to allow 
the overall expansion of the school from a 2 form entry to a 3 form entry school but in the short 
term is required to address current demand for school places. It is anticipated that the building 
would be required on the site for a maximum of four years.  

The classroom building would measure 22.2m in width, 8.2m in depth and a maximum of 4m in 
height with a flat roof.  At its closest, the new building would be 35m from the site boundary where 
it abuts the garden fence of no. 30 Oakwood Crescent.  

Relevant History 

None

Page 48



Consultation

Public

Consultation letters have been sent to 75 neighbouring properties. One response has been 
received from the occupier of No. 53 Oakwood Crescent raising objection on the following 
grounds:

- The overall site is too small to be able to take any further development. 
- There would be an increase in traffic and car parking on local roads. 

External None 

Internal

Transportation Planning raise no objection 

Relevant Policies 

London Plan

3A.17  Addressing the needs of London’s diverse population 
3A.24        Education Facilities 
3D10  Metropolitan Open Land 
3D.11  Open Space 
4B.5         Creating an inclusive environment 
4B.8          Respect local context and communities 

Unitary Development Plan

(I)GD1  Regard to surroundings 
(I)GD2       Development to improve the environment 
(II)GD3      Character and Appearance 
(II)GD6      Traffic generation 
(II)GD8      Access & servicing 
(II)CS1      To facilitate through the planning process the work of various 
             community services 
(II)CS2            To ensure development for community services complies 

with the Council’s environmental polices 
(II)O5  Development adjacent to MOL 
(II)010  Contribution of Open Space 

Local Development Framework - Core Strategy Preferred Options

The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires the Council to replace the UDP with a 
Local Development Framework (LDF). The LDF Core Strategy will set out the spatial vision and 
strategic objectives for the Borough. The Core Strategy is at an early stage in its adoption 
process. As this continues the weight given to it will grow and the relevant objectives are reported 
to demonstrate the degree to which the proposals are consistent with the emerging policy 
direction.

SO3  Protect and enhance Enfield's environmental quality 
SO9  New social facilities 

Page 49



SO10 Address social deprivation, child poverty and inequalities in health and educational 
attainment

SO16  Preserve the local distinctiveness 
SO17 Safeguard established communities and the quality of the local environment 

Other Material Considerations

PPS1         Delivering Sustainable Communities 
PPG13  Transportation 
PPS17  Open Space, Sport and Recreation 

Analysis 

Impact on Character and Appearance of Surrounding Area

The proposed single storey building would reflect the single storey form of the other existing 
temporary buildings at Eversley Junior School. Whilst it would have a contrasting appearance to 
that of the main school building due to its temporary nature and means of construction, it would 
not represent an overly prominent structure. In the short term therefore, and acknowledging the 
need for school places, it is considered that it would not detract from the appearance and 
character of the school or the visual amenities of the surrounding area.  

Impact on Neighbouring Properties

The proposed building would be sited a minimum of 32 metres from the boundary of the site with 
the rear garden of No. 30 Oakwood Crescent which is the closest residential property. This 
property has a close-boarded fence and a significant level of vegetation screening along its north 
and eastern boundaries. On this basis, the building would not affect the outlook or amenities 
enjoyed by these residential occupiers. 

Impact on Traffic Generation and Parking

The proposal would result in 4 additional members of full time staff taking the total number of full-
time employees to 78.  There is no increase in the number of pupils. As a result, it is accepted 
that no increase in parking on site is required and it is considered that any additional traffic 
associated with the proposal would not harm the existing free flow and safety of traffic on 
Chaseville Park Road or Oakwood Crescent. 
However, the proposal will form part of an overall plan to extend the permanent school buildings 
to increase it from a two-form entry to a three-form entry school. As well as addressing the 
current demand for additional school places, the building proposed will also provide classroom 
space for the existing students whilst building works to the main school buildings are carried out.  
Impact of traffic generation will be considered at this stage. 

In terms of access arrangements for contractors’ vehicles, the plans indicate a temporary access 
from Oakwood Crescent. No details regarding the design or precise location of the access have 
been submitted and details of this would be required by condition to ensure that there would be 
no adverse impact on highway safety.

Conclusion

The additional classroom accommodation supports current educational need at the school 
pending more comprehensive proposals that are being developed and, in the light of the above 
assessment, it is considered that the proposed development is acceptable. The proposal would 
also be consistent with the Council’s emerging strategic objectives that encourage new social 

Page 50



facilities and address inequalities in educational attainment whilst safeguarding the quality of the 
local environment.  
Accordingly it is recommended that planning permission is granted for the following 
reasons:

1. The proposed temporary classroom meets an educational need and is a valuable 
community facility that would not detract from the character and appearance or the visual 
amenities of the surrounding area having regard to Policies (I)GD1, (I)GD2 and (II)GD3 of 
the Unitary Development Plan, as well as the objectives of PPS1 and PPS3. 

2. The proposed temporary classroom would not affect the amenities of adjoining or nearby 
residential properties having regard to Policies (I)GD1 and (I)GD2 of the Unitary 
Development Plan, as well as the objectives of PPS1 and PPS3. 

3. The proposed development does not involve an increase in pupils at the school and 
therefore, does not give rise to conditions prejudicial to the free flow and safety of vehicles 
and pedestrians using the adjoining highways having regard to Policies (II)GD6 and 
(II)GD7 of the Unitary Development Plan. 

Page 51



2200

R
e

c
e

p
ti
o

n
 C

la
s
s
ro

o
m

6
0

s
q
.m

. 
N

T
S

L
o

b
b

y
1

1
.8

s
q
.m

P
ro

je
c
to

r 
ty

p
e

 d
ry

 w
h

it
e

w
it
h

 g
ri

d
 l
in

e
s
.

D
a

d
o

T
ru

n
k
in

g

F
ir

e
 e

x
ti
n

g
u

is
h

e
r

H
e

c
k
m

o
n

d
w

ik
e

D
ia

m
o

n
d

H
e

c
k
m

o
n

d
w

ik
e
 S

u
p

a
c
o

rd

P
o
ly

fl
o

r 
P

o
ly

s
a

fe
S

ta
n

d
a

rd

P
o
ly

fl
o

r 
P

o
ly

s
a

fe
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd

T
o

ile
t 

fl
o
o

rs
 :

  
P

o
ly

fl
o

r 
P

o
ly

s
a

fe
, 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

,
w

it
h

 1
5

0
m

m
 c

o
v
e

d
 s

k
ir

ti
n

g
, 

u
s
in

g
 t

h
e

fl
o

o
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 c

o
v
e

 f
o
rm

e
rs

.
T

ri
m

 t
o

 t
o

p
 e

d
g

e
 o

f 
c
o
v
e

d
 s

k
ir

ti
n
g

.

P
ro

je
c
to

r 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 b
ra

c
k
e

t,
to

 b
e

 h
u

n
g

 f
ro

m
 c

e
ili

n
g

.

P
B

P
B

P
B

C
/L

 o
f 

p
ro

je
c
to

r 
a

n
d

 d
ry

 w
h

it
e

 b
o

a
rd

P
B

C
.H

.

C
.H

.

M

P
B

P
B

P
B

P
B

P
B

C
H

P
B

R
e

c
e

p
ti
o

n
 C

la
s
s
ro

o
m

6
0

s
q
.m

. 
N

T
S

P
ro

je
c
to

r 
ty

p
e

 d
ry

 w
h

it
e

w
it
h

 g
ri

d
 l
in

e
s
.

D
a

d
o

T
ru

n
k
in

g

F
ir

e
 e

x
ti
n

g
u

is
h

e
r

H
e

c
k
m

o
n

d
w

ik
e
 S

u
p

a
c
o

rd

P
o
ly

fl
o

r 
P

o
ly

s
a

fe
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd

P
ro

je
c
to

r 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 b
ra

c
k
e

t,
to

 b
e

 h
u

n
g

 f
ro

m
 c

e
ili

n
g

.

P
B

P
B

C
/L

 o
f 

p
ro

je
c
to

r 
a

n
d

 d
ry

 w
h

it
e

 b
o

a
rd

P
B

C
.H

.

P
B

P
B P
B

P
B

P
BC

H

P
B

P
B

3
3

 N
o

 c
o

a
t 

h
o

o
k
s
 o

n
 2

5
0

m
 h

ig
h

 b
a

c
k
in

g
p

la
te

 s
e

c
u

re
d

 t
o

 w
a

ll 
(h

e
ig

h
t 

to
 b

e
c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

).
P

in
b

o
a

rd
 s

tr
ip

 a
b
o

v
e

.

3
3

 N
o

 c
o

a
t 

h
o

o
k
s
 o

n
 2

5
0

m
 h

ig
h

 b
a

c
k
in

g
p

la
te

 s
e

c
u

re
d

 t
o

 w
a

ll 
(h

e
ig

h
t 

to
 b

e
c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

).
P

in
b

o
a

rd
 s

tr
ip

 a
b
o

v
e

.

S
to

re
s
 i
n

c
.

lu
n
c
h

b
o

x
 s

t.
&

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

5
s
q
.m

 e
a

c
h

P
o
ly

fl
o

r 
P

o
ly

s
a

fe
S

ta
n

d
a

rd

B
u

ild
in

g
 f

o
o

tp
ri
n

t
T

o
ta

l 
a

re
a

 
1

6
4

.7
1

5
s
q
.m

.P
B

F
lo

o
r

a
c
c
e

s
s

tr
a

p

W
a

s
te

 p
ip

e
 f

o
r

c
o
n

d
e
n

s
in

g

p
ip

e
.

W
M

E
W

a
s
te

 p
ip

e
 f

o
r

c
o
n

d
e
n

s
in

g
p

ip
e
.

R
L

R
L

R
L

R
L

S
e
rv

ic
e

s
 r

is
in

g
 i
n

to
 s

to
re

 :
  

E
le

c
 c

a
b

le
 i
n

 c
a

b
le

 d
u

c
t,

2
5

m
m

 M
D

P
E

 d
ia

 w
a

te
r 

m
a

in
 w

it
h

 s
to

p
 c

o
c
k
 

a
n

d
 n

o
n

 r
e
tu

rn
 v

a
lv

e
,

th
re

e
 c

a
b

le
 d

u
c
ts

 w
it
h

 d
ra

w
e

r 
w

ir
e

s
,

in
to

 s
to

re
.

E
le

c
 d

is
t 

b
o

a
rd

 (
lo

c
k
a

b
le

) 
a

t 
h

ig
h

 l
e

v
e

l
W

a
te

r 
h

e
a

te
r.

F
lo

o
r 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 h

a
tc

h
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

.

2
0

8
5

0
 N

T
S

7900 NTS

7600 NTS

7
8

9
5

 N
T

S

2
3

5
0

3
1

0
m

m
C L

2
3

5
0

 w
id

e
 p

a
th

 t
o

 b
e

 l
o

c
a

te
d

 c
e

n
tr

a
lly

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 g
a

p
 i
n

h
e

d
g
e

 t
o

 w
e

s
t 

a
n

d
 f

ir
s
t 

s
ilv

e
r 

b
ir
c
h

 t
o

 t
h

e
 e

a
s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 g
a

p
.

C
e

n
tr

e
 l
in

e
 o

f 
p

a
th

.
C

e
n

tr
e

 l
in

e
 o

f 
te

m
p

o
ra

ry
 b

u
ild

in
g
.

N
o

rt
h

E
le

v
a

ti
o

n
,

A

S
o

u
th

E
le

v
a

ti
o

n
,

C
W

e
s

t
E

le
v
a

ti
o

n
,

D

P
L

A
N

E
a

s
t

E
le

v
a

ti
o

n
,

B

B

C

D

A

3150

F
in

is
h

e
d

 t
a

rm
a

c
 l
e

v
e

l
to

 f
ro

n
t 

o
f 

b
u

ild
in

g

9
0

0
m

m
 a

p
p

ro
x
 h

e
ig

h
t 

W
P

B
 p

ly
 s

k
ir

t 
(m

a
tt

 b
la

c
k
 s

ta
in

e
d

 f
in

is
h

),
 b

o
tt

o
m

 e
d

g
e

 t
o

 b
e

 2
5

m
m

 a
b

o
v
e

 f
in

is
h

e
d

 g
ro

u
n

d
 l
e

v
e

l 

E
x
te

rn
a

l 
w

a
ll 

c
o

lo
u

r 
to

 m
a

tc
h

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
b

u
ild

in
g

 b
ri
c
k
w

o
rk

. 

B
ri

c
k

W
P

B
 p

ly

B
ri

c
k

9
0

0
m

m
 a

p
p

ro
x

h
e

ig
h

t 
W

P
B

 p
ly

F
o

u
r 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 m

a
tu

re
 s

ilv
e

r 
b

ir
c
h

 t
re

e
s
 t

o
 r

e
m

a
in

. 

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 h

e
d

g
e

 a
n

d
 c

h
a

in
lin

k
 f

e
n

c
e

. 

E
x
te

rn
a

l 
w

a
ll 

c
o

lo
u

r 
to

m
a

tc
h

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 s

c
h

o
o

l
b

u
ild

in
g
 b

ri
c
k
w

o
rk

. 

W
P

B
 p

ly

869

D
/E

2
2

8
/0

0
1

7
3

8
/A

L
(0

)0
4

1
2

/0
3

/0
9

J
E

D

E
v
e

rs
le

y
 S

c
h

o
o

l

C
h

a
s

e
v
il

le
 P

a
rk

 R
o

a
d

, 
L

o
n

d
o

n
, 

N
2

1
 1

P
D

D
o

u
b

le
 T

e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 C
la

s
s

ro
o

m
 -

 S
u

m
m

e
r 

2
0

0
9

P
la

n
 a

n
d

 E
le

v
a

ti
o

n
s

 o
f 

B
u

il
d

in
g

R
e

v
is

io
n

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
.

D
ra

w
in

g
 T

it
le

D
a

te

D
ra

w
n

P
ro

je
c
t

C
A

D
 F

ile
 N

o
.

D
a

te
N

o
te

s
R

e
v

C
o

u
n

c
il

J
E

D
A

rc
h

it
e

c
t 

\ 
S

.O
.

1
:1

0
0

 @
 A

1
S

c
a

le

P
O

 B
o

x
 5

1
, 
C

iv
ic

 C
e
n

tr
e
,

S
il
v
e
r 

S
tr

e
e

t,
 E

n
fi

e
ld

, 
M

id
d
le

s
e

x
 E

N
1

 3
X

B

T
e

l:
 0

2
0

 8
3
7

9
 6

7
0
5

C
o

p
y
 p

a
th

 f
ro

m
 W

in
d

o
w

s
 E

x
p

lo
re

r

rc
h

it
e

c
tu

ra
l

Page 52



EVE
RSL

EY
JUN

IOR
SCH

OO
L

B loc
kH

-G
r ou n

dF l
oo r

CHA
SEV

ILLE
PAR

K R
OAD

PO LB
Cha

sevi
lle P

arad
e

26

77

67

55
12

7

OAKWOODCRESCENT

176
89

81

8789

191

51

63

73

85

5

11
15

19
29

39
49

14
30

EVERSLEYCLOSE

OAK
WO

OD
CRE

SCE
NT

16

1

EVE
RSL

EY
INF

ANT
S

SCH
OO

L

Cla
ssro

om
B00

29
54mB 00

01

Cla
ssro

om
B00

2 8
57mB00

0 8

Mus
ic R

oom
B00

27
57mB00

09

Boy
sTo

ilet
B0 0

26
8 mB00

10

St o
re

B00
31

15mB00
06

Sto
re6mB00
04

Cor
rido

r
B00

25
52 mB00

07

Girl
sTo

ilet
B 00

30
13mB 00

02

M ed
ical

Roo
m

B00
2 5A

5mB00
0 3

Kit c
hen

Offi
ce

J00
18

6mJ00
14

Sto
re

J0 0
17

8 m

Kitc
hen

J00
16

5 1mJ00
16

Sto
r e

J 00
20

4mJ00
15

Toil
e t

J00
19

1mJ00
13

Hal
l

B 00
21

184
m

B 00
18

Cor
ri do

r
B00

02
122

m
B00

23

Cla
sss

ro om
B0 0

13
52mB0 0

21

Boi l
erR

oom
BB0

34
33mB00

36

S ta
ffR

oom
B00

06
24mB00

31
De p

uty
B00

04

13mB00
28

Car
eta k

er's
B0 0

03

11mB00
27

Girl
sTo

ile t
B00

24
1 1mB00

25

Boy
sTo

ilet
B 00

23
9mB0 0

24
Sto

re
B 00

22
5mB00

19

Car
e tak

er's
Off i

ce
1 6mB00

37
Car

eta k
er's

Wo
r ksh

op
B 00

32
17mB 00

34

Elec
tri ca

l
B00

09
4mB00

30
Fem

ale
Toil

e t
B00

08
8mB00

3 3

Toil
et

B 00
33

3mB00
3 5

Sho
wer

B 00
05

3m

B0 0
17

B0 0
15

Din
ing

Hal
l

87m

B 00
12

B0 0
22

Cl a
sss

r oom
54m

B00
11

B00
26

Cla
sss

room
55m

B00
10

B00
29

Cla
s ss

room
5 5mOffi

ce
Hea

dt ea
che

r'sO
ffic e

In ta
ke

Roo
m

Cle
an e

r'sS
to re

B 00
20

5m B00
14

B 00
07

B00
32

5m Toil
et

Mal
e

52mC00
01 H20

02
Clas

sroo
m

30mA00
22 A00

19
Stai

rwel
l

10mA00
27 A00

21
Girls

Toil
et

3mA00
26 A00

21A
Stor

e3mA00
25 Sho

wer
/

11mA00
23 A00

18
Boy

sTo
ilet

55mA00
21 A00

22
Clas

sroo
m

62mA00
19 A00

16
Corr

idor

50mA00
13 A00

01
Stai

rwel
l

5mA00
15 Mee

ting

2mA00
17 A00

17
Elec

tricit
y

2mA00
14 A00

03
Stor

e6mA00
12 A00

02
Med

ical
Roo

m

21mA00
11 A00

13
Adm

inO
ffice

11mA00
10 A00

14
Hea

dtea
cher

'sO
ffice

196
m

A00
07 A00

04
Hall

9mA00
08 A00

11
Stor

e

5mA00
06 A00

09
Stor

e

4mA00
05 Stor

e

18mA00
04 A00

08
Kitc

hen

15mA00
01 A00

07
Stor

e

6mA00
02 A00

06
Corr

idor

10mA00
03 A00

05
PE

Stor
e

A00
09 Stor

e
A00

14A3m

Clas
sroo

m
A00

23
56mA00

20

Clas
sroo

m
A00

24
55mA00

18

Clas
sroo

m
A00

25
56mA00

16

Roo
m

Cup
bao

rd

Disa
bled A00

20
Toil

et

UP

DO
WN

DO
WN

J00
1 1

Lob
by

1mJ00
12

UP

UP
UP

UP

UP
1m Cor

rido
r

A00
21B

A00
24

RAM
P

UP

UP

RL
RL

RL
RL

6mC00
02 H20

03
Stor

e

12mC00
03 H20

01
Entr

ance
Lob

by

55mD00
03

H30
02

Cla
ssro

om

11mD00
01

H30
01

Entr
anc

e Lo
bby

6mD00
02

H30
03

Stor
e

Stor
e

Ca r
et ak

e rs
Ho u

s e
Acc

e ss
Ref

us e
d

Steep gradient

Steep gradient

Acc
ess

rout
e

Acc
ess

 rou
te a

cros
s sc

hoo
l fie

ld, t
rack

ing 
requ

ired
 to

prot
ect 

grou
nd. 

Incl
ude

 for 
mak

ing 
goo

d w
here

 trac
king

and
 cra

ne b
eare

rs lo
cate

d.

Tem
pora

ry a
cce

ss t
o be

 form
ed  

thro
ugh

 exi
stin

g sc
hoo

l ch
ainl

ink 
fenc

e, 
pos

ition
 bet

wee
n tw

o tre
es. 

Tak
e ou

t on
e co

ncre
te p

ost,
 sup

ply 
and

 fit d
oub

le
gate

s w
ith p

osts
 with

 fire
 brig

ade
 typ

e pa
dloc

k. C
hain

link 
to m

atch
 exi

stin
g.

Rein
stat

e fe
nce

 onc
e w

orks
 com

plet
e.

Loc
atio

n fo
r cra

ne.

Tem
pora

ry c
ross

ove
r to 

be p
rovi

ded
 By 

Oth
ers

in a
dva

nce
 of t

his 
con

trac
t.

Exis
ting

 tree
.

Do 
not 

dam
age

.
Her

as f
enc

ing 
spe

c ite
m 1

,
site

 com
pou

nd.

Mai
n sc

hoo
l ve

hicl
e ac

ces
s, in

corp
orat

ing,
staf

f / v
isito

r ca
rs, k

itch
en d

eliv
ery 

veh
icle

s,
refu

se a
nd e

mer
gen

cy v
ehic

les.
Ped

estr
ian 

acc
ess

Ped
estr

ian 
acc

ess

Ped
estr

ian
acc

ess

Ped
estr

ian
acc

ess

Ped
estr

ian
acc

ess

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Not
es:

Mai
n S

cho
ol e

ntra
nce

, Ch
ase

ville
 Pa

rk R
oad

, Lo
ndo

n, N
21 1

PD.
This

 acc
ess

 is n
ot to

 be 
use

d by
 the

 con
trac

tors
' ve

hicl
es.

Mai
n sc

hoo
l ve

hicl
e ac

ces
s, in

corp
orat

ing,
 sta

ff / v
isito

r ca
rs, k

itch
en

deli
very

 veh
icle

, ref
use

 and
 em

erge
ncy

 veh
icle

s.
Ped

estr
ians

.
Pup

il br
eak

fast
 clu

b, 8
am.

Cha
sev

ille 
Roa

d is
 ext

rem
ely 

bus
y.

Sch
ool 

Offi
ce.

The
 con

trac
tor i

s to
 rep

ort t
o th

e of
fice

 at t
he s

tart 
of th

e sc
hoo

l da
y.

Tel 
No 

: 02
08-3

60-7
370

Hea
d Te

ach
er : 

Mrs
.P. 

Wo
od.

Site
 Ma

nag
er : 

Mr.B
.Hu

ckle
.

Car
 par

king
 for 

sch
ool 

staf
f on

ly.

Ped
estr

ian 
acc

ess
 onl

y.
Use

d by
 afte

r sc
hoo

l clu
bs a

nd s
cho

ol h
olid

ay c
lub.

The
 sch

ool 
holi

day
 clu

b us
e th

e In
fant

s Sc
hoo

l ha
ll, d

inin
g ro

om
and

 fiel
d.

Sta
ff en

tran
ce, 

ped
estr

ian 
acc

ess
 onl

y.

Ped
estr

ian 
acc

ess
 onl

y.
Use

d by
 Infa

nts.
Tim

es  
:  8-

45a
m to

  9-3
0am

.
      

      
   3-

20p
m to

 3-5
0pm

.
Fro

m S
epte

mbe
r 20

09, 
also

 bet
wee

n 12
 and

 12-
30p

m.
Con

trac
tors

 Acc
ess

.
Tem

pora
ry a

cce
ss t

o be
 form

ed.
This

 ent
ranc

e on
ly is

 to b
e us

ed b
y th

e C
ontr

acto
r for

 this
 con

trac
t.

The
 are

a is
 con

jest
ed a

t the
 sta

rt an
d fin

ish 
of th

e sc
hoo

l da
y.

Dur
ing 

term
 tim

e sh
ould

 veh
icle

s ar
rive

 at t
he s

cho
ol d

urin
g th

ese
time

s th
en t

hey
 are

 to p
ark 

awa
y fro

m th
e vi

cini
ty o

f the
 sch

ool,
 and

 aw
ait 

the 
corr

ect 
time

 to a
ppro

ach
 the

 Sch
ool.

Mob
ile p

hon
e co

ntac
t wit

h th
e si

te a
gen

t for
 adv

ice 
on s

afe 
time

 to
app

roac
h th

e S
cho

ol. 
Wa

rnin
g si

gns
 to b

e pl
ace

d in
 Oa

kwo
od C

resc
ent 

and
 Ch

ase
ville

 Ro
ad

war
ning

 of s
ite e

ntra
nce

, lar
ge v

ehic
les 

turn
ing 

etc.
Boll

ards
 / no

 par
king

 sig
ns a

re to
 be 

plac
e in

 the
 vec

inity
 of t

he s
ite

entr
anc

e pr
ior t

o th
e de

liver
y of

 the
 bui

ldin
g un

its t
o en

sure
 del

iver
y

of th
e bu

ildin
g se

ctio
ns.

Lett
er to

 the
 res

iden
ts to

 wa
rn o

f the
 larg

e ve
hicl

es r
equ

iring
 acc

ess
alon

g th
e ro

ad, 
requ

esti
ng t

hat 
they

 do 
not 

park
 clo

se t
o th

e co
ntra

ctor
s

entr
anc

e du
ring

 the
 del

ivey
 per

iod 
of th

e bu
ildin

g se
ctio

ns .

Ped
estr

ian 
acc

ess
 onl

y.
Use

d by
 Jun

iors
.

Tim
es  

:  8-
40a

m to
  9-3

0am
.

      
      

  3-2
5pm

 to  
4pm

.
Fro

m S
epte

mbe
r 20

09, 
also

 bet
wee

n 12
 and

 12-
30p

m.

3

Avo
id

ove
rha

ngi
ng

tree

Hall

Din
ing 

room

Foo
tbal

l pit
ch

Aut
umn

 term
 : A

fter 
sch

ool 
foot

ball
 clu

b.

D/E
228

/001
738

/AL
(0)0

2
12/0

3/09
JED

Eve
rsle

y Sc
hoo

l
Cha

sev
ille 

Par
k R

oad
, Lo

ndo
n, N

21 1
PD

Dou
ble 

Tem
por

ary 
Cla

ssr
oom

 - S
umm

er 2
009

Site
 Pla

n, A
cce

ss &
 Co

mp
oun

d
Rev

isio
n

Dra
wing

 No
.

Dra
wing

 Titl
e

Dat
e

Dra
wn

Pro
ject

CAD
 File

 No
.

Dat
e

Not
es

Rev

Cou
ncil

JEDArc
hite

ct \ 
S.O

.

1:50
0 @

 A1
Sca

le

PO
 Bo

x 5
1, C

ivic
 Ce

ntr
e,

Silv
er S

tre
et, 

Enf
ield

, M
idd

les
ex 

EN
1 3

XB
Tel

: 02
0 8

379
 67

05
Cop

y pa
th fr

om 
Win

dow
s Ex

plor
er

rch
itec

tur
al

Page 53



© Crown copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Enfield.
License No LA086363, 2003

Scale 1/2500 Date 9/6/2009

LBE/09/0016

Centre = 534694 E 197076 N

Page 54



Application Number:  LBE/09/0016 Ward:  Southbury       
Date of Registration:  13th May 2009 

Contact:  Eloise Kiernan 3830 

Location: SUFFOLKS PRIMARY SCHOOL, BRICK LANE, ENFIELD, EN1 3PU 

Proposal: Installation of temporary classroom building with access ramps to south east of main 
building.

Applicant Name & Address:

Jo Pellegrini, London Borough of Enfield 
C/O Agent 

Agent Name & Address:

Mr Jo Pellegrini, Architectural Services 
CIVIC CENTRE 
SILVER STREET 
ENFIELD
MIDDLESEX 
EN1 3XA 

Recommendation: That planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED in accordance with 
Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 1992, subject to the 
following conditions: 

1. No works shall take place until details of the external colour finish of the building shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The works shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved plans. 

Reason - To ensure a satisfactory external appearance in compliance with UDP policies. 

2. C09 Details of Hard Surfacing 

3. C51A Time Limited Permission 

Site and Surroundings 

School campus situated within predominantly residential  

Proposal

The applicant seeks permission for the erection of a single storey double mobile unit to provide 
teaching space whilst building works are completed to the main school building. The building 
would be sited on an area of playing field to the south east of the main building and it would be 22 
metres in width by 8 metres in depth and features a flat roof design. The building would be 
constructed of prefabricated panel with steel featuring a timber roof, aluminium windows and 
hardwood doors. 

Relevant Planning Decisions 

Page 55



A number of planning permissions have been granted for extensions and alterations, however, 
these are of no particular relevance to this application. 

Consultation

Public

The application was advertised by neighbour notification letters to 45 adjoining occupiers. No 
representations were received.

External

None.

Internal

None

Relevant Policies 

The London Plan

3A.24  Education facilities 

Unitary Development Plan

(I) CS1   Community services 
(I) GD1  Appropriate regard to surroundings 
(II)GD3  Design 
(II) GD6  Implications to traffic 
(I)GD1   Appropriate regard to surroundings 

Local Development Framework - Core Strategy Preferred Options

The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires the Council to replace the UDP with a 
Local Development Framework (LDF). The LDF Core Strategy will set out the spatial vision and 
strategic objectives for the Borough. The Core Strategy is at an early stage in its adoption 
process. As this continues the weight given to it will grow and the relevant objectives are reported 
to demonstrate the degree to which the proposals are consistent with the emerging policy. 

Core policy 16  Children and young people 

Analysis 

Principle of the Development

The existing use of the site as a school has already been established and therefore the issues to 
be considered relate to design, impacts on residential amenity and highways implications 
including parking. 

Design and Impact on the Character of the Area

The proposed double mobile classroom has been well sited to the rear of the site and to the south 
east of existing school buildings and therefore would be well embedded and screened by existing 

Page 56



buildings. Additionally, its location at the start of an existing area of playing field maintains a good 
integration within the footprint of the existing buildings. 

The proposed buildings would feature a flat roofline and the choice of materials and finish are 
considered satisfactorily and would not have a detrimental impact on the appearance of the site 
or character of the street scene. Additionally, given the temporary nature of the building, which is 
required as teaching space whilst an extension is being implemented, it is considered 
satisfactory.

Impact on Neighbouring Amenities

There are residential properties, which have rear gardens abutting the site at Hammond Road, 
however due to the nature of the proposal, boundary treatment and separation distances of at 
least 60 metres from the common boundary, the proposal would not have a detrimental impact on 
residential amenity in terms of loss of sunlight/daylight, overbearing or additional noise 
disturbance. 

Access

The proposal incorporates an access ramp with handrail providing wheelchair access. 

Parking

The development does not propose any additionally parking and the site currently provides 21 
parking spaces and 10 cycle spaces with a PTAL rating of 2. Given that the mobile classroom is 
required on a temporary basis to provide classroom accommodation whilst an extension is being 
implemented to the main school, it is considered that the number of pupil numbers and teachers 
would not increase and therefore existing parking arrangements are deemed satisfactory.  

Conclusion

It is therefore recommended that planning permission be granted for the following reasons. 

1. The proposals due to their size and siting do not unduly affect the amenities of adjoining 
or nearby residential properties or detract from the character and appearance of the 
surrounding area having regard to Policy (I) GD1, (I) GD2, and (II) GD3 of the Unitary 
Development Plan. 

2. The proposed development improves school facilities having regard to Policy (II)CS1 and 
Policy 3A.24 of the London Plan 

Page 57



Exis
t SW

 M

A0031

Block A
 - Ground

Floor

TC
B

B
M

2
6
.1
2
m

25
.6
m

Te
nn

is
Co

ur
t

Suf
folk

sP
rim

ary
Sch

ool

NewPedestrian
Access

Futu
re P

arki
ng

Block C - Language Unit

C00011m Store
Toilet2m C0003

C0005
C0006Lobby3m C0002C0004

KitchenC0004
9m C00056m OfficeC0003

38m 
C0002Staff Room
C0006

C0007
ClassroomC0001

56m 

C0008
ClassroomC0007

43m C0009
CorridorC0008

11m 

C0010
Boiler RoomC0009

9m 

C0011
StoreC0010
8m 

C0012
LobbyC0012
26m 

C0017
ToiletC0014A
1m C0013

Computer RoomC0019
43m 

C0014
Male WC7m C0015

Female 2m 
C0016
ToiletC0018
12m C0020

StoreC0017
3m 

C0019
Therapy RoomC0016

12m 

C0018
Therapy RoomC0015

6m 

WC

MH
C
L
26
.7
2

UT
L

UT
L

MH
C
L
26
.7
1

UT
L

IC
C
L
26
.7
1

UT
L

MH
C
L
26
.6
9

G

15
0Ø

26
.5
2

IL
25
.3
3

IC
C
L
26
.6
0

UT
L

G
26
.4
6

MH
CL

26
.6
9

UT
L

MH
C
L
26
.7
4

A
P
P
A
R
A
T
U
S

A
P
P
A
R
A
T
U
S

16

15

ST
UM
P

A
P
P
A
R
A
T
U
S

21

18

IL
24
.7
9

IC
C
L
26
.5
0

17

22

BENCH

14

BENCH

13

BENCH BENCH

15
0Ø

23

19

20

MH
CL

26
.5
7

IL
25
.1
8

24

25

A
P
P
A
R
A
T
U
S

8

C
AR

PA
RK

7

BT

6
GV

TP

SP
EE
DLP

G
26
.5
6

SV

RE
RS

G
26
.5
7

IC
C
L

26
.7
9

IC
C
L

26
.7
2

H
U
M
P

15
0Ø

12

11

1
0
0
Ø

1
0
0
Ø

ID
2
6
.2
2

IL
25
.5
5

MH
C
L
26
.6
0

1
0
0
Ø

1
5
0
Ø

10
0Ø

IL
26
.1
0

MH
C
L
26
.6
3

RS

MH
CL

26
.6
7

UT
L UT

L

MH
C
L
26
.7
0

BT

LP
G

G
26
.2
1

26
.2
3

100
Ø

G
26
.3
4

RS

PO
ST

LP

LP

G
26
.3
5

LP

LP

SPEED

RS

LP

G
26
.4
1 G

26
.3
7

HUMP

9

CA
M

B
US
H

10

TE
NN
IS
C
OU
RT

4

3

2

IC
C
L

26
.7
9

LP

1

G
26
.8
0

B B

MH
C
L
26
.7
9

IL
25
.0
4

CHANNEL

MH
C
L
26
.8
4

IL
26
.3
7

10
0Ø

15
0Ø

1
5
0
Ø

IL
2
6
.1
6

IL
26
.0
8

MH
CL

26
.8
1

SP
EE
D

HU
M
P

IL 26.1
6150Ø

RE

RS

LP

1
0
0
Ø

15
0Ø

RS

RS

G
26
.6
2

LP

G
26
.5
7

2
2
5
Ø26

.7
1

IC
C
L

OF
CH
AM
B
ER

ON
LY

AP
PR
OX
.
EX
TE
ND

SPEED
HUMP

RS

LP

LP

IC
C
L

26
.6
8

CLF 1.2H

C
L
F
1
.3
H

IR
F
3
.0
H

IR
F
3
.0
H

IRF 3.0H

IR
F
3.
0H

C
LF
2.
8H

C
LF
2.
8H

C
LF
2.
8
H

IRF 2.0H

I R
F
2
. 0
H

TM
AC

TM
AC

TM
AC

GR
AS
S

GR
AS
S

GR
AS
S

GR
AS
S

TM
AC

TM
AC

GR
AS
S

GR
AS
S

TM
AC

GR
AS
S

TM
AC

GR
AS
S

GR
AS
S

GR
AS
S

TM
AC

GR
AS
S

GR
AS
S

TM
AC

TM
AC

TM
AC

TM
AC

TM
AC

TM
AC

TM
AC

TM
AC

TM
AC

TM
AC

TM
AC

GR
AS
S

GR
AS
S

IR
F
2.
0H

IR
F
2.
0H

GR
AS
S

TM
AC

TM
AC

TM
AC

GR
AS
S

15
0Ø

B
RI
C
K
LA
N
E

C
L
O
S
E

B
R
O
A
D
F
IE
L
D

S
Q
U
A
R
E

HA
M
MO

ND
RO

AD

BR
IC
K

LA
NE

BISHOPS CLOSE

R
IN

G
L
E
W
E
L
L

Re
ce

pt
io
n

Pl
ay

gr
ou

nd

Nu
rs

er
y

Pl
ay

gr
ou

nd

17

Existingairraidshelterapproxlocation

Par
king

A00
51

A00
52

Gro
up R

oom
17m

 

A00
52

A00
51

Sta
ff T

oile
t

5m 
A00

55

A00
49

Toil
ets

13m
 

A00
54

A00
48

Kitc
hen

5m A00
53

A00
47

Sto
re

7m 

A00
50

A00
50

Cor
rido

r
11m

 

A00
49

A00
46

Nur
sery

 Cla
ssro

om
66m

 

A00
48

A00
44

Clo
akro

om
14m

 

A00
47

A00
43

Nur
sery

 Cla
ssro

om
77m

 A00
45

A00
41

Cla
ssro

om
55m

 
A00

35

A00
01

Cor
rido

r
126

m 

A00
44

A00
40

Hea
dtea

che
r's O

ffice
20m

 A00
41

A00
39

Cor
rido

r
12m

 

A00
43

1m 

A00
39

A00
36

Adm
in O

ffice
19m

 A00
38

A00
35

Girl
s To

ilets
11m

 
A00

37

A00
35A

Boy
s To

ilets
7m 

A00
40

A00
36A

Adm
in O

ffice
10m

 

A00
36

A00
38

Wa
sh R

oom
14m

 

A00
34

A00
04

Libr
ary

46m
 

A0033
A0005

SEN
46m

74m
 

Cla
ssro

om
A00

42

A00
46

Bis
hop

Sto
pfo

rd
Sch

ool

A0029 Corrido
r

68m
A0002

A00
29

Cor
rido

r
68m

 
A00

02

UPUP

UP

UP

A0032
A0006

Classroo
m

70m

A0031
A0007

Classr
oom

70m 

A0030
A0008

ComputerRoom

46m

A0024 A0012
MedicalR

oom

19m 

A0028 A0011
Store

2m

A0023 A0013
Store

37m

A0014
A0034

Corrido
r

70m

A0021 A0014
Cleaner'sStore

7m 

A0018 A0016
Corridor

23m

A0017 A0023
Girls W

C
26m

A0019
A0016A

Boiler R
oom

2m

A0013
A0026

Classroo
m

54m 

A0012 A0026A
Classroom

54m

A0009
A0003

Corrido
r

53m

A0016 A0020
Store

8m

A0015
A0021

GroupRoom

13m

A0010
A0022

Hall
168m

A0011 A0033
PE Store

9m 

A0003 Store4m

A0002
A00033A

Store
8m 

A0001 A0032
Corrido

r
40m

A0004
A0030

Caretakers Office

11m
A0006 Store

6m

A0007 A0030A
Caretak

er'sOffice

11m 

A0008 A0027
BoysWC

27m

A0005
A0031A

Store
1m 

A0022 A0017
Store

7m 

Store1m
A0012A

A0027
Store

1m
A0012B

A0025

A0020 Store1m

4m Toilet A0010

A0026

Exis
t F M

anh
oles

A00
42

Mai
n E

ntra
nce

2m A00
40A

Sta
ff T

oile
t

RL
RL

RL
RL

Box
ing 

to e
lec 

cab
le d

ropp
ing 

/ ris
ing 

aga
inst

elec
 inta

ke h
ous

ing 
/ ex

istin
g bu

ildin
g re

fer t
o ite

m 6
.11.

Elec
 ma

in ru
n th

roug
h ex

istin
g sc

h bu
ildin

g  a
t hig

h
leve

l (re
fer t

o el
ectr

ical
 spe

cific
atio

n, in
clud

e fo
r for

min
g

hole
s th

roug
h w

alls
, ma

king
 goo

d w
ith p

aint
 fini

sh t
o

mat
ch e

xist
ing 

wal
ls, 8

.10.

Elec
tric 

cab
le ru

n fro
m E

lect
rica

l Int
ake

 Ho
usin

g (lo
cate

d
at e

nd o
f thi

s w
ing 

of th
e sc

hoo
l bu

ildin
g, s

ee A
L(0)

02),
cab

le d
uct 

requ
ired

 bet
wee

n th
e el

ec h
ous

ing 
and

mai
n sc

hoo
l bu

ildin
g.  B

oxin
g re

quir
ed w

here
 cab

le
exp

ose
d ab

ove
 gro

und
 / ag

ains
t ex

tern
al w

alls.
Ref

er to
 ele

ctric
al s

pec
ifica

tion
,

and
 gen

 req
 spe

c ite
ms 

 6.1
1, 8

.9 a
nd 8

.10

Bish
op S

topf
ord 

Sch
ool 

grou
nds

,
No 

acc
ess

 unl
ess

 agr
eed

 in
adv

anc
e w

ith t
he C

A.

Ref
er to

 drg
 AL

(0)0
3 an

d th
e el

ectr
ical

 spe
cific

atio
n

for c
onti

nua
tion

 of e
lec 

cab
le ro

ute.

Acc
ess

rout
e

Acc
ess

 rou
te a

cros
s fie

ld, t
rack

ing 
requ

ired
 to

prot
ect 

grou
nd. 

Incl
ude

 for 
mak

ing 
goo

d w
here

 trac
king

and
 cra

ne b
eare

rs lo
cate

d.

Loc
atio

n fo
r cra

ne.

Exis
ting

 tree
s,

Do 
not 

dam
age

.

Her
as f

enc
ing 

spe
c ite

m 1
,

site
 com

pou
nd.

Suf
folk

s Pr
ima

ry S
cho

ol, m
ain 

sch
ool 

entr
anc

e
also

 use
d by

 Bis
hop

 Sto
pfor

d S
cho

ol a
nd t

he
Buil

ding
 Co

ntra
ctor

 car
ryin

g ou
t wo

rks 
at B

isho
p S

topf
ord 

Sch
ool

This
 acc

ess
 is u

sed
 for 

veh
icle

 acc
ess

, inc
orpo

ratin
g,

staf
f / v

isito
r ca

rs, k
itch

en d
eliv

ery 
veh

icles
,

refu
se a

nd e
mer

gen
cy v

ehic
les,

 plu
s pe

des
trian

 acc
ess

.
MoundsoverAirRaidShelters

located
belowground,undergroundvoidsmaybeinthisarea

Ped
estr

ian
acc

ess

Disa
bled

 veh
icle

,
eme

rgen
cy v

ehic
le

and
 ped

estr
iana

n
acc

ess
 onl

y

Ped
estr

ian
acc

ess

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

1

2

4

5

6

7

Not
es:

Mai
n S

cho
ol e

ntra
nce

, Br
ick 

Lan
e, E

nfie
ld, E

N1 
3PU

.
This

 acc
ess

 is t
o be

 use
d by

 the
 Co

ntra
ctor

.
This

 acc
ess

 is t
he M

ain 
sch

ool 
veh

icle 
acc

ess
, inc

orpo
ratin

g,
staf

f / v
isito

r ca
rs, k

itch
en d

elive
ry v

ehic
le, r

efus
e &

eme
rgen

cy v
ehic

les 
and

 Pe
des

trian
s.

The
 acc

ess
 is a

lso 
use

d by
 the

 Co
ntra

ctor
 car

ryin
g ou

t bu
ildin

g w
orks

at B
isho

p S
topf

ord 
Sch

ool.
Bish

op S
topf

ord 
pup

ils a
lso 

use
 this

 gat
e.

This
 roa

d is
 nar

row
 and

 ver
y bu

sy d
urin

g th
e st

art, 
lunc

h tim
e

and
 fini

sh t
ime

s of
 the

 sch
ool 

day
.

Sch
ool 

Offi
ce.

The
 con

trac
tor i

s to
 rep

ort t
o th

e of
fice

 at t
he s

tart 
of th

e sc
hoo

l da
y.

Tel 
No 

: 02
08-8

804
-153

4
Hea

d Te
ach

er : 
Mrs

.N.S
aun

ders
.

Site
 Ma

nag
er : 

Mr.E
.Kilb

y.
Car

 par
king

 for 
sch

ool 
staf

f on
ly.

Ped
estr

ian 
acc

ess
 onl

y.
Use

d by
 par

ents
, ch

ildre
n (in

clud
ing 

dou
ble 

bug
gies

).
Sta

ff.
7-30

am 
- 9-

30a
m.

3pm
 to 6

pm
plus

 var
ious

 tim
es d

urin
g th

e sc
hoo

l da
y.

Ent
ranc

e fo
r dis

able
d ve

hicl
e, e

mer
gen

cy a
nd p

ede
stria

n ac
ces

s on
ly.

The
 fiel

d.
The

 fiel
d is

 use
d m

ost 
of th

e da
y du

ring
 the

 sum
mer

 term
.

Aut
umn

 term
 the

 fiel
d is

 use
d fo

r foo
tbal

l du
ring

 the
 day

.
Afte

r sc
hoo

l foo
tbal

l clu
b us

es t
he f

ield
 mo

st a
ftern

oon
s

Con
trac

tors
 Acc

ess
 Ro

ute.
Fro

m B
rick

 Lan
e al

ong
 nar

row
  roa

dwa
y  to

 Su
ffolk

s Pr
ima

ry S
cho

ol, l
oca

ted 
to

the 
rear

 of B
isho

p S
topf

ord 
Sch

ool 
(a s

eco
nda

ry s
cho

ol).
Car

e m
ust 

be t
ake

n w
hen

 veh
icles

 acc
ess

 this
 roa

d du
e to

 :
Sec

ond
ary 

age
 stu

den
ts a

rrivi
ng /

 lea
ving

 Sch
ool 

at th
e st

art, 
lunc

htim
es

and
 fini

sh o
f the

 sch
ool 

day
.

The
 Bis

hop
 Sto

pfor
d B

uild
ing 

Con
trac

tor c
ontr

ols 
the 

acc
ess

 gat
e.

The
 tem

pora
ry c

lass
room

 con
trac

tor i
s to

 liai
se w

ith t
he C

ontr
acto

r.
This

 ent
ranc

e is
 the

 onl
y en

tran
ce t

o th
e si

te.
The

 are
a is

 con
jest

ed a
t the

 sta
rt an

d fin
ish 

of th
e sc

hoo
l da

y.
Dur

ing 
term

 tim
e sh

ould
 con

trac
tors

 veh
icle

s ar
rive

 at t
he s

cho
ol d

urin
g

thes
e tim

es t
hen

 the
y ar

e to
 par

k aw
ay f

rom
 the

 vici
nity

 of t
he s

cho
ol,

and
 aw

ait t
he c

orre
ct ti

me 
to a

ppro
ach

 the
 Sch

ool.
Mob

ile p
hon

e co
ntac

t wi
th th

e si
te a

gen
t for

 adv
ice 

on s
afe 

time
 to

app
roac

h th
e S

cho
ol. 

Wa
rnin

g si
gns

 to b
e pl

ace
d in

 Bri
ck L

ane
 wa

rnin
g of

 
site

 ent
ranc

e, la
rge 

veh
icle

s tu
rnin

g et
c.

Boll
ards

 / no
 par

king
 sig

ns a
re to

 be 
plac

e in
 the

 vec
inity

 of t
he s

ite
entr

anc
e pr

ior t
o th

e de
liver

y of
 the

 bui
ldin

g un
its t

o en
sure

 del
iver

y
of th

e bu
ildin

g se
ctio

ns.
Lett

er to
 the

 res
iden

ts in
 the

 vec
inity

 of t
he e

ntra
nce

 and
alon

g th
e ro

ute 
from

 Ca
rter

hatc
h La

ne t
o th

e sc
hoo

l en
tran

ce
(ext

rem
ely 

narr
ow 

road
s / c

onje
sted

 with
 par

ked
 car

s,)
war

ning
 of t

he l
arge

 veh
icle

s re
quir

ing 
acc

ess
 alo

ng t
he r

oad
s,

requ
esti

ng t
hat 

they
 do 

not 
park

 clo
se t

o th
e co

ntra
ctor

s
entr

anc
e du

ring
 the

 del
iver

y pe
riod

 of t
he b

uild
ing 

sec
tion

s, g
ive 

date
s,

time
s an

d gi
ve t

ype
/ siz

e of
 veh

icle
s, c

rane
 etc

.

3

Avo
id d

ama
ge t

o tr
ees

Ped
estr

ian
acc

ess

Acces
sroute

MO
T1

Bas
e

MOT 1Base Grass
/soft

grou
nd,tr

ackin
grequi

red
Bish

op S
topf

ord 
Sch

ool 
use

 onl
y

for b
oth 

veh
icle

 and
ped

estr
ian 

acc
ess

.

3

Bish
op S

topf
ord 

Sch
ool 

use
 onl

y
for b

oth 
veh

icle 
and

ped
estr

ian 
acc

ess
.

5

5

Sch
ool 

Orc
hard

new
ly p

lant
ed

do n
ot d

ama
ge

6

7

Bish
op S

topf
ord 

Sch
ool 

use
 onl

y
for b

oth 
veh

icle
 and

ped
estr

ian 
acc

ess
.

Ent
ran

ce t
o S

uffo
lks

Prim
ary 

Sch
ool

Future extension to Suffolks Primary School

Din
ing

 hal
l 

und
er c

ons
truc

tion
due

 for
 

com
plet

ion
Sum

mer
 200

9

Fiel
d

7

Futu
re e

mer
gen

cy v
ehic

le ro
ute.

Exis
ting

 ser
vice

s : T
he c

ontr
acto

r mu
st h

and
 dig

 tren
che

s,
carr

y ou
t an

 inv
esti

gati
on a

nd p
rovi

de d
raw

ings
 sho

wing
whic

h se
rvic

es a
nd t

heir
 exa

ct p
osit

ion 
are 

in th
e vi

cini
ty

of th
e te

mpo
rary

 cla
ssro

om.
 

For 
app

roxi
mat

e la
you

t of 
exis

ting
 ser

vice
s, s

ee D
rg A

L(0)
03. 

Low
 ove

rhea
d ca

ble 
cros

ses
 acc

ess
 roa

d.

D/E
277

/001
742

/2/A
L(0

)02
12/0

3/09
JED

Suf
folk

s P
rim

ary 
Sch

ool
Bric

k La
ne, 

Enf
ield

, EN
1 3P

U
Dou

ble 
Tem

por
ary 

Cla
ssr

oom
 - S

um
mer

 200
9

Site
 Pla

n
Rev

ision
Dra

wing
 No

.

Dra
wing

 Titl
e

Dat
e

Dra
wn

Pro
ject

CAD
 File

 No
.

Dat
e

Not
es

Rev

Cou
ncil

JEDArch
itec

t \ S
.O.

1:50
0 @

 A1
Sca

le

PO
 Bo

x 5
1, C

ivic
 Ce

ntr
e,

Silv
er S

tre
et, 

Enf
ield

, M
idd

les
ex 

EN
1 3

XB
Tel

: 02
0 8

379
 67

05
Cop

y pa
th fr

om 
Win

dow
s Ex

plor
er

rch
itec

tur
al

Page 58



m
in

Rec
epti

on C
lass

room
69s

q.m
.

Lob
by

12s
q.m

Pro
ject

or ty
pe d

ry w
hite

with
 grid

 line
s.

Fire
 ext

ingu
ishe

r

Hec
kmo

ndw
ike

Dia
mon

d
Hec

kmo
ndw

ike 
Sup

aco
rd

Poly
flor 

Poly
safe

Sta
nda

rd

Poly
flor 

Poly
safe

 Sta
nda

rd

Toil
et fl

oors
 :  P

olyf
lor P

olys
afe,

 Sta
nda

rd,
with

 150
mm

 cov
ed s

kirti
ng, 

usin
g th

e
floo

ring
 and

 cov
e fo

rme
rs.

Trim
 to t

op e
dge

 of c
ove

d sk
irtin

g.

m
in

Pro
ject

or s
upp

ort b
rack

et,
to b

e hu
ng f

rom
 cei

ling
.

PB

PB

PB
C.H

.

C.H
.M

PB PB
PB

PBCH PB

m
in

Rec
epti

on C
lass

room
69s

q.m
.

Pro
ject

or ty
pe d

ry w
hite

with
 grid

 line
s.

Dad
o

Tru
nkin

g

Fire
 ext

ingu
ishe

r

Hec
kmo

ndw
ike 

Sup
aco

rd

Poly
flor 

Poly
safe

 Sta
nda

rd

Pro
ject

or s
upp

ort b
rack

et,
to b

e hu
ng f

rom
 cei

ling
.

PB

PB C/L
 of p

roje
ctor

 and
 dry

 wh
ite b

oard

PB
C.H

.

PB
PB PB

PB

PBCH PB
PB

32 N
o co

at h
ook

s on
 250

m h
igh 

bac
king

plat
e se

cure
d to

 wa
ll (h

eigh
t to 

be
con

firm
ed).

Pinb
oard

 stri
p ab

ove
.

32 N
o co

at h
ook

s on
 250

m h
igh 

bac
king

plat
e se

cure
d to

 wa
ll (h

eigh
t to 

be
con

firm
ed).

Pinb
oard

 stri
p ab

ove
.

8100
884

6

7800

226
58

Sto
res 

inc.
lunc

hbo
x st

.
& se

rvic
es

5.4s
q.m

 eac
h

818
152

5
818

818

Poly
flor 

Poly
safe

Sta
nda

rd

2200

Buil
ding

 foo
tprin

t
Tota

l are
a 

183
.5sq

.m.

Dad
o

Tru
nkin

g

C/L
 of p

roje
ctor

 and
 dry

 wh
ite b

oard

PB PB
RL

RL
RL

RL

120
0

Ser
vice

s ris
ing 

into
 sto

re : 
 

Elec
 cab

le in
 cab

le d
uct,

25m
m M

DPE
 dia

 wa
ter m

ain 
with

 sto
p co

ck 
and

 non
 retu

rn v
alve

,
thre

e ca
ble 

duc
ts w

ith d
raw

er w
ires

,
into

 sto
re.

Elec
 dis

t bo
ard 

(loc
kab

le) a
t hig

h le
vel

Wa
ter h

eate
r.

Floo
r ac

ces
s ha

tch 
requ

ired
.

Nor
thE

ast
Ele

vati
on,

A

Nor
thW

est
Ele

vati
on,

D

Sou
thE

ast
Ele

vati
on,

B

Sou
thW

est
Ele

vati
on,

C

PLA
N

FFL
 to b

e 35
0mm

 off 
finis

hed
 tarm

ac
leve

l to 
fron

t of 
buil

ding

WP
B p

ly sk
irt (m

att b
lack

 sta
ined

 fini
sh),

 bot
tom

 edg
e to

 be 
25m

m a
bov

e fin
ishe

d gr
oun

d le
vel 

Exte
rnal

 wa
ll co

lour
 to m

atch
 exi

stin
g sc

hoo
l bu

ildin
g br

ickw
ork.

 
WP

B p
ly

WP
B p

ly

Exte
rnal

 wa
ll co

lour
 to

mat
ch e

xisti
ng s

cho
ol

buil
ding

 bric
kwo

rk. 

3150

350

WP
B p

ly

Ven
tilat

ed S
unp

ipes
 /

roof
ligh

ts to
 toil

ets

B

C

D

A

D/E
277

/001
742

/2/A
L(0

)04
12/0

3/09
JED

Suf
folk

s P
rim

ary 
Sch

ool
Bric

k La
ne, 

Enf
ield

, EN
1 3P

U
Dou

ble 
Tem

por
ary 

Cla
ssr

oom
 - S

um
mer

 200
9

Pla
n &

 Ele
vati

ons
 of 

Bui
ldin

g
Rev

ision
Dra

wing
 No

.

Dra
wing

 Titl
e

Dat
e

Dra
wn

Pro
ject

CAD
 File

 No
.

Dat
e

Not
es

Rev

Cou
ncil

JEDArch
itec

t \ S
.O.

1:10
0 @

 A1
Sca

le

PO
 Bo

x 5
1, C

ivic
 Ce

ntr
e,

Silv
er S

tre
et, 

Enf
ield

, M
idd

les
ex 

EN
1 3

XB
Tel

: 02
0 8

379
 67

05
Cop

y pa
th fr

om 
Win

dow
s Ex

plor
er

rch
itec

tur
al

Page 59



© Crown copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Enfield.
License No LA086363, 2003

Scale 1/2500 Date 9/6/2009

LBE/09/0017

Centre = 534952 E 199417 N

Page 60



Application Number:  LBE/09/0017 Ward:  Turkey Street       
Date of Registration:  14th May 2009 

Contact:  Eloise Kiernan 3830 

Location: HONILANDS PRIMARY SCHOOL, LOVELL ROAD, ENFIELD, EN1 4RE 

Proposal: Installation of a temporary classroom building to east of site. 

Applicant Name & Address:

London Borough of Enfield 
C/O Agent 

Agent Name & Address:

Mr Joe Pellegrini, Architectural Services 
CIVIC CENTRE 
SILVER STREET 
ENFIELD
MIDDLESEX 
EN1 3XA 

Recommendation: That planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED in accordance with 
Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 1992, subject to the 
following conditions:

1. No works shall take place until details of the external colour finish of the building shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The works shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved plans. 

Reason - To ensure a satisfactory external appearance in compliance with UDP policies. 

2. C09 Details of Hard Surfacing 

3. C51A Time Limited Permission 

Site and Surroundings 

School campus situated within predominantly residential  

Proposal

The applicant seeks permission for the erection of a single storey double mobile unit to provide 
teaching space whilst building works are completed to the main school building. The building 
would be sited on an area of playing field to the east of the main building and it would be 22 
metres in width by 8 metres in depth and features a flat roof design. The building would be 
constructed of prefabricated panel with steel featuring a timber roof, aluminium windows and 
hardwood doors. 

Relevant Planning Decisions 

Page 61



A number of planning permissions have been granted for extensions and alterations; however, 
these are of no particular relevance to this application. 

Consultation

Public

The application was advertised by neighbour notification letters to 97 adjoining occupiers. One 
representation was received.  The main issues relevant to planning were: 

Increase in traffic and congestion to highways 

The school is large enough for local children 

External

None

Internal

None

Relevant Policies 

The London Plan

3A.24 Education facilities 

Unitary Development Plan

(I) CS1 Community services 
(I) GD1 Appropriate regard to surroundings 
(II)GD3 Design 
(II) GD6 Implications to traffic 
(I)GD1 Appropriate regard to surroundings 
(II)T16 – Access for pedestrians and people with disabilities 

Local Development Framework - Core Strategy Preferred Options

The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires the Council to replace the UDP with a 
Local Development Framework (LDF). The LDF Core Strategy will set out the spatial vision and 
strategic objectives for the Borough. The Core Strategy is at an early stage in its adoption 
process. As this continues the weight given to it will grow and the relevant objectives are reported 
to demonstrate the degree to which the proposals are consistent with the emerging policy. 

Core policy 16  Children and young people 

Analysis 

Principle of the Development

The existing use of the site as a school has already been established and therefore the issues to 
be considered relate to design, impacts on residential amenity and highways implications 
including parking. 

Page 62



Design and Impact on the Character of the Area

The proposed double mobile classroom has been well sited to the east of existing school 
buildings and therefore would maintain a good integration with the footprint of the existing 
buildings.

The proposed buildings would feature a flat roofline and the choice of materials and finish are 
considered satisfactorily and would not have a detrimental impact on the appearance of the site 
or character of the street scene. Additionally, given the temporary nature of the building, which is 
required as teaching space whilst an extension is being implemented, it is considered 
satisfactory.

Impact on Neighbouring Amenities

There are residential properties, which abut the site in all direction, however those most impacted 
on by the development would be those to the east and north along Kempe Road as the building 
would be visible to the occupiers of these properties. 

There is dense vegetation to the south of the proposed mobile and a sporadic backdrop of trees 
fronting Kempe Road to the east, which together would provide screening of the building. 

However due to the nature of the proposal, boundary treatment and minimum separation 
distances of 25 metres from the common boundary to the east, the proposal would not have a 
detrimental impact on residential amenity in terms of loss of sunlight/daylight, overbearing or 
additional noise disturbance. 

Access

The proposal incorporates an access ramp with handrail providing wheelchair access. 

Parking

A representation letter has been received stating the existing parking issues and congestion on 
Kempe Road and that the existing school is considered to be large enough to accommodate local 
children.

The development does not propose any additionally parking and the site currently provides 13 
(including one motorcycle and bus) parking spaces and 1 cycle spaces with a PTAL rating of 1b. 
Given that the mobile classroom is required on a temporary basis to provide classroom 
accommodation whilst an extension is being implemented to the main school, it is considered that 
the number of pupil numbers and teachers would not increase and therefore existing parking 
arrangements and vehicular movements would not substantially increase and are therefore 
deemed satisfactory. 

Conclusion

It is therefore recommended that planning permission be granted for the following reasons. 

1. The proposals due to their size and siting do not unduly affect the amenities of adjoining 
or nearby residential properties or detract from the character and appearance of the 
surrounding area having regard to Policy (I) GD1, (I) GD2, and (II) GD3 of the Unitary 
Development Plan. 

Page 63



2. The proposed development improves school facilities having regard to Policy (II)CS1 and 
Policy 3A.24 of the London Plan. 

3. The proposals do not prejudice the provision of on site parking nor would they lead to 
additional parking and do not give rise to conditions prejudicial to the free flow and safety 
of traffic on the adjoining highways having regard to Policies (II) GD6 and (II) GD8 of the 
Unitary Development Plan. 

Page 64



LOV
ELL

ROA
D

LOV
ELL

ROA
D

HONILANDS INFANTS SCHOOL
HONILANDS JUNIOR SCHOOL

M
A
S
O
N
S

R
O
A
D

C
H
A
R
N
W
O
O
D

R
O
A
D

G
R
E
A
T

C
A
M
B
R
ID

G
E

R
O
A
D

-
N
O
R
T
H

B
O
U
N
D

W
a
r
d

B
d
y

C
R

M
A
R
R
Y
A
T

R
O
A
D

HOR
NBE

AMS
AVENU

E

LAR
CHE

SAVENU
E

K
E
M
P
E

R
O
A
D

MARRY
AT ROAD

L
A
C
K
M
O
R
E

R
O
A
D

23.2m

L
A
C
K
M
O
R
E

R
O
A
D

LOVELLROAD

K
E
M
P
E

R
O
A
D

LILA
CAVENU

E

K
E
M
P
E

R
O
A
D

CAR
PEN

TER
SROA

D

E
L
S
IN

G
E

R
O
A
D

M
A
S
O
N
S

R
O
A
D

BULLSMOOR LANE

PlayingField

CommunityCentre

andClinic

Library

KE
MP

E
RO

AD

19

1

6

11

10

12

22

21

16

5
0

t
o

6
0

42

2
8

652

1664

1674

1686

TCBs

BM

27.31m

Surgery

29.0m

Subway

B
M

2
9
.3

8
m

B

235

31

43

5
5

28

4
0

4
8

6

3

7

14
8
3

16
9
0

17
0
2

17
1 4

17
2
6

17
3
8

17
5
0

15
6
7

247

6
7

PCB

BM23.08m

StGiles

Court

152

2

1 2

2
4

211

1

15
2

16
2

1

11

13

23

16

2

16
4

182

190

198

13
1

12
5

12
3

11
3

14

16

11
1

10
9

1

11
0

12
0

13
2

18

24

27

17

3to9

13to15

1

11

160

2

LB

TCB

10
7

9
7

15

1

6

2

15
0

13
6

14
9

13
4

2

16

9
5

8
6

t
o

9
6

6
2

t
o

7
2

8
1

11

1

12
0

13
7

12
5

11
3

10
7

10
5

10
0

10
2

2to12

14
to24

6
5

t
o

7
5

4
9

3
7

2
5

t
o

3
5

13
t
o

2
3

1
t
o

1
1

8
4

8
6

4

2

ElSubSta

PO

9
2

9
4

9
9

9
7

G
R
E
A
T

C
A
M
B
R
ID

G
E

R
O
A
D

-
S
O
U
T
H

B
O
U
N
D

C0036 154m
C0009A Hall

C0044 83m
C0022 Corridor

C004562m
C0021Classroom

C0043 62m
C0023 Classroom

C0042 53m
C0019 Classroom

C0041 15m
C0018 GirlsToilets

C0039 10m
C0016 GroupRoom C0047 13m

C0014 Cloakroom

C0046 15m
C0013 BoysToilets

C002654m
C0012Classroom

C0027 47m
C0011 Classroom

C0028 47m
C0010 Classroom

C0029 17m
C0003 HeadteachersOffice

C0033 11m
C0007 Store

C0034 8m
C0008 Store

C003512m
C0009Office

C0025 79m
C0002 Corridor

C0048 21m
C0025 Corridor

C0056 98m
C0029 NurseryClassroom

C0049 56m
C0026 NurseryClassroom

C0050 8m
C0027 Store

C0055 14m
C0036 Toilets

C0054 8m
C0034 StoreC0053 11m

C0033 GroupRoom

C0051 7m
C0031 Kitchen

C0052 4m
C0032 Toilet

C0037 4mCorridor

C0030 7m
C0004

C0032 7m
C0005 MaleWC

C0031 2m
C0006 Cleaner'sStore

C0057 5m
C0029A Store

9mC0038
Corridor C0015

C0040 2m
C0017 Store

CpdCpdCpd

UP

Lounge
14m
A0002

8mDiningRoom

A0003

8mHallway
A0001

Kitchen
7mA00041mA0007 Store

1mA0006 Toilet
2m
A0005

LaundryRoom

Cpd

Cpd

UP

DOWN

D0002 52m
D0001 ClassroomD0001 10m

D0002 Lobby

D0003 5m
D0003 Store

BlockD

UP

UP

UPDOWN

UP

DOWN

E0011 8m
E0043D KitchenStaffRoom

E0013 8m
E0043F Store

E0014 7m
E0043G Store

E0012 2.7m
E0043E StaffToilets

E0010 6m
E0043C Store

E0009 4m
E0043B ElectricityRoom

E0008 6m
E0043A KitchenOffice

E0006 103m
E0043 Kitchen

C0001 57m
C0046 Classroom

C0002 39m
C0045 Cloakroom/Stairwell

C0003 6m
C0047 GirlsToilets

C0005 235m
C0041 DiningHall

C0022 75m
C0001 Corridor

C0021 56m
C0037 StaffRoom

C0020 13m
C0038 GirlsToilets

C0019 6m
C0039 BoysToilets

C0018 4mCleanersStore

C0017 151m
C0042 Hall

C0016 8m
C0042A PEStore

C0015 6m
C0049 Store

C0024 13m MedicalRoom

E0043H Store
E0007 1m

C0002B

C0004 6mBoysToilets C0048

E
C

E
C

BlockE-Kitchen

ToBoiler Room

BlockC-GroundFloor

Female W C

UP
UP

UP

RL
RL

RL
RL

WME

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office  c  Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough Of Enfield LA 086363 2000.

D/E245/001790/AL(0)01
26/01/09
JED

Honilands School Lovell Road, Enfield, EN1 4RE
Double Temporary Classroom - Summer 2009 Location Plan RevisionDrawing No.

Drawing Title Date
Drawn

Project

CAD File No.

DateNotes Rev

Council

JED
Architect \ S.O.

1:1250 @ A3
Scale

PO Box 51, Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield, Middlesex EN1 3XB Tel: 020 8379 6705 Copy path from Windows Explorer

rchitectural

N

Proposed Temporary Classroom Summer 2009

School grounds : Area 2.746 ha

Page 65



RL
RL

RL
RL

min

Cla
ssr

oom
 2

69s
q.m

.

Sto
res 

inc 
lunc

hbo
x st

.
& se

rvic
es

5.4s
q.m

Lob
by

12 s
q.m

Pro
ject

or ty
pe d

ry w
hite

with
 grid

 line
s.

Dad
o

Tru
nkin

g

Fire
 ext

ingu
ishe

r

Hec
kmo

ndw
ike

Dia
mon

d
Hec

kmo
ndw

ike 
Sup

aco
rd

Toil
et fl

oors
 :  P

olyf
lor P

olys
afe,

 Sta
nda

rd,
with

 150
mm

 cov
ed s

kirti
ng, 

usin
g th

e
floo

ring
 and

 cov
e fo

rme
rs.

Trim
 to t

op e
dge

 of c
ove

d sk
irtin

g.

min

Pro
ject

or s
upp

ort b
rack

et,
to b

e hu
ng f

rom
 cei

ling
.

PB

PB

PB

C/L
 of p

roje
ctor

 and
 dry

 wh
ite b

oard

PB
C.H

.

C.H
.

M

PB

PBPB
PB

PB PB

100
mm

 dia
 stu

b st
ack

 with
 AA

AV.
 

Cla
ssr

oom
 1

Nur
ser

y
69s

q.m
.

Dad
o

Tru
nkin

g

Fire
 ext

ingu
ishe

r

Poly
flor 

Poly
safe

 Sta
nda

rd
PB

PBPB
C.H

.

PB

PBPB
PB

PB CHPB
PB

30 N
o co

at h
ook

s on
 250

m h
igh 

bac
king

plat
e se

cure
d to

 wa
ll (h

eigh
t to 

be
con

firm
ed).

Pinb
oard

 stri
p ru

n ab
ove

 the
se i

tem
s.

Hec
kmo

ndw
ike 

Sup
aco

rd

Poly
flor 

Poly
safe

 Sta
nda

rd

226
58

7800

884
6

818
818

152
5

828

Floo
r

acc
ess

trap
Wa

ste 
pipe

 for
con

den
sing

pipe
.

WME

Wa
ste 

pipe
for con

den
sing

pipe
.

8100

PLA
N

For
 req

uire
men

ts r
ega

rdin
g th

e bu
ildin

g ex
tern

ally
 and

 int
ern

ally
,

the
 ext

ern
al b

uild
ers

 wo
rk a

nd 
ser

vice
s,

refe
r to

 the
 Sc

hed
ule 

of w
ork

 and
 dra

win
gs A

L(0
)01,

 02 
and

 03.
 

We
stE

leva
tion

,A

Eas
tEl

eva
tion

,C

Nor
thE

leva
tion

,B

Sou
thE

leva
tion

,D

PLA
N

FFL
 to b

e 35
0mm

 off 
finis

hed
 tarm

ac
leve

l to 
fron

t of 
buil

ding

Exte
rnal

 wa
ll co

lour
 to m

atch
exis

ting
 sch

ool 
buil

ding
 bric

kwo
rk. 

WP
B p

ly

WP
B p

ly

Exte
rnal

 wa
ll co

lour
 to

mat
ch e

xisti
ng s

cho
ol

buil
ding

 bric
kwo

rk. 

3150

Ven
tilat

ed S
unp

ipes
 /

roof
ligh

ts to
 toil

ets

B

C

D

A
350

Exte
rnal

 wa
ll co

lour
 to m

atch
exis

ting
 sch

ool 
buil

ding
 bric

kwo
rk. 

WP
B p

ly

Buil
ding

 foo
tprin

t
Tota

l are
a 

183
.5sq

.m.

D/E
245

/001
790

/AL
(0)0

4
20/0

3/09
JED

Hon
ilan

ds P
rim

ary 
Sch

ool
Lov

ell R
oad

, En
field

, EN
1 4R

E
Dou

ble 
Tem

por
ary 

Cla
ssr

oom
 - S

um
mer

 200
9

Pla
n &

 Ele
vati

ons
Rev

ision
Dra

wing
 No

.

Dra
wing

 Titl
e

Dat
e

Dra
wn

Pro
ject

CAD
 File

 No
.

Dat
e

Not
es

Rev

Cou
ncil

JEDArc
hite

ct \ 
S.O

.

1:10
0@

 A1
Sca

le

PO
 Bo

x 5
1, C

ivic
 Ce

ntr
e,

Silv
er S

tre
et, 

Enf
ield

, M
idd

les
ex 

EN
1 3

XB
Tel

: 02
0 8

379
 67

05
Cop

y pa
th fr

om 
Win

dow
s Ex

plor
er

rch
itec

tur
al

Page 66



© Crown copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Enfield.
License No LA086363, 2003

Scale 1/1250 Date 12/6/2009

LBC/08/0024

Centre = 531033 E 192415 N

Page 67



Application Number:  LBC/08/0024 Ward:  Palmers Green       
Date of Registration:  6th April 2009 

Contact:  David Warden 3931 

Location: TRURO HOUSE, 176, GREEN LANES, LONDON, N13 5UJ 

Proposal: Restoration and repair of Truro House involving demolition and reconstruction of part 
of east wall together with internal and external alterations, demolition of former workshop 
adjoining Coach House (stables) and erection of a total of 25 residential units in 2 buildings within 
grounds.

Applicant Name & Address:

Luke Comer, Balcrast Properties Ltd 
1, Comer House 
19, Station Road 
Enfield
EN5 1QJ 

Agent Name & Address:

Peter Smith, Dr Smith Architects & Planners 
45, Buckland Crescent 
 London 
NW3 5DS 

Recommendation: That listed building consent be GRANTED subject to the following conditions: 

1. C53A Time Limit - Listed Building Consent 

2. C54 LBC - Start of Works Notification 

3. That, subject to the requirement of the conditions attached to this permission, the 
proposed development shall be carried out and completed in accordance with the 
proposals contained in the application and any plan or drawing submitted therewith, 
submitted by the agent before the development is used or occupied for the purposes 
hereby approved, unless the Local Planning Authority otherwise agrees in writing.  

Reason: to ensure that the proposed development will be carried out as approved and to 
avoid any detriment to amenity by reason of works remaining uncompleted. 

4. Salvaged items approved for re-use as part of this consent shall be securely stored on site 
(or subject to the Local Planning Authority 's agreement, elsewhere) until employed again 
and Council Officers shall be allowed to inspect them.  

Reason: To protect the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building. 

5. Unless specified on the approved drawings, the Local Planning Authority 's agreement 
must be sought and confirmed in writing for any opening up of any part of the interior of 
the building.  

Reason: To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building. 

Page 68



6. The development shall not commence until details of all external finishing materials, 
brickwork, facebond and pointing, large scale joinery details of all windows and doors, 
large scale details of the new balconies and in respect of the Coach House a detailed 
schedule of retained and reused features including photographs have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be 
constructed in accordance with the approved details.  

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to protect the special 
character of the listed building 

7. The development shall not commence until full details of drawings, specifications or 
samples of materials as appropriate of all of the following matters have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be 
constructed in accordance with the approved details.  

 all fireplaces and overmantles in various rooms throughout (except where exact 
replicas of those lost based on photographic or drawn evidence) 
 a structural drawing for the drawing room wall reconstruction.  
 painting, gilding and grisaille overhaul and the decorative plasterwork (Drawing 
Room)
 decorative features to be replaced in hall 
 damp diagnosis and repair specifications for ground floor dining room and 1st floor  
stair / lobby, Northeast bedroom, kitchen and movement to Southwest bedroom 
 replaced bathroom door, Southwest bedroom door, Normandy bedroom door 
(except where exact replicas of those lost based on photographic or drawn evidence) 
 reconstructed pulpit or stair 
 elevations of new partitions to kitchen and Northwest bedroom 
 works to boundary walls, including any reconstruction of the North wall 
 materials for any reconstructed walls including facebond and pointing to reflect 
original and the provision of a sample panel 

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to protect the special 
character of the listed building. 

8. All new and replaced fenestration and joinery shall be constructed of timber in accordance 
with large-scale joinery details scale 1:20 to be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority prior to installation. The fenestration and joinery shall be 
completed prior to the occupation of the dwelling.  

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development and to preserve the 
special character and appearance of the Grade II Listed Building. 

9. The structural works shall be completed in accordance with the submitted details, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

Reason: To ensure the structural stability of this Grade II Listed Building. 

10. All new internal and external works and finishes and works of making good to the retained 
fabric, shall match the existing adjacent work with regard to the methods used and to 
material, colour, texture and profile, and in the case of brickwork, facebond and pointing, 
unless shown otherwise on the drawing or other documentation hereby approved or 
required by a Condition attached to this consent.  

Page 69



Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development and to preserve the 
special character and appearance of the Grade II Listed Building. 

11. The position, type and manner of installation of all new and relocated services and related 
fittings shall be adequately specified in advance of any work carried out, and prior written 
approval of the Local Planning Authority shall be obtained whenever these installations 
are to be visible or ducts or other methods of concealment are proposed.  

Reason: To protect the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building. 

12. No plumbing, pipes or relocated services and fittings shall be fixed on the external faces 
of the building unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development and to preserve the 
special character and appearance of the Grade II Listed Building 

13. Prior to works commencing, details of measures to protect the building from weather, 
vandalism and accidental damage shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority. Such measures shall be implemented prior to any works commencing.  

Reason: To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building. 

Site and Surroundings 

Truro House is a two storey detached Grade II listed early C19th villa, set in large grounds, with a 
late C19th stable block to the rear fronting Oakthorpe Road. The entire site including the stable 
block buildings, falls within the curtilage of the listed Truro House.  The listing also includes the 
front and side boundary walls. Some of the trees within the site are covered by Tree Preservation 
Orders.

Truro House is situated on the south eastern corner of the junction of Green Lanes with 
Oakthorpe Road (opposite Southgate Town Hall) with Green Lanes and Oakthorpe Road 
comprising the western and northern boundaries respectively. To the north of Oakthorpe Road 
are St Anne’s Girls School, a motor sales lot and a number of large premises in a mix of 
residential and commercial usage. Further along Oakthorpe Road to the east lies a Mosque and 
Community Centre. The New River forms the southern boundary and is designated a Green 
Chain, Wildlife Corridor and Site of Nature Conservation whilst Honeysuckle House (a care 
home) adjoins the eastern boundary.   

The house has now been vacant for a number of years and is suffering from water ingress and an 
associated outbreak of dry rot. It has been the subject of architectural theft and, due to its current 
circumstances, the house is on English Heritage’s Buildings at Risk Register for Greater London. 

Vehicular access to the site is from Oakthorpe Road adjacent to the Stable Block. 

Proposal

The scheme proposes enabling development within the curtilage of Truro House. The 
development comprises the refurbishment and reinstatement of significant features of Truro 
House itself to provide a four bedroom dwelling; the rebuilding and extension of the Coach House 
to provide a three bedroom dwelling; the erection of a two storey block comprising 2 two bedroom 
flats referred to as Oakthorpe House; and a part 3 and part 4 storey block including a basement 
level and with accommodation in the roof incorporating 23 flats comprising 3 x 1-bed, 10 x 2-bed 
and 10 x 3-bed referred to as Davis House. 

Page 70



Oakthorpe House is located to the south of, and aligned with, the rebuilt and extended Coach 
House with Davis House sited in the southeast corner and extending across to the centre of the 
site fronting the New River.  Access will be from Oakthorpe Road in the northeastern corner of 
the site and a total of 27 car parking spaces will be provided. 

Relevant Planning Decisions 

Truro House was last used as a single dwelling house providing residential accommodation within 
Use Class C3.  The property was then purchased by a development company who made a 
number of applications for planning permission and listed building consent at the end of 2000 
namely:

LBC/00/0025 – an application for listed building consent in respect of the demolition 
of the stable block, outbuildings, post war service wing and part of the boundary wall together 
with internal alterations to Truro House was withdrawn in February 2002 before being considered 
by Planning Committee. The recommendation was for listed building consent to be refused.  

LBC/01/0023 an application for listed building consent for the formation of internal  
openings in Truro House and associated internal alterations to provide 2 extra bathrooms and 
WC, 1 extra bedroom and coat and linen cupboards, demolition of external outbuilding to Truro 
House, formation of external and internal openings to Stable Block to provide 2 bathrooms, WC 
and clocks and garage and workshop in Stable Extension, involving the removal of glazed 
courtyard roof, stair and walls was approved in February 2002.  

LBC/03/0036 an application for listed building consent for refurbishment, alteration and 
conversion of Truro House (a Grade 2  Listed Building) into offices and consulting rooms in 
connection with the erection of a new Nursing Home to provide a mental health facility for 48 
residents with 2 guest beds within the curtilage of the site, together with the conversion of existing 
Coach House/Stables (also Grade 2 Listed)  to move-on accommodation linked to the proposed 
development.  Refused February 2005. 

LBC/06/0038 an application for listed building consent for internal alterations and external works 
including repairs to front porch and stairs, removal of external flue and buttress, reinstated 
shutters, new window and pitched roof over annexe together with enabling works within the 
curtilage associated with development under ref:TP/06/2270, an appeal against non-
determination was lodged but later withdrawn. 

LBC/08/0024 an application for listed building consent for restoration and repair of Truro House 
involving demolition and reconstruction of part of east wall together with internal and external 
alterations, demolition of former workshop adjoining Coach House (stables) and erection of a total 
of 25 residential units in 2 buildings within grounds, is the subject of a separate report to 
committee. 

Condition of Listed Building 

With regard to the condition of the Grade II listed Truro House, on 1 February 2002 English 
Heritage served a formal Urgent Works Notice on the then owner of Truro House, requiring that a 
number of works for the preservation of the building be undertaken immediately.  These powers 
are confined to urgent works i.e. they are restricted to emergency repairs, for example works to 
keep a building wind and weatherproof and safe from collapse, or action to prevent vandalism or 
theft.  The steps taken should be the minimum necessary.  The Urgent Works have not been 
carried out and the House continues to deteriorate and be the subject of theft/architectural 

Page 71



vandalism.  At that time, the owner of Truro House did not have any firm proposals for the future 
use of the building.   

Like-for-like repairs do not normally require listed building consent and there is no reason why the 
owners should not have undertaken essential works to keep the building weather proof.  
Consequently in February 2002 English Heritage served an Urgent Works Notice on the 
development company who owned Truro House.  These powers are confined to urgent works i.e. 
they are restricted to emergency repairs and the steps taken should be the minimum necessary.  
The owner failed to undertake the urgent works and the house continued to deteriorate.   

In April 2003 the Council served a fresh Urgent Works Notice on the new owner of Truro House.  
The owner failed to undertake the works identified in the Urgent Works Notice so the Council’s 
contractors commenced these works in default in August 2003.  Truro House was occupied by 
squatters in September 2003.  The Council’s contractors were temporarily withdrawn until the 
owner regained vacant possession (through an Eviction Order).  The Council’s contractors 
returned to site and completed the Urgent Works in January 2004. The Council have commenced 
the process of seeking to recover this expenditure. 

Having taken action to secure the immediate future of Truro House the Council served a Repairs 
Notice in December 2003 (on both the owner of Truro House itself and the development company 
who retain ownership of the land on which the stable block is situated) to address the medium 
term preservation of Truro House.   A Repairs Notice is not confined to urgent works and is used 
where the protracted failure by an owner to keep a listed building in reasonable repair places the 
building at risk. The Repairs Notice has not been complied with and Truro House continues to 
deteriorate and continues to experience ongoing incidences of vandalism and theft. 

The condition of the stable block continued to deteriorate and became a matter of concern to the 
Council during 2004 in the light of its condition and the level of security against unauthorised 
entry.  On 22 December 2004 the Council served an Urgent Works Notice in order to safeguard 
the stable building and to arrest any further deterioration.  The Urgent Works notice was not 
complied with and so the Council’s contractors are due to commence these works in default on 
26 January 2005.

During a site meeting on Tuesday 23rd January 2007 Council’s Conservation Officer found that a 
painting which formed part of the interior architectural scheme of the ground floor Drawing Room 
at Truro House has been removed from the building without the benefit of listed building consent.    

Consultation

Public

A full summary of the public consultation responses is reported under ref: TP/08/2244 with the 
majority of the objections focusing on the impact on the highway  and the scale of development 
as opposed to issue relating to the listed building.  
However, the following concerned have been raised: 

- Impact on the character of the area 
- Previous applications were refused 
- Overcrowding of the local area 
- Overdevelopment 

In addition, a petition with 23 signatures from residents of Ecclesbourne Gardens has been 
received objecting to the application objecting to the application on the following grounds: 

Page 72



- The four-storey block will be the highest in the neighbourhood, which will create a visual impact 
in the midst of an area of low-rise residential properties 

External

English Heritage states that specialist staff have considered the information received and do not 
wish to offer any comments on this occasion, recommending that the application be determined in 
accordance with national and local policy guidance, and on the basis of the Council’s specialist 
conservation advice.  This response was subsequently authorised by the Government Officer for 
London, on behalf of the Secretary of State. 

The Ancient Monuments Society comments that the application may be the last best hope for the 
building and they do not wish to lodge objections.  They welcome, in particular, the return of Truro 
House itself to single family occupation with the repair of its remarkable interiors and the retention 
of sufficient curtilage unencumbered by new build for it to retain the sense of a villa in its garden.  
However, the response goes on to state that Davis House is a hard price to pay - a substantial 
block of flats ringed by verandas and stopped by an octagon. References to the latter as being 
somehow akin to a garden building are implausible given its ring of glazing and great size. The 
Society comments that they would have preferred a more continuous block, better addressing the 
river.  Nevertheless the key consideration is that any " enabling development " be pulled back 
from Truro House so that there is no competitor in views from Green Lanes and the Town Hall - 
and that is the case. The response concludes that they presume any consent will follow the 
guidelines in English Heritage's various publications on Enabling Development - in particular that 
work on the listed buildings is well advanced before the new build is commenced. 

The London and Middlesex Archaeological Society’s Historic Buildings & Conservation 
Committee accepts that there has to be enabling development involved with the restoration and 
repair of Truro House together with the conversion of the Coach House but comments that 
keeping the restoration and repair of the building on hold until the economy improves financially 
might be appropriate given that the amount of enabling development should be the minimum 
necessary to secure the restoration of the historic asset and that this amount of development will 
reduce as the economic situation improves.  The response goes on to state that overall, the 
Committee welcomed the proposal to restore Truro House, which is badly needed, and did not 
object, in principle, to the extension of the Coach House although the design could be more 
imaginative given the large flat roof extension. The dummy pitch was not considered appropriate 
and there were concerns over the blocked gateway. In addition the proposed new gates were 
considered over ornate, and a simpler design would be more in character. The Oakthorpe House 
new building was objected to as it would dominate the Coach House and is inappropriate to the 
setting of the building.  Possibly a contrasting architectural style would help to reduce this over-
dominance. The scale required is that of outbuildings or a service wing to the main house, in 
keeping with the existing Coach House.  Davis House – the proposed block on the New River – 
also appeared grossly out of scale and would be severely detrimental to the setting of the main 
Listed Building. It was noted that it would appear as a 4-storey building from the river, and even 
though the tree cover makes it difficult to assess the impact at the moment, it was not felt to be an 
appropriate form of development.  The potential development overall therefore appears to be 
detrimental to the setting of the Listed Building and unacceptable. The Committee would urge the 
Council to reject this Application and to request and require a revised, more sympathetic scheme. 

The Environment Agency has no objection to the scheme, subject to directives relating SUDS 
and a comment that Thames Water should be consulted as the proposed basement level is within 
approximately 1 metre of the wall of the New River. 

Thames Water expresses concern that after investigation they have identified an inability of the 
existing waste water infrastructure to accommodate the needs of the application.  Whilst they do 

Page 73



not seek for permission to be refused, they request a Grampian condition, that development shall 
not commence until the approval of a drainage strategy detailing any on and/or off site drainage 
works and there shall be no discharge until these works have been completed.  They state that 
this condition is necessary to prevent sewage flooding.  Directives relating to surface water 
drainage, the installation of a non-return valve to prevent storm surcharge and that the New River 
aqueduct is adjacent to the site and special precautions will be required to avoid damage or 
pollution.

Arriva, who operate the bus service in Palmers Green and the bus garage in Regents Avenue 
located towards the North Circular express concern regarding the generation of additional traffic 
and parking, both during construction and once the development is complete.  The response 
states that the area is already subject to heavy traffic and will be more so over the next three 
years while the A406 North Circular Road is reconstructed.  There is a bus lane adjacent to the 
site on Green Lanes, which is heavily used by frequent bus services.  The response expresses 
concern that parking associated with the development would obstruct the bus lane.  

The Metropolitan Police’s Crime Prevention Design Advisor does not object to the application but 
sets out the importance of designing out crime.  The response seeks the adoption of Secure by 
Design principles highlighting the relevant sections.  Due to the open nature of the grounds, it is 
suggested that the entire development benefits from a strong and secure boundary treatment.  
The response suggests a 1.8 metre high railing with anti scale finials along the boundary with the 
New River, Honeysuckle House and Green Lanes along with secure controlled access to both 
vehicular and pedestrian gates. 

Internal

The Housing Strategy Team comments that in light of the shortage of family sized 
accommodation, the size mix of residential units should comprise 50% family sized homes with 3 
or more bedrooms.  Also, in keeping with the London Plan target, at least 10% of units should be 
wheelchair accessible or easily adaptable. 

The Housing Enabling Team expresses concern regarding the lack of affordable housing 
provision.

The Head of Cleansing comment that no refuse storage facilities appear to be provided. 

The Council’s Aboricultural officer does not object to the application but comments that the 
submitted tree assessment dates back to 1999. Whilst the findings relating to the condition of the 
trees and the principles relating to retaining the trees are sound, time has moved impacting on 
the trees on the site. For example a large poplar in the south east corner of the site fell in January 
2007 onto the adjacent Honeysuckle House causing substantial damage to the building. 
Accordingly it may be prudent to initiate a new survey under the principles of BS 5837: 2005  
(Trees in relation to construction), which updates BS 5837:1991, which was applied by the Tree 
Consultancy Group in 1999. 

Any response from Economic Development, Education or Place Shaping will be reported at the 
meeting.

Conservation Advisory Group

The Group has no objection providing there is overall support for the scheme but states some 
concerns regarding the roof to Davis House with cut aways visible on the New River elevation, 
the external treatment to the basement, that appropriate weight be given to the impact on the 
green chain and that comments from The Enfield Society should be taken into account. 

Page 74



The Conservation Officer questions whether the amount of development is above the floor space 
agreed at pre-application stage and why the repair schedule now allows for exact replicas of lost 
fireplaces instead of simple replacements to minimise cost.   

Questions are also raised regarding the date of the 1999 Arboricultural Survey, whether the trees 
affecting Truro House are to be removed and whether the structural survey reflects the advice of 
English Heritage’s Structural Engineer. 

Comments on each block are provided below 

Davis House
Plans largely reflect those at pre-application stage, although they now show railings to all 
balconies on the north elevation rather than some brickwork ones.  Questions are raised over the 
void areas, which could feasibly be floored over in future affecting floorspace 

English Heritage sought a) the block foreshortened by deletion of the octagonal block, which has 
not been done; b) more planting between the listed building and the new one, which could be 
covered by condition; and, c) balconies carried around the octagon, which has been done. It is 
understood English Heritage will be suggesting that the balconies are also carried around the first 
floor (north elevation, that the arched entrance feature is better architecturally defined and that 
the roof is articulated (chimneys). 

Oakthorpe House
Given it is following a traditional design approach, it should have a chimney stack at roof level.  

Coach House 
There are changes to the openings.  However, as this is a rebuild rather than a conversion that 
does give opportunity to change and to improve awkward items e.g. staircase access, a large 
modern picture window in the south elevation first floor etc. The adjacent double garage between 
the stables and Oakthorpe House appears to have been deleted and replaced by double gates in 
a high wall. The elevation to Oakthorpe Road is now a double set of entrance gates between 
stone piers, the question is raised as to whether brick would be more in keeping than stone.  The 
stable extension roof arrangement has changed since pre app - and now has a large area of flat 
top - this seems a reduction in design quality. English Heritage previously sought a more 
subservient and sympathetic stable extension, which has not changed and it is understood 
English Heritage may be suggesting this is reviewed further 

Truro House
The works to the house appear to be unchanged from the previous scheme (which was broadly 
acceptable with regard to the house). The panel above the mantle in the hall appears a different 
size in the proposed, which will need clarifying. 

Finally, a condition or legal agreement will be required to ensure the works to Truro House are 
secured prior to the enabling development taking place.  The response goes on to state that 
details on the following matters will need to secured by condition: 

- fireplaces and overmantles - various rooms throughout - (except where exact replicas of those 
lost based on photographic or drawn evidence) 
- structural drawing for the drawing room wall reconstruction.  
painting, gilding and grisaille overhaul and the decorative plasterwork (Drawing Room) 
- decorative features to be replaced in hall 
- damp diagnosis and repair specifications for g/fl dining room and 1st fl stair / lobby, NE 
bedroom, kitchen and movement to SW bedroom,

Page 75



- replaced bathroom door, SW bedroom door, Normandy bedroom door  (except where exact 
replicas of those lost based on photographic or drawn evidence) 
- reconstructed pulpit or stair 
- elevations of new partitions to kitchen and NW bedroom 
-works to boundary walls (spec mentions possible reconstruction of new North wall 
materials for reconstructed wall / facebond and pointing to match original / sample panel 
- chimney added and detailed to Davis House and Oakthorpe House  
materials for the Coach House and large scale joinery details of all windows and doors and a 
schedule of retained and reused features 
- materials for all new development including joinery details, surfacing, landscaping and large 
scale details of the new balconies 

Relevant Policies 

London Plan (2008)

4B.11  London’s Built Heritage 
4B.12   Heritage Conservation 
4B.13   Historic Conservation Led Regeneration 

Unitary Development Plan

(I)C1   Heritage conservation 
(II)C1   Archaeology 
(II)C2   Archaeological evaluation 
(II)C12  Management of listed buildings 
(II)C13  Listed buildings at risk 
(II)C14  Repair of buildings at risk 
(II)C16  Prejudicial uses in listed buildings 
(II)C17  Built development in the curtilage of listed buildings 
(II)C18  Use of the grounds of listed buildings 
(II)C19  Development within historic landscapes 
(II)C20  Management of historic landscapes 
(II)C36  Replacement planting 
(II)C38  Loss of trees of public amenity value 
(II)C39  Replacement of trees 

Local Development Framework - Core Strategy Preferred Options

The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires the Council to replace the UDP with a 
Local Development Framework (LDF). The LDF Core Strategy will set out the spatial vision and 
strategic objectives for the Borough. The Core Strategy is at an early stage in its adoption 
process. As this continues the weight given to it will grow and the relevant objectives are reported 
to demonstrate the degree to which the proposals are consistent with the emerging policy 
direction.

SO3  Protect and enhance Enfield's environmental quality; 
SO16  Preserve the local distinctiveness 
SO18  Conservation, Listed Buildings and Heritage 

Other Material Considerations

PPG15  Planning and the Historic Environment 

Page 76



English Heritage Policy Statement on Enabling Development and the Conservation of Significant 
Places (2008) 

Analysis 

There are a number of key issues raised by this proposal.  

Principle of Development within the Curtilage of the Listed Building

The essential characteristic of late Georgian and Victorian villas, such as Truro House, is their 
setting in spacious grounds.  Truro House is a good example of this having retained this special 
quality in spite of the intensive C20th development which has transformed the surrounding area 
although more recently challenged by the previous fragmented approach to the 
reuse/development of the site.  Securing an appropriate use is the key to the long term survival of 
listed buildings with the most appropriate use normally felt to be that for which the building was 
originally designed.  In considering the uses, particular attention must be paid to the architectural 
and historic features of the building and a use which would preserve them. 

Policy (II)C17 states that  new development within the grounds of a listed building will normally be 
resisted other than for such ancillary development as is reasonably required in conjunction with a 
suitable use of the listed building.  Moreover, Policy (II)C18 seeks to ensure that the curtilage of 
buildings of architectural or historic interest normally retain their historic form, character and use 
and where development is permitted they are in character with the historic design and use of the 
curtilage and do not result in the curtilage becoming fragmented in terms of occupation or use, 
and to seek planning agreements to secure these ends for the foreseeable future.  

This approach reflects English Heritage and Government advice contained in Planning Policy 
Guidance 15 – “Planning and the Historic Environment”.  Particular emphasis is placed upon the 
protection of open landscaped settings, including ‘modest gardens, parks and other open areas 
forming the whole or the historic curtilage of the buildings of special architectural or historic 
interest’.  Truro House is precisely such a case where this policy should apply.   

The application involves development within the curtilage of an important listed building as 
identified through its inclusion on the Buildings at Risk register.  Development of the scale 
proposed within such a curtilage is clearly contrary to adopted policy and there is a presumption 
against the approval of such schemes.  However, the application is submitted on the basis that it 
is ‘enabling development’ to undertake the necessary works to Truro House.  Where certain strict 
tests are met, such applications will receive special consideration and must balance any harm 
they cause to the character or setting of the listed building with the potentially significant benefits 
of securing its long-term future. 

Enabling Development

English Heritage define ‘enabling development’ as “development that would be unacceptable in 
planning terms but for the fact that it would bring public benefits sufficient to justify it being carried 
out, and which could not otherwise be achieved. The key public benefit to significant places is 
usually the securing of their long-term future.” 

English Heritage’s policy statement ‘Enabling Development and the Conservation of Significant 
Places’ establishes a presumption against ‘enabling development’ which does not meet seven 
criteria, which are :- .

a) it will not materially harm the heritage values of the place or its setting 
b) it avoids detrimental fragmentation of management of the place 

Page 77



c) it will secure the long-term future of the place and, where applicable, its continued use for 
a sympathetic purpose 

d) it is necessary to resolve problems arising from the inherent needs of the place, rather 
than the circumstances of the present owner, or the purchase price paid  

e) sufficient subsidy is not available from any other source 
f) it is demonstrated that the amount of enabling development is the minimum necessary to 

secure the future of the place, and that its form minimises harm to other public interests  
g) the public benefit of securing the future of the significant place through such enabling 

development decisively outweighs the disbenefits of breaching other public policies. 

There are numerous appeal decisions and a body of case law that demonstrates that English 
Heritage policy statements are material considerations, which must be taken into account.

Each of the criteria will be assessed within the relevant section below, before a conclusion is 
drawn on whether the proposal is appropriate enabling development. 

Density

The site is within walking distance of the Palmers Green Town Centre to the north, and Green 
Lanes Local Centre to the south, in an area characterised by mixed-use development. For the 
purposes of the London Plan 2008 density matrix, it is considered the site lies within an urban 
area. The site is situated in an area designated PTAL 3, indicating comparatively good links to 
public transportation. In this area the density matrix suggests a density of 200 to 450 habitable 
rooms per hectare.  Given the predominance of units with more than 3.8 habitable rooms within 
the vicinity of the site the matrix suggests a unit range of 45 to 120 units per hectare, which is the 
least dense option within PTAL 2-3 Urban.  This indicates that an acceptable density would be 
towards the lower end of the 200 to 450 hrph, at around 350 hrph.  However, the density of the 
site will be far more significantly limited by the impact of the buildings on Truro House and the 
need to retain its open character and gardens. 

The proposal, including Truro House itself, is for 3 x 1-bed, 12 x 2-bed, 11 x 3-bed and 1 x 4 bed 
units, resulting in 93 habitable rooms giving a residential density of 156 hrph (93/0.595 ha) or 45 
u/h, which someway falls below the range set out in the London Plan.  However, advice contained 
in PPS1 and PPS3, states that a numerical assessment of density must not be the sole test of 
acceptability and must also depend on the attainment of appropriate scale and design relative to 
character and appearance of the surrounding area.  In this instance, the scale of development 
must be the minimum necessary to ensure the future of the listed building, which would take 
precedence over the efficient use of land encouraged by the London Plan and PPS3.  It is 
considered that the density of the site will be dictated by obtaining an acceptable layout and built 
form, which is assessed in detail below. 

Layout and Scale

The overall layout of the development seeks to take advantage of the reducing ground levels 
moving south towards the New River, where the ground falls approximately some 3.5 metres.  
Oakthorpe House, will be alignment with the rebuilt Coach House.  Davis House will be sited 
fronting the New River where the ground levels allow provide that, notwithstanding its three storey 
height, its the eaves level will match that of Oakthorpe House, which are in turn will be slightly 
below the lowest eaves of Truro House.  Davis House, which provides the largest mass of new 
development, starts in the southeast corner of the site, the point furthest from Truro House, with 
its northernmost point approximately 22 metres from the southern site boundary and its 
westernmost point approximately 51 metres from the eastern site boundary.  Where Davis House 
faces the New River, accommodation is maximised by providing basement and roof level units.   

Page 78



Overall, the siting of each of the three proposed buildings will be over 30 metres from Truro 
House at their respective nearest points, with retained and proposed trees providing additional 
visual separation and the proposed planted balconies seeking to soften the impact of Davis 
House.  It is considered, on balance, that if it is necessary to accommodate the amount of 
development proposed within the curtilage of Truro House, the proposed layout and scale of the 
buildings would provide for the least impact on Truro House itself and its immediate gardens. 

Design and Impact on the Character and Setting of the Listed Building

The Coach House

The application proposes to rebuild an extended block in the same location replacing the existing 
stables.  Whilst the stables are an important feature, the costs of restoration over rebuilding are 
such that a greater amount of enabling development would have been required.  It is considered, 
on balance, that the additional harm from further enabling development would outweigh the 
benefit of restoration. 

The proposed design reflects a traditional approach.  English Heritage previous raised concerns 
have been raised regarding the extent of the proposed ‘extensions’.  Whilst English Heritage have 
declined to comment on the current proposals, it is considered there is appropriate basis for their 
previous concerns.  The proposed ‘extensions’ are some 5.5 metres wide, whereas the stable 
block building is only 4.5 metres wide.  Notwithstanding that the ‘extensions’ are largely single 
storey, it is considered this would result in an unacceptable unbalanced appearance.  Whilst 
these concerns must be balanced with providing an acceptable form of living accommodation, it is 
considered that the ‘extensions’ will need to be reduced to 4.5 metres.  This will provide for 
adequate internal space, whilst maintaining the character of the rebuild stables.  Amended plans 
have been requested and an update will be provided at the committee meeting. 

Concerns were also raised regarding the introduction of a flat roof over the ‘extension’.  In 
addition, there is a discrepancy between roof over the ‘extension’ shown on the site location plan 
and the detailed drawing.  Whilst this will be substantially reduced by the reductions required 
above, clarification has been sought on these matters and will be reported at the meeting. 

Adjacent to the Coach House is the proposed access which is shown with a double set of 
entrance gates between stone piers.  Concerns have been raised that brick piers would be more 
sympathetic and the applicant has accepted this alteration.  Amended details of the gates will be 
secured by condition. 

Overall, it is considered that the Coach House will provide for a sympathetic replacement of the 
existing stables and is considered acceptable. 

Oakthorpe House 

The proposed new building Oakthorpe House follows a traditional design approach providing a 
two storey building under a hipped roof with detailing such as doors, windows and eaves 
comparable with existing features.  The Conservation Officer states that a chimney stack should 
be added to reflect the traditional design approach, details of which will be secured by condition.  
There are some concerns regarding the bay feature to the western elevation competing with a 
similar feature on Truro House.  However, it is considered, on balance, that it has been simplified 
sufficiently to ensure that it is complementary. 

The building is aligned with the western edge of the currently proposed ‘extension’ to the Coach 
House.  However, this alignment will change in light of the reduction to the extension referred to 
above.  An update on this matter will be provided at the meeting. 

Page 79



Concerns have been raised regarding the scale of the building, suggesting that it would be more 
appropriately designed as a service building or outbuilding to the main house, as well as 
concerns regarding the potential to dominate the Coach House.  However, it is not considered 
that it is necessary to replicate the scale of the Coach House.  The proposed building will be 
approximately 30 metres from Truro House and have subservient eaves and ridge lines.  Whilst 
visually it will provide for a larger building that the extended Coach House, its footprint is 
comparable with this building and it is not considered it will be overly dominant.   In addition, the 
resulting accommodation provided would be likely to attract a premium, which would serve to limit 
the overall amount of development within the curtilage. 

Overall, the proposed building would provide for a large two storey structure in close proximity to 
the Coach House.  However, it is considered, on balance, having particular regard to the need to 
provide enabling development, as well as the suitability of the design features, that the proposed 
building is acceptable. 

Davis House 

The form of Davis House, as referred to above, seeks to utilise the fall in ground levels to provide 
views of only 3 storey accommodation from the north at a level below Truro House itself.  The 
design again follows a traditional form with a hipped roof over the main block and sloped roof 
pitched to the centre of the octagonal block.  The window and header detailing relates well to the 
other buildings on the site and the vertical alignment of the windows serves to relieve some of the 
horizontal emphasis of the proposed building.  The variation in shape and plane, as well as the 
proposed landscaped balconies serve to break up its overall mass.  It is considered that these 
features combine to provide for an acceptable treatment to all elevations. 

English Heritage previous sought the reduction of the block through the removal of the octagonal 
block.  However, the applicant states that this would make the enabling development unviable.   

Concerns have been raised regarding that the building will be detrimental to the setting of the 
main Listed Building.  There can be no denying that the proposal is for a significant built structure 
within the curtilage that will impact upon the character of the listed building.  However, having 
regard the amount of development required to secure the heritage asset, as well as the design, 
degree of separation from Truro House itself, tree screen and ground levels, it is considered it is 
considered that the proposal will not harm the material values of the listed building. 

The applicant has been requested to provide comments and amendments in respect of the 
comments seeking the balconies to be wrapped around the northern elevation and improvements 
to better architecturally define the entrance arch.  An update on these matters will be provided at 
the meeting. 

Again, a condition requiring the addition of chimney and the submission of their details included. 

Questions have been raised regarding the future potential for void areas within the development 
to be in filled to provide additional floorspace.  However, the presence of double height spaces 
will in turn attract a premium which serves to limit the amount of enabling development required.  
It is considered, on balance, that the proposed void areas are acceptable. 

The impact on trees on the site will be discussed in more detail below.  However, it is considered 
that the location of proposed buildings and car parking within the curtilage would serve to limit the 
impact of the loss of trees on the setting of the listed building.   
Additional planting between Truro House and the proposed building will be secured by condition. 

Page 80



Overall, it is considered that the design of the Davis House response well to its requisite scale 
screening its most significant impacts from Truro House itself and providing for an acceptable 
visual appearance.  Having regard to all of the above matters, it is considered, on balance, that 
the proposed building is acceptable. 

Truro House 

The application details state that Truro House will be restored in accordance with the submitted 
details, as closely as possible, to its condition in the early 1990’s.  The works will include: 
structural repairs of parts of the east and south east walls; a general overhaul of drainage and 
roofs including relaying of roof finishes, removal of asbestos and rots; repairs to walls ceilings and 
floors affected by structural movement; joinery and plasterwork will generally be restored to their 
original condition after building works are completed; and removed fire surrounds, ornamental 
mirrors and parquet floor finishes etc. will be reinstated within the cost limits imposed by English 
Heritage.  The details go on to state that the general aim is to repair and restore items using 
materials and finishes to match the existing/original designs, with the aim of providing a restored 
four bedroom house with plumbing, heating etc to modern standards and set in attractive restored 
gardens.

The application includes detailed internal and external plans, photographs and structural 
specifications of the proposed works.  The Conservation Officers has questioned the use of exact 
replicas of lost fireplaces instead of simple replacements to minimise cost and the detailing of the 
panel above the mantel in the hall.  However, the applicant confirms that the costs of the replicas 
reflect those previously agreed with the Council’s consultants and the panel, which was covered 
in a previous scheme, reflects the original and will be restored.  Further comments are awaited 
from the Conservation Officer, which will be reported at the meeting.  However, it is understood 
that the proposed replica fireplaces were proposed instead of traditional salvaged fireplaces, 
which may themselves have been the previous subject of architectural theft. 

The proposed structural works have been the subject of considerable discussion with English 
Heritage’s Structural Engineer.  A request has been made for English Heritage to confirm that the 
current proposals accords with their latest discussions an  and an update will be provided at the 
meeting.

It will be necessary to secure the submission of details on a considerable number of matters as 
set up in the Conservation Officers response.  In addition, it will be necessary to enter into a S106 
agreement to provide certainty that the proposed works will be carried out through phasing the 
development to provide that the works to Truro House be completed prior to the new 
development taking place.  In addition, the guidance from English Heritage on Enabling 
Development makes it clear that there should be long-term security and maintenance of the 
heritage asset to ensure that no further need for enable development arises.  As a result, the 
agreement will need to address the long term maintenance of Truro House, the Coach House, the 
new buildings and the curtilage to an agreed standard.  This agreement would be enforceable 
through the courts and, if necessary, through works in default with the recovery of costs. 

Overall, subject to the requisite legal agreement and details conditions refereed to above, it is 
considered that the proposed works will provide for the appropriate restoration of Truro House 
and its grounds. 

Conclusion on Design and Impact on the Character and Setting of the Listed Building  

In conclusion, it is considered that the proposal has been well sited, makes positive use of the 
levels on the site, provides for a high standard of design, is sympathetic to the character of the 
listed building and its form minimises harm.  The Conservation Advisory Group supports the 

Page 81



scheme.  The proposal avoids detrimental fragmentation of the management of the place and 
would secure the long-term future of Truro House for its original use as a single dwellings house.  
Enabling development, by its very nature, creates a degree of harm to the heritage asset; what 
must be considered whether a proposal harms its material values.  In this instance it is 
considered, on balance, the proposal will not materially harm the heritage values of Truro House 
or its setting. 

Development Appraisal

The primary matters to be considered are the site cost, the development summaries provided by 
the application and the net saleable floor space proposed. 

Site Cost 

The English Heritage guide on enabling development provides that the acquisition cost for 
enabling development purposes should be the market value of the property in its current 
condition, which may be negative or zero where significant works are required.  It advises that the 
actual price paid should be disregarded if it is based on the hope of obtaining permission for 
development contrary to adopted policy.  The site cost in respect of this site is listed as 
approximately £1.68 million. The final value of the Truro House and the Coach House once 
completed is estimated to be a total of £1 million and approximately £1.8 million will be spent on 
their restoration, suggesting that the current value of the site is minimal.  As such, 
notwithstanding that holding costs will have been incurred, the site cost is difficult to reconcile. 

It is considered that is must be concluded that the site costs provided by the applicant are far 
greater than the sites true market value.  This is a matter of significant concern when considering 
whether this proposal meets the enabling development tests.  Moreover, in this case the amount 
of the purchase price paid has a significant impact on the amount of development required to 
provide for the successful restoration.  The guidance provided by English Heritage suggests that 
this figure be discarded in favour of a nominal sum.  However, the difficulty with such an 
approach in respect of Truro House is that it would do nothing to secure the future of the building.  
Indeed, the only alterative would be the potentially costly and uncertain process of the Council 
seeking to compulsory purchase the site. 

It is considered that the current proposals represent the best means of securing the long term 
future of Truro House, to seek to exclude the land value from the enabling development 
calculations would be certain to ensure that the scheme would not proceed.  Having regard to all 
of these matters and affording particular weight to the need to provide for the long-term future of 
Truro House, it is considered, on balance, that the site costs shown are acceptable. 

Development Summaries and Net Floor Space  

The applicant has provided two development summaries that provide residual valuations for the 
proposed development.  These involve the calculation of the eventual sales values of each of the 
units and the deduction of all of the development cost, including land, construction, restoration, 
finance and professional fees.  After calculation a residual development profit remains.  The 
summaries provide calculations based upon sales values of the flats at rates of £350/sq ft and 
£299/sq ft, which is the equivalent of approximately £275,000 and £235,000 for two bedroom 
units, respectively.  Both of the development appraisals provide for a loss by the developer of 
approximately £32,500 and £975,000, respectively.   

The development summaries, however, are each based upon 23 two bedroom and 2 one 
bedroom units rather than the actual mix proposed on site.  This follows the meetings with the 
developer in January and February 2008, where calculations were agreed to provide for a 

Page 82



maximum of 17,250 sq ft of new enabling development.  At that time the arrangement of units put 
forth by the developer was for either 23 two bedroom units at 725 sq ft (67 square metres) each 
or 19 two bedroom and 6 one bedroom units providing within the same net saleable area.  The 
principle agreed upon was based upon the amount of net saleable floorspace.  

The applicant suggests that the proposals now provide 17,840 sq ft of net saleable floorspace, 
after detailed measurement of the proposed drawings the total net internal areas excluding 
hallways was approximately 17,800 sq ft.  Taking the applicants figure, this is some 590 sq ft 
above the figure agreed in principle.  In addition, the mix of units provides for an additional 
bedroom in 10 of the units.  However, the additional floor space represents only approximately 
3% of the agreed figure and whilst 10 of the units provide an additional bedroom they provide for 
approximately the same total saleable floorspace.  Moreover, no account has been made for the 
fact that these figures were agreed January 2008.  As a result they do not reflect some 
approximately 18 months of reducing house and land prices, with a far more limited reduction in 
construction costs.  The applicant suggests that if the calculations were to be assessed it is likely 
that a greater amount of enabling development would be required. 

For a means of comparison, whilst there will clearly be some differences in value and 
specification, the 2 bedroom flats for sale within the new Fairview development to the south of the 
North Circular Road are currently on the market for approximately £200,000.  The area of the 
units is approximately 700 sq ft providing a price per sq ft of approximately £286, which is 
approximately 18% below the £350 per sq ft referred to above. 

Having regard to all of the above matters, it is considered that the wholesale review of the figures 
would not be in the best interests of providing for the timely restoration of Truro House.  Indeed, 
as time progresses the building is under greater threat and the costs of repairs is only set to 
increase whilst, if the current trend continues, the sale prices of the enabling development units 
may decrease.   

Conclusion on development appraisal 

It is considered that the proposed development provides for the best reasonable option of 
securing the long-term future of Truro House as it is considered sufficient subsidy is not available 
from any other source to provide for the works. 

Overall, whilst there are some discrepancies that are explained above, it is considered that the 
figures reflect the advice and figures previously obtained from specialist consultants.  As such, it 
is considered that the provide an accurate reflection of the enabling development calculation and 
demonstrate that the minimum amount of development required to secure the future of the 
heritage asset is proposed. 

Conclusion on enabling development

The proposed development has been described within the consultation response as a hard price 
to pay for the requisite restoration.  However, the proposal must be considered in light of the 
significant ongoing need to secure the long-term future of Truro House.   

Having regard to all of the above factors, it is considered, on balance, that the proposal meets the 
relevant tests and is correctly assessed as enabling development.  It is considered the public 
benefit of securing the future of the significant place through this enabling development decisively 
outweighs the disbenefits of breaching other public policies and this element of the proposal is 
acceptable. 

Page 83



The remaining planning matters relating to highways, the character and appearance of the 
surrounding area, the impact on neighbours amenities and other matters are now considered 
below.

Trees

There are a number of trees within the curtilage of the listed building some of which are the 
subject of Tree Preservation Orders in recognition of their significant /contribution to the visual 
amenities of the locality.  To assist the assessment of the proposal in terms of its effect on trees 
within the site, an arboricultural report has been submitted as part of the application supporting 
the proposals put forward.  As sated above, there are retained and proposed trees providing 
separation between Truro House and the new development.  In addition, trees will be retained 
around much of the perimeter of the site.  However, the proposal will result in the loss of a 
number of trees in the eastern half of the site.  Essentially, these are located within the footprints 
of the buildings and part of the parking area.  Whilst retention of these trees may have been 
preferable, the reality of the need to provide development of this scale means that a number of 
trees will ultimately have to be lost.  However, it is considered that the proposal retain the 
maximum number of trees on the site and provide for additional tree planting 

The date of the report is noted and it is likely that additional works to a number of the trees may 
now be required.  As a result, a condition is proposed requiring a revised report to be submitted 
including a schedule of works to trees. 

In addition, the Conservation Officer questioned whether the trees that have impact Truro House 
itself as shown as removed.  Further clarification has been sought on this matter and will be 
reported at the meeting and for the subject of a condition as required. 

There will be need for a landscaping condition.  In addition, the maintenance of the grounds will 
form part of the S106 agreement referred to above. 

Overall, it is considered, on balance, that having regard to the need for such enabling 
development the loss of trees within the curtilage of this listed building, including some protected 
specimens, is acceptable. 

Other Matters

To ensure any proposals for alteration are given appropriate detailed attention, it will be 
necessary to impose a condition removing permitted development rights for the Coach House 
and Truro House, as well as rights for the erection of means of enclose across the site to prevent 
the segregation of curtilage. 

In addition, as the grounds of the building are likely have remained undisturbed for some 
considerable time there will be need for a condition requiring the submission of an Archaeological 
Investigation report. 

Conclusion

In the light of the above assessment, it is considered, on balance, that the proposed development 
is appropriately considered as enabling development that is an acceptable exception to the 
presumption against development within the curtilage of a listed building having particular regard 
to securing the long-term future and restoration of Truro House.  It is considered that it meets the 
relevant tests set out within English Heritage guidance and that all other aspects have been 
satisfactorily addressed.  As such, it is considered that listed building consent should be granted 
for the following reason: 

Page 84



1 The proposed development involving the restoration and refurbishment Truro House, a 
Grade 2 Listed Building, together with the rebuilding and extension of the Coach House / Stable 
block and the construction of a two new buildings within the curtilage providing 25 flats as 
enabling development, would preserve the special architectural and historic interest of the listed 
property having regard to Policies (I)C1, (II)C13, (II)C16, (II)C17, (II)C18 and  (II)C19 of the 
Unitary development Plan and polices 4B.11, 4B.12 and 4B.13 of the London Plan (2008), as well 
as the objectives of PPG15 and the English Heritage Policy Statement on Enabling Development 
and the Conservation of Significant Places (2008). 

Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



© Crown copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Enfield.
License No LA086363, 2003

Scale 1/1250 Date 10/6/2009

TP/08/2244

Centre = 531033 E 192415 N

Page 87



Application Number:  TP/08/2244 Ward:  Palmers Green       
Date of Registration:  6th April 2009 

Contact:  David Warden 3931 

Location: TRURO HOUSE, 176, GREEN LANES, LONDON, N13 5UJ 

Proposal: Restoration and repair of Truro House as a single family dwelling, conversion of 
Coach House to a single family dwelling involving demolition of existing workshop and external 
alterations, together with erection of a total of 25 residential units within 2 buildings, comprising 
one 2-storey block of 2 self-contained flats and one part 3, part 4-storey block of 23 self-
contained flats incorporating accommodation at lower ground and roof levels, balconies and 
terraces together with provision of associated car parking, erection of gates and pillars, and 
access to Oakthorpe Road. 

Applicant Name & Address:

Luke Comer, Balcrast Properties Ltd 
1, Comer House 
19, Station Road 
Enfield
EN5 1QJ 

Agent Name & Address:

Peter Smith, Dr Smith Architect & Planners 
45, Buckland Crescent 
 London 
NW3 5DS 

Recommendation: That subject to the completion of a section 106 Agreement regarding the 
restoration of Truro House and future management of the building its curtilage and a financial 
contribution towards highway works, the Assistant Director (Planning and Environmental 
Protection) be authorised to GRANT planning permission subject to the following conditions: 

1. C09 Details of Hard Surfacing 

2. C10 Details of Levels 

3. C11 Details of Enclosure 

4. C14 Details of Access and Junction 

5. C16 Private Vehicles Only - Parking Areas 

6. C19 Details of Refuse Storage & Recycling Facilities 

7. C23 Details of Archaeological Investigation 

8. C25 No additional Fenestration 

9. C26 Restriction of Use of Extension Roofs 

10. C41 Details of External Lighting 

Page 88



11. The development shall not commence until details of all external finishing materials, 
brickwork, facebond and pointing, large scale joinery details of all windows and doors, 
large scale details of the new balconies and in respect of the Coach House a detailed 
schedule of retained and reused features including photographs have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be 
constructed in accordance with the approved details.  

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to protect the special 
character of the listed building. 

12. No development shall take place until a detailed Renewable Energy Report, including 
consideration of solar, grounds source and biomass energy systems and seeking to 
achieve a minimum of 20% CO2 reduction overall for Davis House, Oakthorpe House and 
the Coach House and including detailed external drawings and providing an assessment 
of any benefits vs. any visual impact has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The system shall be installed in accordance with the approved 
details prior to the occupation of any of the residential units hereby approved. 

Reason: To ensure both an acceptable appearance and that the development contributes 
to the sustainability objectives of the London Plan (2008). 

13. During the period of development, until final completion, no noisy works shall be 
undertaken on the site outside the following hours: 

Monday to Friday 08.00 to 18.00 
Saturday 08.00 to 13.00 
At no time on Sundays and Bank Holidays 

Reason: To ensure the proposed development does not prejudice the amenities of 
occupiers of nearby premises during its development. 

14. a) Prior to the demolition, refurbishment, alteration and extension, all land and 
building structures associated with the development, and all structures, installations and 
services including those located underground shall be adequately surveyed to establish 
the full extent of asbestos containing materials on site.  The survey shall incorporate 
destructive and or intrusive mechanisms to ensure both visible and non-visible materials 
with a potential to contain asbestos are included. 

b) Proposals for the removal, phasing and supervision of asbestos containing 
materials, all in accordance with current regulations and approved codes of practice and 
current industry good practice shall be submitted to and approved by the Health and 
Safety Executive before work commences.  The submission shall be in the form of a 
detailed method statement clearly identifying all relevant factors in accordance with the 
above and shall be carried out in accordance with the method statement previously 
approved by the Health and Safety Executive. 

Reason: In the interests of public safety. 

15. Suitable facilities and methodology for the control of dust generated during development 
shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of the development. The approved facilities and methodology shall be 
provided prior to the commencement of site works and shall be used and maintained 
during the construction period. 

Page 89



Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of nearby premises from dust 
nuisance during the period of development. 

16. No development shall take place until a drainage strategy detailing any on and/or off site 
drainage works, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.  No discharge of foul or surface water from the site shall be accepted into the 
public system until the drainage works referred to in the strategy have been completed. 

Reason: The development may lead to sewage flooding; to ensure that sufficient capacity 
is made available to cope with the new development; and, in order to avoid  adverse 
environmental impact upon the community. 

17. No development shall take place until an assessment has been carried out into the 
potential for disposing of surface water by means of a sustainable drainage (SuDS) 
scheme, in accordance with the principles of sustainable drainage systems set out in 
national planning policy guidance and statements, and the results of that assessment 
have been provided to the local planning authority. The assessment shall take into 
account the design storm period and intensity; methods to delay and control the surface 
water discharged from the site; and measures to prevent pollution of the receiving 
groundwater and/or surface waters. 

Reason: To ensure that the proposal would not result in an unacceptable risk of flooding 
from surface water run-off or create an unacceptable risk of flooding elsewhere. 

18. Surface water drainage works shall be carried out in accordance with details that have 
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority before the 
development commences. Those details shall include a programme for implementing the 
works. Where, in the light of the assessment required by the above condition, the local 
planning authority conclude that a SuDS scheme should be implemented, details of the 
works shall specify: 

i) a management and maintenance plan, for the lifetime of the development, which shall 
include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory undertaker or 
any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime; and 

ii) the responsibilities of each party for implementation of the SuDS scheme, together with 
a timetable for that implementation. 

Reason: To ensure implementation and adequate maintenance to ensure that the 
proposal would not result in an unacceptable risk of flooding from surface water run-off or 
create an unacceptable risk of flooding elsewhere. 

19. Notwithstanding the submitted details, the development shall not commence until revised 
details showing chimneys to Davis House and Oakthorpe House have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be 
constructed in accordance with the approved details.  

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and protect the special character 
of the listed building. 

20. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order l995 (or any order revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without 
modification) development within Schedule 2, Part 1:  Classes A to E and Schedule 2, 
Part 2: Classes A to C shall not be carried on anywhere within the site boundary unless 

Page 90



planning permission for such development has first been granted by the Local Planning 
Authority.

Reason: To protect the special character of the Listed Building 

21. The development shall not commence until a further Tree Report has been provided in 
accordance wit British Standard BS 5837: 2005 (Trees in relation to construction) and 
other relevant guidance to include updated details on the current condition of the trees on 
site and works required thereto, a scheme of protection of the trees during the 
construction process, a scheme to protect the root systems of any trees that would be 
likely to be adversely affected by the proposed parking area and access road and a 
schedule for the works to take place.  These works shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved schedule and details. 

Reason: in order to maintain the trees amenity value and health. 

22. The development shall not commence until details of trees, shrubs and grass to be 
planted on the site, including full details of landscaped gardens, additional planting 
between the New Development and Truro House, climbing plants to the proposed 
balconies and planting to the retaining structure along the boundary with the New River, 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
planting scheme shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details in the first 
planting season after completion or occupation of the development whichever is the 
sooner. Any planting which dies, becomes severely damaged or diseased within five 
years of planting shall be replaced with new planting in accordance with the approved 
details.

Reason: To provide a satisfactory appearance, to protect the setting of the listed building 
and ensure that the development does not prejudice highway safety. 

23. Notwithstanding the submitted details, the development shall not commence until revised 
details of the siting, design and materials of the entrance gates to Oakthorpe Road have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details before development is 
occupied or the use commences.  

Reason: To ensure that vehicles can stand clear of the public highway so that the 
development does not prejudice conditions of safety or traffic flow on adjoining highways 
and in the interests of visual amenity and the character of the listed building 

24. The development shall not commence until details of parking and turning facilities to be 
provided in accordance with the standards adopted by the Local Planning Authority, 
including the provision of 2 disabled parking spaces, have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The facilities shall be constructed in 
accordance with the approved details before the development is occupied and shall be 
maintained for this purpose.  

Reason: To ensure that the development complies with Unitary Development Plan 
Policies and does not prejudice conditions of safety or traffic flow on adjoining highways. 

25. Any redundant vehicles crossovers shall be reinstated to the satisfaction of the Local 
Planning Authority prior to the occupation of any unit hereby approved. 

Reason:  In the interests of pedestrian safety 

Page 91



26. That development shall not commence on site until a construction methodology has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The construction 
methodology shall contain: a photographic condition survey of the roads and footways 
leading to the site, details of construction access and vehicle routing to the site, 
arrangements for vehicle servicing and turning areas, arrangements for the parking of 
contractors vehicles, arrangements for wheel cleaning and arrangements for the storage 
of materials. The development shall then be undertaken in accordance with the approved 
construction methodology unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

Reason: To ensure the implementation of the development does not lead to damage to 
the existing roads, prejudice highway safety or the free-flow of traffic on Oakthorpe Road 
or Green Lanes or adversely affect the New River, and to minimise disruption to 
neighbouring properties. 

27. C51A Time Limited Permission 

Site and Surroundings 

Truro House is a two storey detached Grade II listed early C19th villa, set in large grounds, with a 
late C19th stable block to the rear fronting Oakthorpe Road. The entire site including the stable 
block buildings, falls within the curtilage of the listed building.  The listing also includes the front 
and side boundary walls. Some of the trees within the site are covered by Tree Preservation 
Orders.

Truro House is situated on the south eastern corner of the junction of Green Lanes with 
Oakthorpe Road (opposite Southgate Town Hall) with Green Lanes and Oakthorpe Road 
comprising the western and northern boundaries respectively. To the north of Oakthorpe Road 
are St Anne’s Girls School, a motor sales lot and a number of large premises in a mix of 
residential and commercial usage. Further along Oakthorpe Road to the east lies a Mosque and 
Community Centre. The New River forms the southern boundary and is designated a Green 
Chain, Wildlife Corridor and Site of Nature Conservation whilst Honeysuckle House (a care 
home) adjoins the eastern boundary.   

The house has now been vacant for a number of years and is suffering from water ingress and an 
associated outbreak of dry rot. It has been the subject of architectural theft and, due to its current 
circumstances, the house is on English Heritage’s Buildings at Risk Register for Greater London. 

Vehicular access to the site is from Oakthorpe Road adjacent to the Stable Block. 

Proposal

The scheme proposes enabling development within the curtilage of Truro House. The 
development comprises the refurbishment and reinstatement of significant features of Truro 
House itself to provide a four bedroom dwelling; the rebuilding and extension of the Coach House 
to provide a three bedroom dwelling; the erection of a two storey block comprising 2 two bedroom 
flats referred to as Oakthorpe House; and a part 3 and part 4 storey block including a basement 
level and with accommodation in the roof incorporating 23 flats comprising 3 x 1-bed, 10 x 2-bed 
and 10 x 3-bed referred to as Davis House. 

Oakthorpe House is located to the south of, and aligned with, the rebuilt and extended Coach 
House with Davis House sited in the southeast corner and extending across to the centre of the 
site fronting the New River.  Access will be from Oakthorpe Road in the northeastern corner of 
the site and a total of 27 car parking spaces will be provided. 

Page 92



Relevant Planning Decisions 

Truro House was last used as a single dwelling house providing residential accommodation within 
Use Class C3.  A development company who made a number of applications for planning 
permission and listed building consent at the end of 2000 namely then purchased the property: 

LBC/00/0025 – an application for listed building consent in respect of the demolition 
of the stable block, outbuildings, post war service wing and part of the boundary wall together 
with internal alterations to Truro House was withdrawn in February 2002 before being considered 
by Planning Committee. The recommendation was for listed building consent to be refused.  

TP/00/1787 – an application for the redevelopment of the south eastern and eastern  
sections of the site involving the construction of 4 three storey blocks to provide 24 flats together 
with the construction of an access road onto Oakthorpe Road, provision of associated car parking 
together with the erection of a car port at side of Truro House with access on to Oakthorpe Road 
was withdrawn in February 2002. The recommendation was for planning permission to be 
refused.

TP/01/1465  an application for the conversion of the stable block into self-contained  
dwelling, garage area and workshop together with the construction of 19 self-contained dwellings 
in two 2/3 storey blocks with access, parking and ancillary works was withdrawn in February 2002 
prior to consideration by Planning Committee. 

TP/03/0103 -  an application for the erection of a new Nursing Home to provide a mental health 
facility for 48 residents with 2 guest beds within the curtilage of the site, together with change of 
use of Truro House into offices and consulting rooms, and conversion of existing Coach 
House/Stables to move-on accommodation, both associated to the new Nursing Home.   

The Planning Committee resolved to grant this application subject to legal agreement.  However, 
this resolution was the subject of a judicial review which quashed the decision. Upon 
redetermination, planning permission was refused 

TP/06/2270 an application for redevelopment to provide a total of 53 residential units, involving 
conversion and alterations to Coach House to provide a 1 x 3 bed self contained unit with double 
garage and erection of 3 storey building to provide 51 self contained units (comprising 47x 2 bed 
and 4 x 1 bed) incorporating accommodation in the roof with dormers on the south, west and east 
elevations, basement parking for 56 cars and access via Oakthorpe Road, together with external 
alterations to Truro House (residential unit) and curtilage was refused in March 2007 for the 
following reasons: 

1. The proposed development, due to its siting, size, scale, height, bulk and design results in 
over-bearing and obtrusive form of development which detracts from the setting of the listed 
building contrary to Policies (I)C1 and (II)C14, (II)C17 and (II)C18 of the Unitary Development 
Plan.

2. The details submitted in support of the development, as ‘enabling development’ for the 
repair of the listed building, does not provide sufficient information to justify the development 
within the curtilage of a listed building.  This, together with the size and scale of the proposed 
building which would detract from the setting of a listed building, results in the proposal being 
contrary to English Heritage Policy Statement on Enabling Development and contrary to Policies 
(I)C1 and (II)C14, (II)C17 and (II)C18 of the Unitary Development Plan. 

Page 93



3. The proposed development, by reason of its siting, design, size, height, scale, bulk and 
density results in an intrusive and discordant form of development and an over-development of 
the site, which is considered detrimental to the visual amenities and the character and 
appearance of the surrounding area.  This is contrary to Policies (I) GD1, (I) GD2, (II) GD3, (II) H7 
and (II) H9 of the Unitary Development Plan. 

4. The proposed development, due to the substandard access, inadequate on-site turning 
and parking facilities, would result in conditions prejudicial to the safety and free flow of traffic on 
the adjoining highways, contrary to Policies (II)GD6, (II)GD7, (II)GD8 and (II)T19 of the Unitary 
Development Plan. 

5. The development proposed gives rise to levels of traffic generation, taking into account 
that associated with other uses along Oakthorpe Road and would be prejudicial to the free flow 
and conditions of highway safety having regard to Policies (II)GD6, (I)T11 (II) T13 of the Unitary 
Development Plan. 

An appeal against this refusal was made but  before it was heard, discussions with the Applicant 
were held to establish principles for a revised scheme. Following considerable discussion 
incoving consulation with CAG, it was agreed that a scheme that entailed up to 25 new residential 
units with a maximum net saleable area of 17,250 ft sq (approximately 1,603 square metres), 
could received favourable consideration.  On this basis, the appeal was withdrawn and this 
application submitted 

LBC/01/0023 an application for listed building consent for the formation of internal  
openings in Truro House and associated internal alterations to provide 2 extra bathrooms and 
WC, 1 extra bedroom and coat and linen cupboards, demolition of external outbuilding to Truro 
House, formation of external and internal openings to Stable Block to provide 2 bathrooms, WC 
and clocks and garage and workshop in Stable Extension, involving the removal of glazed 
courtyard roof, stair and walls was approved in February 2002.  

LBC/03/0036 an application for listed building consent for refurbishment, alteration and 
conversion of Truro House (a Grade 2  Listed Building) into offices and consulting rooms in 
connection with the erection of a new Nursing Home to provide a mental health facility for 48 
residents with 2 guest beds within the curtilage of the site, together with the conversion of existing 
Coach House/Stables (also Grade 2 Listed)  to move-on accommodation linked to the proposed 
development.  Refused February 2005. 

LBC/06/0038 an application for listed building consent for internal alterations and external works 
including repairs to front porch and stairs, removal of external flue and buttress, reinstated 
shutters, new window and pitched roof over annexe together with enabling works within the 
curtilage associated with development under ref:TP/06/2270, an appeal against non-
determination was lodged but later withdrawn. 

LBC/08/0024 an application for listed building consent for restoration and repair of Truro House 
involving demolition and reconstruction of part of east wall together with internal and external 
alterations, demolition of former workshop adjoining Coach House (stables) and erection of a total 
of 25 residential units in 2 buildings within grounds, is the subject of a separate report to 
committee. 

Condition of Listed Building

With regard to the condition of the Grade II listed Truro House, on 1 February 2002 English 
Heritage served a formal Urgent Works Notice on the then owner of Truro House, requiring that a 
number of works for the preservation of the building be undertaken immediately.  These powers 

Page 94



are confined to urgent works i.e. they are restricted to emergency repairs, for example works to 
keep a building wind and weatherproof and safe from collapse, or action to prevent vandalism or 
theft.  The steps taken should be the minimum necessary.  The Urgent Works have not been 
carried out and the House continues to deteriorate and be the subject of theft/architectural 
vandalism.  At that time, the owner of Truro House did not have any firm proposals for the future 
use of the building.   

Like-for-like repairs do not normally require listed building consent and there is no reason why the 
owners should not have undertaken essential works to keep the building weather proof.  
Consequently in February 2002 English Heritage served an Urgent Works Notice on the 
development company who owned Truro House.  These powers are confined to urgent works i.e. 
they are restricted to emergency repairs and the steps taken should be the minimum necessary.  
The owner failed to undertake the urgent works and the house continued to deteriorate.   

In April 2003 the Council served a fresh Urgent Works Notice on the new owner of Truro House.  
The owner failed to undertake the works identified in the Urgent Works Notice so the Council’s 
contractors commenced these works in default in August 2003.  Truro House was occupied by 
squatters in September 2003.  The Council’s contractors were temporarily withdrawn until the 
owner regained vacant possession (through an Eviction Order).  The Council’s contractors 
returned to site and completed the Urgent Works in January 2004. The Council have commenced 
the process of seeking to recover this expenditure. 

Having taken action to secure the immediate future of Truro House the Council served a Repairs 
Notice in December 2003 (on both the owner of Truro House itself and the development company 
who retain ownership of the land on which the stable block is situated) to address the medium 
term preservation of Truro House.   A Repairs Notice is not confined to urgent works and is used 
where the protracted failure by an owner to keep a listed building in reasonable repair places the 
building at risk. The Repairs Notice has not been complied with and Truro House continues to 
deteriorate and continues to experience ongoing incidences of vandalism and theft. 

The condition of the stable block continued to deteriorate and became a matter of concern to the 
Council during 2004 in the light of its condition and the level of security against unauthorised 
entry.  On 22 December 2004 the Council served an Urgent Works Notice in order to safeguard 
the stable building and to arrest any further deterioration.  The Urgent Works notice was not 
complied with and so the Council’s contractors are due to commence these works in default on 
26 January 2005.

During a site meeting on Tuesday 23rd January 2007 Council’s Conservation Officer found that a 
painting which formed part of the interior architectural scheme of the ground floor Drawing Room 
at Truro House has been removed from the building without the benefit of listed building consent.    

Consultation

Public

Consultation letters have been issued to 544 neighbouring properties. 6 replies have been 
received objecting to the application on the following grounds: 

Highways

- Increased traffic 
- Highway safety, particularly in respect of the nearby schools 
- Access location on Oakthorpe Road 
- Proximity to traffic lights 

Page 95



- Disruption to rush hour traffic 
- Lack of parking 
- Combination with traffic and parking problems of other local uses including St.    Anne’s School, 
Honeysuckle House, the Shree Darji Pavilian and the Mosque 
- Increased pressure on parking since the previous refused application 
- Roads are used as a cut through to the North Circular 

Other matters 

- Impact on the character of the area 
- Previous applications were refused 
- Planning approvals are changing the face of Palmers Green for the worse including     flats and 
takeaways
- Increased pollution 
- Overcrowding of the local area 
- Overdevelopment 
- Increase in crime 
- Impact on quality of life of residents 
- Impact on infrastructure, in particular sewerage, which seeps into Ecclesbourne Gardens 

In addition, a petition with 23 signatures from residents of Ecclesbourne Gardens has been 
received objecting to the application on the following grounds: 

- The four-storey block will be the highest in the neighbourhood, which will create a visual impact 
in the midst of an area of low-rise residential properties 
- Lack of parking, in particular due to the narrow width of Oakthorpe Road and already insufficient 
parking provisions.  Any shortfall would lead to substantially increased congestion and dangerous 
driving practices, a major concern is a direct route to the local school used daily by parents 
dropping off their children at the peak rush hour 

External

English Heritage states that specialist staff have considered the information received and do not 
wish to offer any comments on this occasion, recommending that the application be determined in 
accordance with national and local policy guidance, and on the basis of the Council’s specialist 
conservation advice.  This response was subsequently authorised by the Government Officer for 
London, on behalf of the Secretary of State. 

The Ancient Monuments Society comments that the application may be the last best hope for the 
building and they do not wish to lodge objections.  They welcome, in particular, the return of Truro 
House itself to single family occupation with the repair of its remarkable interiors and the retention 
of sufficient curtilage unencumbered by new build for it to retain the sense of a villa in its garden.  
However, the response goes on to state that Davis House is a hard price to pay - a substantial 
block of flats ringed by verandas and stopped by an octagon. References to the latter as being 
somehow akin to a garden building are implausible given its ring of glazing and great size. The 
Society comments that they would have preferred a more continuous block, better addressing the 
river.  Nevertheless the key consideration is that any " enabling development " be pulled back 
from Truro House so that there is no competitor in views from Green Lanes and the Town Hall - 
and that is the case. The response concludes that they presume any consent will follow the 
guidelines in English Heritage's various publications on Enabling Development - in particular that 
work on the listed buildings is well advanced before the new build is commenced. 

The London and Middlesex Archaeological Society’s Historic Buildings & Conservation 
Committee accepts that there has to be enabling development involved with the restoration and 

Page 96



repair of Truro House together with the conversion of the Coach House but comments that 
keeping the restoration and repair of the building on hold until the economy improves financially 
might be appropriate given that the amount of enabling development should be the minimum 
necessary to secure the restoration of the historic asset and that this amount of development will 
reduce as the economic situation improves.  The response goes on to state that overall, the 
Committee welcomed the proposal to restore Truro House, which is badly needed, and did not 
object, in principle, to the extension of the Coach House although the design could be more 
imaginative given the large flat roof extension. The dummy pitch was not considered appropriate 
and there were concerns over the blocked gateway. In addition the proposed new gates were 
considered over ornate, and a simpler design would be more in character. The Oakthorpe House 
new building was objected to as it would dominate the Coach House and is inappropriate to the 
setting of the building.  Possibly a contrasting architectural style would help to reduce this over-
dominance. The scale required is that of outbuildings or a service wing to the main house, in 
keeping with the existing Coach House.  Davis House – the proposed block on the New River – 
also appeared grossly out of scale and would be severely detrimental to the setting of the main 
Listed Building. It was noted that it would appear as a 4-storey building from the river, and even 
though the tree cover makes it difficult to assess the impact at the moment, it was not felt to be an 
appropriate form of development.  The potential development overall therefore appears to be 
detrimental to the setting of the Listed Building and unacceptable. The Committee would urge the 
Council to reject this Application and to request and require a revised, more sympathetic scheme. 

The Environment Agency has no objection to the scheme, subject to directives relating SUDS 
and a comment that Thames Water should be consulted as the proposed basement level is within 
approximately 1 metre of the wall of the New River. 

Thames Water expresses concern that after investigation they have identified an inability of the 
existing waste water infrastructure to accommodate the needs of the application.  Whilst they do 
not seek for permission to be refused, they request a Grampian condition, that development shall 
not commence until a the approval of a drainage strategy detailing any on and/or off site drainage 
works and there shall be no discharge until these works have been completed.  They state that 
this condition is necessary to prevent sewage flooding.  Directives relating to surface water 
drainage, the installation of a non-return valve to prevent storm surcharge and that the New River 
aqueduct is adjacent to the site and special precautions will be required to avoid damage or 
pollution.

Arriva, who operate the bus service in Palmers Green and the bus garage in Regents Avenue 
located towards the North Circular express concern regarding the generation of additional traffic 
and parking, both during construction and once the development is complete.  The response 
states that the area is already subject to heavy traffic and will be more so over the next three 
years while the A406 North Circular Road is reconstructed.  There is a bus lane adjacent to the 
site on Green Lanes, which is heavily used by frequent bus services.  The response expresses 
concern that parking associated with the development would obstruct the bus lane.  

The Metropolitan Police’s Crime Prevention Design Advisor does not object to the application but 
sets out the importance of designing out crime.  The response seeks the adoption of Secure by 
Design principles highlighting the relevant sections.  Due to the open nature of the grounds, it is 
suggested that the entire development benefits from a strong and secure boundary treatment.  
The response suggests a 1.8 metre high railing with anti scale finials along the boundary with the 
New River, Honeysuckle House and Green Lanes along with secure controlled access to both 
vehicular and pedestrian gates. 

Internal

Page 97



The Housing Strategy Team comments that in light of the shortage of family sized 
accommodation, the size mix of residential units should comprise 50% family sized homes with 3 
or more bedrooms.  Also, in keeping with the London Plan target, at least 10% of units should be 
wheelchair accessible or easily adaptable. 

The Housing Enabling Team expresses concern regarding the lack of affordable housing 
provision.

The Head of Cleansing comment that no refuse storage facilities appear to be provided. 

The Council’s Aboricultural officer does not object to the application but comments that the 
submitted tree assessment dates back to 1999. Whilst the findings relating to the condition of the 
trees and the principles relating to retaining the trees are sound, time has moved impacting on 
the trees on the site. For example a large poplar in the south east corner of the site fell in January 
2007 onto the adjacent Honeysuckle House causing substantial damage to the building. 
Accordingly it may be prudent to initiate a new survey under the principles of BS 5837: 2005  
(Trees in relation to construction), which updates BS 5837:1991, which was applied by the Tree 
Consultancy Group in 1999. 

Any response from  Economic Development, Education or Place Shaping will be reported at the 
meeting.

Conservation Advisory Group

The Group has no objection providing there is overall support for the scheme but states some 
concerns regarding the roof to Davis House with cut aways visible on the New River elevation, 
the external treatment to the basement, that appropriate weight be given to the impact on the 
green chain and that comments from The Enfield Society should be taken into account. 

The Conservation Officer questions whether the amount of development is above the floor space 
agreed at pre-application stage and why the repair schedule now allows for exact replicas of lost 
fireplaces instead of simple replacements to minimise cost.   

Questions are also raised regarding the date of the 1999 Arboricultural Survey, whether the trees 
affecting Truro House are to be removed and whether the structural survey reflects the advice of 
English Heritage’s Structural Engineer. 

Comments on each block are provided below 

Davis House
Plans largely reflect those at pre-application stage, although they now show railings to all 
balconies on the north elevation rather than some brickwork ones.  Questions are raised over the 
void areas, which could feasibly be floored over in future affecting floorspace 

English Heritage sought a) the block foreshortened by deletion of the octagonal block, which has 
not been done; b) more planting between the listed building and the new one, which could be 
covered by condition; and, c) balconies carried around the octagon, which has been done. It is 
understood English Heritage will be suggesting that the balconies are also carried around the first 
floor (north elevation, that the arched entrance feature is better architecturally defined and that 
the roof is articulated (chimneys). 

Oakthorpe House
Given it is following a traditional design approach, it should have a chimney stack at roof level.  

Page 98



Coach House 
There are changes to the openings.  However, as this is a rebuild rather than a conversion that 
does give opportunity to change and to improve awkward items e.g. staircase access, a large 
modern picture window in the south elevation first floor etc. The adjacent double garage between 
the stables and Oakthorpe House appears to have been deleted and replaced by double gates in 
a high wall. The elevation to Oakthorpe Road is now a double set of entrance gates between 
stone piers, the question is raised as to whether brick would be more in keeping than stone.  The 
stable extension roof arrangement has changed since pre app - and now has a large area of flat 
top - this seems a reduction in design quality. English Heritage previously sought a more 
subservient and sympathetic stable extension, which has not changed and it is understood 
English Heritage may be suggesting this is reviewed further 

Truro House
The works to the house appear to be unchanged from the previous scheme (which was broadly 
acceptable with regard to the house). The panel above the mantle in the hall appears a different 
size in the proposed, which will need clarifying. 

Finally, a condition or legal agreement will be required to ensure the works to Truro House are 
secured prior to the enabling development taking place.  The response goes on to state that 
details on the following matters will need to secured by condition: 

- fireplaces and overmantles - various rooms throughout - (except where exact replicas of those 
lost based on photographic or drawn evidence) 
- structural drawing for the drawing room wall reconstruction.  
painting, gilding and grisaille overhaul and the decorative plasterwork (Drawing Room) 
- decorative features to be replaced in hall 
- damp diagnosis and repair specifications for g/fl dining room and 1st fl stair / lobby, NE 
bedroom, kitchen and movement to SW bedroom,
- replaced bathroom door, SW bedroom door, Normandy bedroom door  (except where exact 
replicas of those lost based on photographic or drawn evidence) 
- reconstructed pulpit or stair 
- elevations of new partitions to kitchen and NW bedroom 
-works to boundary walls (spec mentions possible reconstruction of new North wall 
materials for reconstructed wall / facebond and pointing to match original / sample panel 
- chimney added and detailed to Davis House and Oakthorpe House  
materials for the Coach House and large scale joinery details of all windows and doors and a 
schedule of retained and reused features 
- materials for all new development including joinery details, surfacing, landscaping and large 
scale details of the new balconies 

Relevant Policies 

London Plan (2008)

3A.1  Increasing Supply of Housing 
3A.2  Borough Housing Targets 
3A.3   Maximising the potential of sites 
3A.5   Housing choice 
3A.6   Quality of new housing provision 
3A.8   Definition of affordable housing 
3A.9   Affordable housing targets 
3A.10  Negotiating affordable housing in individual private residential and mixed-use 

schemes
3A.11   Affordable housing thresholds 

Page 99



3A.17  Addressing the needs of London’s diverse population  
3C.1  Integrating transport and development  
3C.17  Tackling Congestion and Reducing Traffic 
3C.21  Improving Conditions for Walking 
3C.22  Improving Conditions for Cycling 
3C.23  Parking Strategy 
3D.14  Biodiversity and Nature Conservation 
4A.3  Sustainable Design and Construction 
4A.7   Renewable Energy 
4A.12  Flooding 
4A.13   Flood risk management 
4A.14  Sustainable drainage 
4A.19   Improving air quality 
4B.2  Architectural design 
4B.8  Respect the context of local communities 
4B.11  London’s Built Heritage 
4B.12   Heritage Conservation 
4B.13   Historic Conservation Led Regeneration 
Annex 4 Parking standards 

Unitary Development Plan

(I)EN1  Environmental quality 
(I)C1   Heritage conservation 
(II)C1   Archaeology 
(II)C2   Archaeological evaluation 
(II)C12  Management of listed buildings 
(II)C13  Listed buildings at risk 
(II)C14  Repair of buildings at risk 
(II)C16  Prejudicial uses in listed buildings 
(II)C17  Built development in the curtilage of listed buildings 
(II)C18  Use of the grounds of listed buildings 
(II)C19  Development within historic landscapes 
(II)C20  Management of historic landscapes 
(II)C36  Replacement planting 
(II)C38  Loss of trees of public amenity value 
(II)C39  Replacement of trees 
(I)GD1  Regard to Surroundings / Integrated into Local Community 
(I)GD2  Quality of Life and Visual Amenity 
(II)GD3 Character / Design 
(II)GD6 Traffic Generation 
(II)GD8 Site Access and Servicing 
(II)GD12 Development in Areas at Risk from Flooding 
(II)GD13 Increased Risk of Flooding downstream 
(II)H6  Range of size and Tenure 
(II)H8  Privacy and Overlooking 
(II)H9  Amenity Space 
(II)T13  Creation or improvement of accesses 
(II)T14  Contributions from Developers for Highway Works 
(II)T15  Improve, Maintain and Enhance Footways 
(II)T16  Adequate access for pedestrians and disabled persons 
(II)T19  Needs of cyclists and cycle parking standards 
(II)T32  Parking for disabled people 
(II)O7  Development of green chains along the New River 

Page 100



(II)O8  Considering proposals adjacent to the New River 
(II)O9 Encouraging developers to contribute to the creation of further green chain links 

Local Development Framework - Core Strategy Preferred Options

The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires the Council to replace the UDP with a 
Local Development Framework (LDF). The LDF Core Strategy will set out the spatial vision and 
strategic objectives for the Borough. The Core Strategy is at an early stage in its adoption 
process. As this continues the weight given to it will grow and the relevant objectives are reported 
to demonstrate the degree to which the proposals are consistent with the emerging policy 
direction.

SO1  Sustainability and Climate Change 
SO3  Protect and enhance Enfield's environmental quality; 
SO6  High quality, sustainably constructed, new homes to meet the aspirations of local 

people
SO8  Affordable Housing, Family Homes and Social Mix 
SO11  Safer and stronger communities 
SO16  Preserve the local distinctiveness 
SO17 Safeguard established communities and the quality of the local environment 
SO18  Conservation, Listed Buildings and Heritage 
SO21  Sustainable Transport 

Other Material Considerations

PPS1  Delivering Sustainable Communities 
PPS3    Housing 
PPS9  Biodiversity and Geological Conservation 
PPG13  Transport 
PPG15  Planning and the Historic Environment 
PPS25  Flood Risk 

English Heritage Policy Statement on Enabling Development and the Conservation of Significant 
Places (2008)

Analysis 

There are a number of key issues raised by this proposal; 

a) the principle of residential development 
b) the principle of development within the curtilage of the listed building 
c) the need for development of the nature and scale currently proposed as ‘enabling 

development’
d) the design and appearance of the proposed enabling development 
e) the impact of the development on the character and appearance of surrounding area 
f) the impact on amenities of neighbouring properties / premises 
g) the impact of the proposed development on existing trees 
h) traffic generation 
i) highway safety along Oakthorpe Road and nearby highways
j) the adequacy of parking and servicing arrangements 
k) impact on green chain, wildlife corridor and site of nature conservation 

Principle of Residential

Page 101



The character of the surrounding area is mixed reflecting its varied composition, which includes 
residential, residential institutions, offices, educational, retail and commercial.  It is considered 
that residential development would be consistent with the character of uses within the 
surrounding area.  The proposal also has the potential to contribute to the housing needs of the 
Borough in accordance with London Plan Policies 3A.1 – 3A.2.  As such, the principle of the 
proposed development is, subject to the detailed matters below, considered acceptable. 

Principle of Development within the Curtilage of the Listed Building

The essential characteristic of late Georgian and Victorian villas, such as Truro House, is their 
setting in spacious grounds.  Truro House is a good example of this having retained this special 
quality in spite of the intensive C20th development which has transformed the surrounding area.  
Securing an appropriate use is the key to the long term survival of listed buildings with the most 
appropriate use normally felt to be that for which the building was originally designed.  Clearly, 
residential use would accord with this objective. 

Policy (II)C17 states that  new development within the grounds of a listed building will normally be 
resisted other than for such ancillary development as is reasonably required in conjunction with a 
suitable use of the listed building.  Moreover, Policy (II)C18 seeks to ensure that the curtilage of 
listed buildings retain their historic form, character and use and where development is permitted, 
it is in character with the historic design and use of the curtilage and does not result in the 
curtilage becoming fragmented. This approach also reflects advice contained in Planning Policy 
Guidance 15 – “Planning and the Historic Environment”.  Particular emphasis is placed upon the 
protection of open landscaped settings, including ‘modest gardens, parks and other open areas 
forming the whole or the historic curtilage of the buildings of special architectural or historic 
interest’.  Truro House is precisely such a case where this policy should apply.   

The application involves development within the curtilage of an important listed building as 
identified through its inclusion on the Buildings at Risk register.  Development of the scale 
proposed within such a curtilage is clearly contrary to adopted policy and there is a presumption 
against the approval of such schemes.  However, the application is submitted on the basis that it 
is ‘enabling development’ to find the necessary works to Truro House.  Where certain strict tests 
are met, such applications will receive special consideration and must balance any harm they 
cause to the character or setting of the listed building with the potentially significant benefits of 
securing its long-term future. 

Enabling Development

English Heritage define ‘enabling development’ as “development that would be unacceptable in 
planning terms but for the fact that it would bring public benefits sufficient to justify it being carried 
out, and which could not otherwise be achieved. The key public benefit to significant places is 
usually the securing of their long-term future.” 

English Heritage’s policy statement ‘Enabling Development and the Conservation of Significant 
Places’ establishes a presumption against ‘enabling development’ which does not meet seven 
criteria, which are :- .

a) it will not materially harm the heritage values of the place or its setting 
b) it avoids detrimental fragmentation of management of the place 
c) it will secure the long-term future of the place and, where applicable, its continued use for 

a sympathetic purpose 
d) it is necessary to resolve problems arising from the inherent needs of the place, rather 

than the circumstances of the present owner, or the purchase price paid  
e) sufficient subsidy is not available from any other source 

Page 102



f) it is demonstrated that the amount of enabling development is the minimum necessary to 
secure the future of the place, and that its form minimises harm to other public interests  

g) the public benefit of securing the future of the significant place through such enabling 
development decisively outweighs the disbenefits of breaching other public policies. 

There are numerous appeal decisions and a body of case law that demonstrates that English 
Heritage policy statements are material considerations, which must be taken into account.

Each of the criteria will be assessed within the relevant section below, before a conclusion is 
drawn on whether the proposal is considered to represent “enabling development”. 

Density

The site is within walking distance of the Palmers Green Town Centre to the north, and Green 
Lanes Local Centre to the south, in an area characterised by mixed-use development. For the 
purposes of the London Plan density matrix, it is considered the site lies within an urban area. 
The site is situated in an area designated PTAL 3, indicating comparatively good links to public 
transportation. In such areas, a density of 200 to 450 habitable rooms per hectare is suggested.  
Given the predominance of units with more than 3.8 habitable rooms within the vicinity of the site, 
the matrix further suggests a unit range of 45 to 120 units per hectare, which is the least dense 
option within PTAL 2-3 Urban.  Consequently, an acceptable density would be towards the lower 
end of the 200 to 450 hrph, at around 250-300 hrph.  However, the density of the site will be far 
more significantly limited by the impact of the buildings on Truro House and the need to retain its 
open character and gardens. 

The proposal, including Truro House itself, is for 3 x 1-bed, 12 x 2-bed, 11 x 3-bed and 1 x 4 bed 
units, resulting in 93 habitable rooms giving a residential density of 156 hrph (93/0.595 ha) or 45 
u/h, which someway falls below the range set out in the London Plan.  However, advice contained 
in PPS1 and PPS3, states that a numerical assessment of density must not be the sole test of 
acceptability: it must also depend on the attainment of appropriate scale and design relative to 
character and appearance of the surrounding area.  In this instance, the scale of development 
must be the minimum necessary to ensure the future of the listed building, which would take 
precedence over the efficient use of land encouraged by the London Plan and PPS3.  It is 
considered that the density of the site will be dictated by obtaining an acceptable layout and built 
form, which is assessed in detail below. 

Layout and Scale

The overall layout of the development seeks to take advantage of the fall in ground levels towards 
the New River: a difference of some 3.5 metres.  Oakthorpe House, will be aligned with the rebuilt 
Coach House.  Davis House will be sited fronting the New River where the ground levels mean 
that, notwithstanding its three storey height, its eaves level will match that of Oakthorpe House, 
which are in turn, will be slightly below the lowest eaves of Truro House.  Davis House, which 
provides the largest mass of new development, is positioned in the southeast corner of the site to 
maximise the distance from and the setting of Truro House. 

Overall, the siting of each of the three proposed buildings will be over 30 metres from Truro 
House at their nearest points. In addition, retained and proposed trees provide additional visual 
separation and the proposed planted balconies aim to soften the impact of Davis House.  It is 
considered, on balance, that if it is necessary to accommodate the amount of development 
proposed within the curtilage of Truro House, the proposed layout and scale of the buildings 
would provide for the least impact on Truro House itself and its immediate gardens. 

Design and Impact on the Character and Setting of the Listed Building

Page 103



The Coach House

It is proposed to demolish the Coach House and rebuild a larger block in the same location.  
Whilst it is recognised that the stables are an important feature, its extremely poor condition mean 
that the costs of restoration would be significant and  require a greater amount of enabling 
development.  It is therefore considered that the additional harm from further enabling 
development would outweigh the benefit of restoration and thus, no objection is raised to its 
demolition.

The proposed design reflects a traditional approach.  English Heritage had previously raised 
concerns regarding the extent of the proposed ‘extensions’ and although they have declined to 
comment on the current proposals, in the light of their previous comments, it is considered that 
the width of the proposed extensions at 5.5 metres wide, are greater than the width of the stable 
block building which is only 4.5 metres.  Notwithstanding that the ‘extensions’ are largely single 
storey, it is considered this would result in an unbalanced and discordant appearance.  Whilst 
these concerns must be balanced with providing an acceptable form of living accommodation, it is 
considered that the ‘extensions’ will need to be reduced in width to 4.5 metres and    amended 
plans are being prepared to address this issue. This reduction will also address concerns 
regarding the appearance of the flat roof element of the  ‘extension’.  However, there remains a 
discrepancy in the details submitted 
and clarification has been sought. An update on these matters will be provided at the meeting. 

Adjacent to the Coach House is the proposed access which is shown with a double set of 
entrance gates between stone piers.  Concerns have been raised that brick piers would be more 
sympathetic and the applicant has accepted this alteration.  Amended details of the gates will be 
secured by condition. 

Overall, it is considered that the Coach House will provide a sympathetic replacement of the 
existing stables building and is therefore considered acceptable. 

Oakthorpe House 

The proposed new building “Oakthorpe House” also follows a traditional design  providing a two-
storey building under a hipped roof with detailing such as doors, windows and eaves comparable 
with existing features.  A bay feature to the western elevation has been simplified and is now 
considered to sympathetically relate to  a similar feature on Truro House.  However, it has been 
agreed to impose a condition  to secure the addition of a chimney stack to improve the overall 
appearance. 

The building is aligned with the western edge of the currently proposed ‘extension’ to the Coach 
House.  However, this alignment will change in light of the reduction to the extension referred to 
above.  An update on the implications of this alteration will be provided at the meeting. 

Concerns have been raised regarding the scale of the building, suggesting that it would be more 
appropriately designed as a service building or outbuilding to the main house, as well as its 
potential to dominate the Coach House.  However, it is  considered that it is not necessary in 
historic or visual terms to replicate the scale of the Coach House.  The proposed building will be 
approximately 30 metres from Truro House and have subservient eaves and ridge lines.  Whilst 
visually it will provide for a larger building that the extended Coach House, its footprint will be 
comparable with this building and thus, it will not be overly dominant. In addition, the resulting 
dwelling would be likely to attract a financial premium, which would serve to limit the overall 
amount of development within the curtilage. 

Page 104



Overall, therefore, although the proposed building would be a large two storey dwelling in close 
proximity to the Coach House, it is considered, on balance, having particular regard to the need 
to provide enabling development, as well as the suitability of the design features, that the 
proposed building is acceptable. 

Davis House 

The form of Davis House, as referred to above, seeks to utilise the fall in ground levels to provide 
a 3 storey development at a level below Truro House itself.  The design again follows a traditional 
form with a hipped roof over the main block and sloped roof pitched to the centre of an octagonal 
block.  The window and header detailing relates well to the other buildings on the site and the 
vertical alignment of the windows serves to relieve some of the horizontal emphasis of the 
proposed building.  The variation in shape and plane, as well as the proposed landscaped 
balconies serve to break up its overall mass.  It is considered that these features combine to 
provide for an acceptable treatment to all elevations. 

English Heritage previous sought the reduction of the block through the removal of the octagonal 
block.  However, the applicant states that this would make the enabling development unviable.   

Comments have been made that  the scale of the building will be detrimental to the setting of the 
main Listed Building and there can be no denying that the proposal would represent a significant 
presence within the curtilage that will therefore impact upon the character of the listed building.  
However, taking into account the amount of development required to secure the heritage asset, 
as well as the design, degree of separation from Truro House itself, the tree screen and ground 
levels, it is considered on balance, that the proposal is acceptable. 

Nevertheless, in recognition of other comments that have been received, a response is awaited in 
terms of securing an extension of the balconies around the  northern elevation and improvements 
to better architecturally define the entrance arch.  An update on these matters will be provided at 
the meeting. 

It is also acknowledged that CAG questioned the future potential for void areas within the 
development to be in filled to provide additional floorspace.  However, the presence of double 
height spaces will in turn attract a premium which serves to limit the amount of enabling 
development required.  It is considered, on balance, that the proposed void areas are acceptable. 

The impact on trees on the site will be discussed in more detail below.  However, it is considered 
that the location of proposed buildings and car parking within the curtilage would serve to limit the 
impact of the loss of trees on the setting of the listed building.   
Additional planting between Truro House and the proposed building will be secured by condition. 

Overall, it is considered that the design of the Davis House responds well to the demand and 
constraints of the site, screening its most significant impacts from Truro House itself and 
providing for an acceptable visual appearance.  Having regard to all of the above matters, it is 
considered, on balance, that the proposed building is acceptable. 

Truro House 

It is proposed that Truro House will be restored in accordance with the submitted details, as 
closely as possible, to its condition in the early 1990’s.  The works will include: structural repairs 
of parts of the east and south east walls; a general overhaul of drainage and roofs including 
relaying of roof finishes, removal of asbestos and rots; repairs to walls ceilings and floors affected 
by structural movement; joinery and plasterwork will generally be restored to their original 
condition after building works are completed; and removed fire surrounds, ornamental mirrors and 

Page 105



parquet floor finishes etc. will be reinstated within the cost limits imposed by English Heritage.  
The details go on to state that the general aim is to repair and restore items using materials and 
finishes to match the existing/original designs, with the aim of providing a restored four bedroom 
house with plumbing, heating etc to modern standards and set in attractive restored gardens. 

The Conservation Officer has questioned the use of exact replicas of lost fireplaces instead of 
simple replacements to minimise cost and the detailing of the panel above the mantel in the hall.  
However, the applicant confirms that the costs of the replicas reflect those previously agreed with 
the Council’s consultants and the panel, which was covered in a previous scheme, reflects the 
original and will be restored.  Further comments are awaited from the Conservation Officer, which 
will be reported at the meeting.  However, it is understood that the proposed replica fireplaces 
were proposed instead of traditional salvaged fireplaces, which may themselves have been the 
previous subject of architectural theft. 

The proposed structural works have been the subject of considerable discussion with English 
Heritage’s Structural Engineer.  A request has been made for English Heritage to confirm that the 
current proposals accords with their latest discussions an  and an update will be provided at the 
meeting.

It will be necessary to secure the submission of details on a considerable number of matters in 
response to the comments of the Conservation Officer.  In addition, it will be necessary to enter 
into a S106 agreement to provide certainty that the proposed works to Truro House will be 
completed prior to the new development taking place.  In addition, the guidance from English 
Heritage on Enabling Development makes it clear that there should be long-term security and 
maintenance of the heritage asset to ensure that no further need for enabling development 
arises.

Overall, subject to the requisite legal agreement and details conditions refereed to above, it is 
considered that the proposed works will provide for the appropriate restoration of Truro House 
and its grounds. 

Conclusion on Design and Impact on the Character and Setting of the Listed Building  

In conclusion, it is considered that the proposal has been well sited, makes positive use of the 
levels on the site enabling its form to minimise harm and provides for a high standard of design. 
In addition, it is considered to be sympathetic to the character of the listed building.  The proposal 
also avoids detrimental fragmentation of the site and with the S106 agreement, would secure the 
long-term future of Truro House for its original use as a single dwellings house.  Enabling 
development, by its very nature, creates a degree of harm to the heritage asset; what must be 
considered is whether a proposal harms its material values.  In this instance it is considered, on 
balance, the proposal will not materially harm the heritage values of Truro House or its setting. It 
should also be noted that the Conservation Advisory Group supports the scheme 

Development Appraisal

The primary matters to be considered are the site cost, the development summaries provided by 
the application and the net saleable floor space proposed. 

Site Cost 

The English Heritage guide on enabling development provides that the acquisition cost for 
enabling development purposes should be the market value of the property in its current 
condition, which may be negative or zero where significant works are required.  It advises that the 
actual price paid should be disregarded if it is based on the hope of obtaining permission for 

Page 106



development contrary to adopted policy.  The site cost in respect of this site is listed as 
approximately £1.68 million. The final value of the Truro House and the Coach House once 
completed is estimated to be a total of £1 million and approximately £1.8 million will be spent on 
their restoration, suggesting that the current value of the site is minimal.  As such, 
notwithstanding that holding costs will have been incurred, the site cost is difficult to reconcile. 

It is considered that it must be concluded that the site costs provided by the applicant are far 
greater than the sites true market value.  This is a matter of significant concern when considering 
whether this proposal meets the enabling development tests.  Moreover, in this case, the amount 
of the purchase price paid has a significant impact on the amount of development required to 
provide for the successful restoration.  The guidance provided by English Heritage suggests that 
this figure be discarded in favour of a nominal sum.  However, the difficulty with such an 
approach in respect of Truro House is that it would do nothing to secure the future of the building.  
Indeed, the only alterative would be the potentially costly and uncertain process of the Council 
seeking to compulsory purchase the site of another, potentially lengthy, delay in resolving the 
buildings future. 

It is considered that the current proposals represent the best means of securing the long term 
future of Truro House, and to exclude the land value from the enabling development calculations 
would mean that the scheme would not proceed.  Having regard to all of these matters and 
affording particular weight to the need to provide for the long-term future of Truro House, it is 
considered, on balance, that the site costs shown are acceptable. 

Development Summaries and Net Floor Space  

The applicant has provided two development summaries that provide residual valuations for the 
proposed development.  These involve the calculation of the eventual sales values of each of the 
units and the deduction of all of the development cost, including land, construction, restoration, 
finance and professional fees.  After calculation a residual development profit remains.  The 
summaries provide calculations based upon sales values of the flats at rates of £350/sq ft and 
£299/sq ft, which is the equivalent of approximately £275,000 and £235,000 for two bedroom 
units, respectively.  Both of the development appraisals provide for a loss by the developer of 
approximately £32,500 and £975,000, respectively.   

The development summaries, however, are each based upon 23 two bedroom and 2 one 
bedroom units rather than the actual mix proposed on site.  This follows the meetings with the 
developer in January and February 2008, where calculations were agreed to provide for a 
maximum of 17,250 sq ft of new enabling development.  At that time the arrangement of units put 
forth by the developer was for either 23 two bedroom units at 725 sq ft (67 square metres) each 
or 19 two bedroom and 6 one bedroom units providing within the same net saleable area.  The 
principle agreed upon was based upon the amount of net saleable floorspace.  

The applicant suggests that the proposals now provide 17,840 sq ft of net saleable floorspace, 
after detailed measurement of the proposed drawings the total net internal areas excluding 
hallways was approximately 17,800 sq ft.  Taking the applicants figure, this is some 590 sq ft 
above the figure agreed in principle.  In addition, the mix of units provides for an additional 
bedroom in 10 of the units.  However, the additional floor space represents only approximately 
3% of the agreed figure and whilst 10 of the units provide an additional bedroom they provide for 
approximately the same total saleable floorspace.  Moreover, no account has been made for the 
fact that these figures were agreed January 2008.  As a result they do not reflect some 
approximately 18 months of reducing house and land prices, with a far more limited reduction in 
construction costs.  The applicant suggests that if the calculations were to be assessed it is likely 
that a greater amount of enabling development would now be required. 

Page 107



For a means of comparison, whilst there will clearly be some differences in value and 
specification, the 2 bedroom flats for sale within the new Fairview development to the south of the 
North Circular Road are currently on the market for approximately £200,000.  The area of the 
units is approximately 700 sq ft providing a price per sq ft of approximately £286, which is 
approximately 18% below the £350 per sq ft referred to above. 

Having regard to all of the above matters, it is considered that the wholesale review of the figures 
would not be in the best interests of providing for the timely restoration of Truro House.  Indeed, 
as time progresses the building is under greater threat and the costs of repairs is only set to 
increase whilst, if the current trend continues, the sale prices of the enabling development units 
may decrease.   

Conclusion on development appraisal 

It is considered that the proposed development provides for the best reasonable option of 
securing the long-term future of Truro House as it is considered sufficient subsidy is not available 
from any other source to provide for the works. 

Overall, whilst there are some discrepancies that are explained above, it is considered that the 
figures reflect the advice and figures previously obtained from specialist consultants.  As such, it 
is considered that the provide an accurate reflection of the enabling development calculation and 
demonstrate that the minimum amount of development required to secure the future of the 
heritage asset is proposed. 

Conclusion on enabling development

It is acknowledged though the consultation process, that some view this scheme as a hard price 
to pay for the requisite restoration. However, the proposal must be considered in light of the 
significant ongoing need to secure the long-term future of Truro House.   

Nevertheless, having regard to all of the above factors, it is considered, on balance, that the 
proposal meets the relevant tests and does represent enabling development.  It is considered the
public benefit of securing the future of the significant place through this enabling development 
does outweighs the disbenefits of breaching other planning policies and consequently, this 
element of the proposal is acceptable. 

The remaining planning matters relating to highways, the character and appearance of the 
surrounding area, the impact on neighbours amenities and other matters are now considered 
below.

Highway matters

The previous application involving a total of 53 residential units was refused due to issues relating 
to substandard access, inadequate on-site turning and parking facilities and levels of traffic 
generation.  It will be necessary to consider whether the current proposal has overcome the 
previous concerns. 

Existing Conditions 

Oakthorpe Road is a non-classified road with a mixed frontage comprising residential properties, 
a secondary school (St. Anne’s Upper School), a Mosque, and a community centre.  Oakthorpe 
Road has a high level of traffic demand, a significant proportion of which is through traffic using it 
as a link to and from the North Circular Road. The bridge over the New River, to the east of Truro 
House, constrains traffic flow to one way working and queuing can take place at certain times.  

Page 108



Waiting restrictions operate on the southern side of Oakthorpe Road (8am and 6.30pm Monday 
to Saturday) between the junction with Green Lanes and the bridge over the New River. School 
Keep Clear markings are also in force outside the pedestrian entrance to St Anne’s School on the 
northern side of Oakthorpe Road. Parking to the east of the bridge over the New River is 
generally fairly light.  However, when the Mosque is at its busiest (1200-1400 on a Friday) parking 
occurs on both sides of the road, restricting traffic flow and causing localised congestion.  

Public transport in the vicinity of the site comprises bus routes 121 and 329 which stop on Green 
Lanes adjacent to Truro House. Other services within walking distance include bus routes 29, 34, 
102 and 232. Palmers Green station is approximately 10 minutes walk from the site. The 
measure of public transport accessibility promoted in the London Plan (PTAL) places the site 
within Level 3, which is relatively high for an Outer London location 

Pedestrian routes between the site and the public transport are reasonable and the all red phase 
at the junction of Oakthorpe Road and Green Lanes ensures that pedestrians have a safe 
crossing point. There are no dedicated cycle facilities in the vicinity of the site. However, it is clear 
that the application site is accessible by a range of means of transport. 

Mean of Access 

The access from Oakthorpe Road is in a similar location to the previous scheme, opposite St 
Anne’s Catholic High School. This means that there is the potential for a high level of vehicle 
movements during peak times.  

The proposed access is of a width which is adequate to allow for 2 way vehicle passing.  
However, currently the access is proposed to be gated and although the gates are set back from 
the footway and opens inwards, there would only be approximately 3.5 metre of clearance.  A 
condition is thus included to increase this. 

A further concern relates to sightlines for vehicles exiting the site. Ideally, a distance of 43 metres 
should be available but due to the road alignment and intervening structures / vegetation, this 
would be difficult to achieve.  

Waiting restrictions between 0800-1830 are in place to the east of the site entrance on the south 
of Oakthorpe Road although further improvements would be necessary to provide no waiting at 
any time lines to mitigate the safety concerns, especially given the school opposite the site. 
Subject to this, a clear 43m along the left side of Oakthorpe Road could be maintained. Visibility 
for pedestrians is considered acceptable as the entrance will be wide enough to allow good 
pedestrian visibility (even after reductions), but this should be dropped on both sides to allow for 
pedestrian and wheelchair/buggy crossing. 

Consequently, there will be a requirement for the developer to provide for a road safety 
improvement scheme to mitigate the direct consequences of the development.  This will form part 
of the S106 agreement and will require the developer to fund additional waiting restrictions and 
safety signage up to £10k. Given that there is an existing access with very poor visibility that 
would be improved, it is considered that, on balance, these works will adequately mitigate the 
proposed additional use of the improved access. 

Servicing

The level of servicing traffic generated by the proposed use will comparatively low, with a refuse 
vehicle likely to be the largest vehicle needing to access the site on a regular basis.  Whilst refuse 

Page 109



storage is not shown, given the space available there is scope to achieve an acceptable layout 
which will be secured through a condition. 

Parking

The scheme proposes a total of 27 parking spaces, providing for 100% parking provision.  The 
submitted Transport Assessment indicates that the maximum standard within the London Plan for 
the development would be 33.5 spaces.  However, the site has a relatively high PTAL rating and 
is close to bus services on Green Lanes and Palmers Green Station.  The bays are all accessible 
although some disabled parking needs to be shown, which can be secured by condition.  
Concerns have been raised regarding the level of parking and pressures within the surrounding 
area.  However, the provision of additional parking spaces would result in the further erosion of 
the grounds of the listed building and thus on balance, the number of parking spaces is 
considered acceptable 

To address concerns that some of the bays would affect  trees along the boundary with 
Honeysuckle house, a condition will secure the use of a from of geo-grid to distribute the weight 
of any vehicle to prevent root compaction and harm to the trees.   

Traffic Generation 

The previous application was refused on the basis of increased trip generation.  However, the 
current scheme application provides for approximately half of the previous proposal.  As such, it 
is considered that the increased traffic would not be at a level that would give rise to highway 
safety concerns that would warrant the refusal of this application  

Other matters 

Concerns have been raised regarding the impact on the adjacent bus land during and after 
construction.  It is considered that a construction management plan will be required and can be 
secured by condition.  Following occupation of the proposed development, it is considered that 
the existing restrictions and enforcement of the bus lane would be adequate to control any 
unauthorised parking. 

In addition to the matters discussed above, further conditions will be required in respect of details 
of disable parking spaces, hard surfacing, levels, enclosure, use of parking areas, refuse 
collection and cycle parking.   

Highways conclusion 

Overall, it is considered that the mitigation measures and matters to be resolved by conditions 
referred to above will, on balance, provide for an acceptable development that makes appropriate 
provision for access, servicing and car parking having regard to Policies (II)GD6 and (II)GD8 of 
the Unitary Development Plan, Government advice contained in PPG 13 and The London Plan 
policy 3C.23. 

Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Surrounding Area

It is considered that due to the nature of the site and extent of tree screening much of the 
proposed development will not be prominent, and often not immediately visible, within the 
streetscene.  The rebuilt and extended Coach House and repairs to Truro House would provide 
improvements to the streetscene along Oakthorpe Road and the junction with Green Lanes.  
Oakthorpe House and parts of Davis House may be visible from the north and across the 
Honeysuckle House car park, but would not appear overly dominant.  The greatest external visual 

Page 110



impact will be from Davis House along the New River.  However, the building is sited 
approximately 40 metres from Green Lanes itself and the proposed planted balconies will serve 
to reduce is bulk.  Whilst some concerns remain regarding the potential for the southern elevation 
to be overly dominant, it is considered, on balance, that its appearance will be acceptable. 

Overall, it is considered that the proposal will have an acceptable appearance within the 
streetscene and from the New River and will not harm the character of the surrounding area. 

Impact on Amenities of Neighbouring Premises

Policy (II)H8 seeks to maintain privacy and prevent overlooking in the case of residential 
development and Appendix A1.7 sets out minimum distances between facing windows.  Appendix 
A1.7 requires a minimum of 25 metres for 2-3 storey buildings and 30 metres for 3-3 storey 
buildings.  Paragraph 13 states that an increased distance will be required in cases where 
buildings are a greater height.  Consideration must also be given to the increased potential for 
overlooking from the proposed balconies and dormer windows. 

On the opposite side of the New River are the residential properties of Ecclesbourne Gardens.  
However, there is a distance of over 30 metres to the ends of the gardens of these properties and 
approximately 50 metres to the houses themselves.  Having regard to the Council’s standards, no 
adverse effect is considered to arise in terms of loss of light, outlook and privacy (through 
overlooking) prejudicial to their residential amenity.  

To the east is the two-storey Honeysuckle House, a residential care home. Davis House is sited a 
minimum distance of 18 metres away the nearest part of Honeysuckle House.  Appendix A1.6 of 
the UDP sets out minimum distances between facing residential buildings, for a building of the 
proposed storey height the minimum distance should be at least 25 metres.  However, there are 
trees retained along this boundary and, moreover, the views would be across the car towards the 
service end of the building with any windows to habitable rooms set approximately a further 10 
metres away.  As such, it is not considered this relationship would give rise to an unacceptable 
degree of overlooking. 

To the north on  the opposite side of Oakthorpe Road is St Anne’s RC School, a car sales 
premises and 178 Green Lanes whilst to the west on the opposite side of Green Lanes is 
Palmers Green “Town Hall” and library.  The development would not give rise to conditions 
through loss of light or outlook to any of these properties or uses. 

Housing matters

The current housing needs assessment indicates that the overall mix of new housing sought 
should be as follows: 13% x 1-bed, 37% x 2-bed, 36% x 3-bed and 14% x 4-bed.  The mix of the 
current scheme is as follows: 11% x 1 bed, 44% x 2 bed, 41% x 3 bed and 4% x 4-bed. This 
indicates a lack of four bedroom units and an overprovision of two bedroom units.  Nevertheless, 
taking into account the affect that 45% of the total would be family sized accommodation, this 
composition is considered acceptable.  Moreover, the unit numbers and sizes have been finely 
balanced to meet the enabling development requirements.   

The adopted standards within the UDP for internal floor areas provides for a minimum of 45 
square metres for a one bedroom unit, 57 square metres for two bedroom unit and 80 square 
metres for 3 bedroom unit.  With reference to the standard of residential accommodation being 
provided, the proposed units meet and often exceed this standards. 

In addition, in respect of outlook and privacy of the proposed units, the only areas of concern 
relate to outlook from the basement units of and potential loss of privacy to the occupiers of Davis 

Page 111



House from the footpath along the New River.  However, at its nearest point, the proposed 
retaining structure along the boundary with the New River will be only 0.8 metres high and at a 
distance of 4 metres from the south facing windows and this separation will increase to 6 metres 
as the height of the retaining structure increases to a maximum of 2.5 metres.  There is also 
potential for planting this structure, in accordance with details submitted via condition, which 
would soften its impact and improve nature conservation along the New River.  Overall, it is 
considered there will be an acceptable outlook from this property.  In respect of loss of privacy, it 
is considered that the views into the properties would be consistent with any form of waterfront 
living and no objection is raised. 

The adopted standards for amenity space provision seek an amount equal to 100% of the gross 
internal area (GIA) for dwellings, 75% of the GIA for flats with 2 or more bedrooms and 50% 
provision for flats with one bedroom.  Having regard to the internal areas of all of the proposed 
buildings the communal amenity space provided exceeds the adopted standard and is considered 
acceptable. 

The London Plan seeks to ensure all major developments include at least 10% of the units as 
wheelchair accessible. Currently no provision is made within the scheme.  However, there may 
be potential that units 2 or 3 of the units on the ground floor could be provided.  An update on this 
matter will be provided at the meeting and, if necessary, could form the subject of a planning 
condition.

The scheme does not provide any affordable housing, nor has a requirement been made for an 
education contribution. However, both of these matters would add to the cost of development, 
which in turn would require a greater number of units and a more significant impact on the 
character of the listed building.  English Heritage’s guidance on enabling development states that 
such requirements should therefore normally be avoided.  In this instance, the exceptional 
circumstances of the case and the delicate balance of the amount of development against the 
impact on the character of the listed building it is considered that such requirements should not 
be imposed. 

Trees

There are a number of trees within the curtilage of the listed building some of which are the 
subject of Tree Preservation Orders.  To assist the assessment of the proposal in terms of its 
effect on trees within the site, an arboricultural report has been submitted as part of the 
application supporting the proposals put forward.  As stated above, there are retained and 
proposed trees providing separation between Truro House and the new development.  In 
addition, trees will be retained around much of the perimeter of the site.  However, it is 
acknowledged that the development will result in the loss of a number of trees in the eastern half 
of the site.  Essentially, these are located within the footprints of the new buildings and part of the 
parking area.  Whilst retention of these trees may have been preferable, the scheme has been 
designed to minimise tree loss. In order to facilitate an acceptable scheme, this is accepted in 
conjunction with the proposed landscaping measures. However, to ensure the works to trees 
remain appropriate, a condition is proposed requiring a revised report to be submitted including a 
schedule of works to trees. 

In addition, the Conservation Officer questioned whether the trees that have had an adverse 
impact Truro House itself are shown as being removed.  Further clarification has been sought on 
this matter and will be reported at the meeting. 

Green Chain

Page 112



The New River runs along the southern boundary of the application site and is designated a 
Green Chain, Wildlife Corridor and a Site of Nature Conservation Importance.  Policy (II)O6 seeks 
to promote public access, nature conservation and environmental improvements along this 
corridor. In particular, the New River is an opportunity to interlink and improve access between 
open spaces, footpaths, river corridors, not only for the public but also for wildlife. 

Although any development will result in a reduction of the natural environment and habitats 
alongside the New River frontage, there are some concerns regarding the proximity of the 
proposed development to the New River.  However, it is considered that the proposed planted 
balconies will assist in softening the impact and provide for a suitable transition between built 
form and the New River.  As such, it is considered  that the proposal will not prejudice the 
objectives of the green chain or its status as a wildlife corridor. 

Sustainable Design and Construction

Policy 4A.6 of the London Plan (2008) relates to sustainable design and construction seeking to 
ensure that the design and construction of the proposed development has regard to 
environmental sustainability issues such as energy and water conservation, renewable energy 
generation, and efficient resource use. The submitted Sustainability Assessment Form has 
received a grade of 86%, which is considered acceptable.  The submitted form states that a 
Sustainable Drainage System approach will not be adopted.  However, it is not considered that 
such an approach is required and this view is supported by the Environment Agency.  As such, a 
condition requiring SUDS is proposed. 

The applicant states that the new buildings will meet Secure by Design Standards.  In addition, a 
directive is proposed drawing their attention to the comments of the Crime Prevention Design 
Advisor.  The comments relating to enclosure will also be addressed through condition.  It should 
be noted that the secure boundary requested will need to be carefully assessed in respect of any 
potential impact on Truro House itself. 

The applicant has also provided a Sustainable Energy Report, which concludes that in would not 
be feasible to provide low carbon technology to Truro House itself and the Coach House lacks 
sufficient south facing roof space for either photovoltaic or solar thermal panels.  However, the 
report recommends a solar hot water installation to Oakthorpe and Davis House. It also states 
that further reductions can be achieved to the Coach House by using either a communal ground 
source heating system or biomass boiler.  No details of the appearance of the solar thermal 
additions have been included and there are concerns that the external visual appearance may be 
incompatible with the buildings location in relation to the listed building.  However, there area also 
concerns regarding the welfare of the trees on the site in respect of excavations necessary for 
ground source heating.  It is considered that between solar thermal, ground source, a biomass 
boiler or a combination it will be possible to achieve the 20% target for onsite renewables set out 
within the London Plan.  A condition requiring a further report and approval of details is proposed. 

Other Matters

Concerns have been raised regarding the adequacy of sewerage infrastructure. Thames Water 
have confirmed that they have identified an inability of the existing waste water infrastructure to 
accommodate the needs of the application and a condition is requested that prevents 
development without first carrying out works in accordance with an approved drainage strategy.  
It is considered that this will adequately mitigate the impact of the proposed development on 
waste water infrastructure. 

To ensure any proposals for alteration are given appropriate detailed attention, it will be 
necessary to impose a condition removing permitted development rights for the Coach House 

Page 113



and Truro House, as well as rights for the erection of means of enclose across the site to prevent 
the segregation of curtilage. 

In addition, as the grounds of the building are likely have remained undisturbed for some 
considerable time there will be need for a condition requiring the submission of an Archaeological 
Investigation report. 

Conclusion

In the light of the above assessment, it is considered, on balance, that the proposed development 
does fulfil the tests to represent enabling development so that it can be considered an acceptable 
exception to the presumption against development within the curtilage of a listed building due to 
the safeguarding of the long-term future and restoration of Truro House.   In addition, on balance, 
it is considered the scheme represents an appropriate form of development for this historic 
location and it is therefore considered that planning permission should be granted subject a S106 
agreement relating restoration of Truro House and future management of the building its curtilage 
and a financial contribution towards highway works  

It is therefore recommended that planning permission is approved for the following reasons: 

1 The proposed development involving the restoration and refurbishment Truro House, a 
Grade 2 Listed Building, together with the rebuilding and extension of the Coach House / Stable 
block and the construction of a two new buildings within the curtilage providing 25 flats as 
enabling development, would preserve the special architectural and historic interest of the listed 
property having regard to Policies (I)C1, (II)C13, (II)C16, (II)C17, (II)C18 and  (II)C19 of the 
Unitary development Plan and polices 4B.11, 4B.12 and 4B.13 of the London Plan (2008), as well 
as the objectives of PPG15 and the English Heritage Policy Statement on Enabling Development 
and the Conservation of Significant Places (2008). 

2 The proposed development involving the loss of protected trees on the site and planting of 
replaces would not detract from the setting of the listed building or the character of the 
surrounding area having regard to policies (I)C1, (II)C20, (II)C36, (II)C38 and (II)C39 of the 
Unitary development Plan. 

3 The proposed development would maintain adequate separation and provide appropriate 
landscaping along the New River having regard to policies (II)O7, and  
(II)O9 of the Unitary Development Plan, as well as the objectives of PPS9. 

4 The proposed development would contribute to increasing the range and quantity of the 
Borough’s housing stock, having regard to policies (I)GD1, (I)GD2, (II)H6 of the Unitary 
Development Plan, policy 3A.6 of the London Plan (2008), as well as the objectives of PPS1 and 
PPS3

5 The proposed development of would not detract from the character and appearance or the 
visual amenities of the surrounding area having regard to Policies (I)GD1, (I)GD2 and (II)GD3 of 
the Unitary Development Plan and Policies 4B.8 of the London Plan (2008), as well as the 
objectives of PPS1 and PPS3.  

6 The proposed development would not unduly affect the amenities of adjoining or nearby
residential properties having regard to Policies (I)GD1 and (I)GD2 of the Unitary Development 
Plan, as well as the objectives of PPS1 and PPS3. 

Page 114



7 The proposed development would not prejudice through overlooking or loss of privacy, the 
amenities enjoyed by neighbouring properties, having regard to Policy (II)H8 of the Unitary 
Development Plan, as well as the objectives of PPS1 and PPS3. 

8 The proposed development including the provision of a road safety improvement scheme 
to Oakthorpe Road and 27 car off-street parking and secure cycle spaces would not give rise to 
unacceptable on street parking, volume of traffic, congestion, access or highway safety issues, 
having regard to Policies (II)GD6, (II)GD8, (II)T13 and (II)T14 as of the Unitary Development 
Plan, Policy 3C.23 of the London Plan (2008), as well as the objectives of PPG13. 

Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120

This page is intentionally left blank



© Crown copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Enfield.
License No LA086363, 2003

Scale 1/1250 Date 10/6/2009

TP/07/1029

Centre = 535163 E 192933 N

Page 121



Application Number:  TP/07/1029 Ward:  Edmonton Green       
Date of Registration:  25th June 2007 

Contact:  David Warden 3931 

Location: 4, PRINCES ROAD, LONDON, N18 3PR 

Proposal: Change of use of first floor from warehouse to function hall with ancillary ground floor 
unloading area and office; including retention of existing ground floor warehouse unit; new central 
stairway providing access to first floor function room; alterations to front elevation; and associated 
car parking on site across road at 3 Princes Road. 

Applicant Name & Address:

Dr. Hamdullah  Erpolat 
C/O Agent 

Agent Name & Address:

Carolyn Apcar, Apcar Smith Planning 
Kenetic House 
Theobald Street 
Borehamwood 
Herts
WD6 4PJ 

Recommendation: That planning permission be REFUSED for the following reasons 

1. The proposed use of the first floor of the premises as a function hall (Sui Generis) it would
result in the introduction of an inappropriate activity within a designated Primary Industrial 
Area in the Unitary Development Plan and Strategic Industrial Location in the London Plan 
(2008), detrimental to the function, character, economic activity and availability of viable 
employment land in the area.  The proposed use would also be likely to result in the 
curtailment of adjacent industrial uses.  This would be contrary to Policies (I) GD1, (I) 
GD2, (II) GD2 and (II) E2 of the Unitary Development Plan, Policies 3B.1, 3B.4 and 3B.11 
of the London Plan and the objectives of PPG4: Industrial, Commercial and Small Firms. 

2. The proposal does not make appropriate provision for access and car parking having 
regard to Policies (II) GD6 and (II) GD8 of the Unitary Development Plan, policy 3C.23 of 
the London Plan (2008) and government advice contained in PPG 13. 

3. The car parking facility by reason of its proximity from the main building would lead to 
indiscriminate crossing of pedestrians and disabled persons across the busy freight route 
to Montagu Road Industrial Estate prejudicial to pedestrian safety, highway safety and 
free flow traffic.  This is contrary to Polices (II) GD11,  (II) T16, and (II) T17 of the Unitary 
Development Plan. 

Site and Surroundings 

The application site comprises an area of land on the northern side of Princes Road that is 
currently in use as a temporary car wash and a two-storey building, located on the southern side 
of Princess Road.  This road forms the sole route into and out of the Montagu Industrial Estate 
and the sites are located approximately 60 metres from the junction with Montague Road. 

Page 122



The existing building has two accesses onto Princess Road and the area of land to the north is 
accessed from the adjoining Barnes Road. 

The surrounding area is characterised by a mixture of B1, B2, B8 and waste uses, including two 
cement works and a waste transfer station.  The area is designated a Primary Industrial Area 
(PIA) within the Unitary Development Plan and Strategic Industrial Land (SIL) in the London Plan 
(2008).  The site falls within the 1 in 100 year flood zone. 

Proposal

Permission is sought for the change of use of first floor from industrial usage (B2/B8) to a function 
room (Sui Generis).

The ground floor would be retained as an industrial unit and it is currently in use as a cash and 
carry warehouse for building products.  The first floor of approximately 1200 square metres, 
would be for use as a function hall encompassing a central stage, sitting, dining and dancing 
area, children’s playroom, kitchens, brides suite, toilets, offices and staff room.  A letter 
accompanying the application suggests there will be only 120 covers, although more recently, it 
has been confirmed that the maximum capacity would be in the region of 250 guests. However, 
the indicative table layout shows 30 tables, which would presumably seat 8 – 12 guests, providing 
for a maximum capacity of some 360 guests.   

No commencement times have been specified but the use would operate until 23:00, 7 days a 
week.  It is assumed the application would need to open in the afternoon to cater for its intended 
market.

A total of 23 members of staff will be employed on site, in addition to the approximately 10 people 
employed in connection with the ground floor use. 

A site on the opposite side of Princes Road would be used to provide 30 car parking spaces. The 
Council owns this site and the applicant states a 10-year lease has been obtained. However, the 
site is currently being used as a temporary car wash, employing 3 people. 

Relevant Planning Decisions 

4 Princess Road

TP/05/1843 Change of use of first floor from Industrial to Function room (Sui Generis), refused 
in January 2006 for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed use of the first floor of the premises as a function hall would result in the 
introduction of an inappropriate activity within a designated Primary Industrial Area / Primary 
Employment Area, detrimental to the function, character and economic activity of the area. This 
would be contrary to Policies (II) GD1 and (II) E2 of the Unitary Development Plan and Policy 
(II)E2(D) of the Council's Interim Unitary Development Plan Amendments. 

2. The proposal does not make provision for car and pedal cycle parking in accordance with 
the standards adopted by the Council and could therefore give rise to kerbside parking in the 
adjacent streets to the detriment of safety and the free flow of traffic including pedestrians and 
public transport traffic on the public highway.  The proposal is therefore contrary to policies 
(II)GD6, (II)GD7, (II)T16 and (II) T19 of the Unitary Development Plan. 

Page 123



TP/05/0754 Change of use of first floor to wedding function hall incorporating alterations to 
fenestration at front; refused in June 2005 for the following reason: 

1. The proposed use of the premises as a function hall would result in the introduction of an 
inappropriate activity within a designated Primary Industrial Area / Primary Employment Area, 
detrimental to the function, character and economic activity of the area. This would be contrary to 
Policies (II) GD1 and (II) E2 of the Unitary Development Plan and Policy (II)E2(D) of the Council's 
Interim Unitary Development Plan Amendments. 

TP/05/0098 Change of use to wedding function hall incorporating internal parking at ground 
floor level; refused in April 2005 for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed use of the premises as a function hall would result in the introduction of an 
inappropriate activity within a designated Primary Industrial Area / Primary Employment Area, 
detrimental to the function, character and economic activity of the area. This would be contrary to 
Policies (II) GD1 and (II) E2 of the Unitary Development Plan and Policy (II)E2(D) of the Council's 
Interim Unitary Development Plan Amendments. 

2. The proposal does not make provision for car and pedal cycle parking in accordance with 
the standards adopted by the Council and could therefore give rise to kerbside parking in the 
adjacent streets to the detriment of safety and the free flow of traffic including pedestrians and 
public transport traffic on the public highway.  The proposal is therefore contrary to policies 
(II)GD6, (II)GD7, (II)T16 and (II) T19 of the Unitary Development Plan. 

TP/00/1889 Redevelopment of site by erection of a replacement two-storey industrial 
warehouse with ancillary offices, and mezzanine floor and associate car parking; granted subject 
to conditions in March 2001. 

Relevant planning decisions for similar uses proposed in primary industrial areas

Unit C42 & C38, HARBET ROAD 
TP/09/0135 Change of use of Unit C38 from warehouse (B8) to banquet hall (sui generis) 
together with retention of existing cafe to Unit C42, refused in March 2009 for reasons relating to 
the loss of industrial accommodation, the impact on the surrounding industrial uses and lack of 
parking.

Units 1& 2 Alexander Business Centre, Alma Road 
TP/06/0973 Change of use from existing warehouse, distribution centre and workshop to a 
function room/banqueting centre (Use Class D2) including alterations to roof, side and front 
elevation, refused in August 2006 for reasons relating to loss of industrial accommodation, 
parking, volume of traffic and impact on nearby residential properties. 

Toaken House, Pegamoid Road 
TP/04/2221 Change of use from office/warehouse use (B1) to a mixed use of counselling, 
printing and training rooms for training and community use (B1 & D1), granted in May 2005 
subject to conditions including a personal condition for the sole benefit of The Kings House Trust, 
a limited time condition until 31st May 2010 and conditions restricting the precise mixture of uses 
on the site. 

Watkins House, Pegamoid Road 
TP/03/1737 Change of use to meeting hall and warehouse and retention of existing offices 
refused in December 2003 due to loss of industrial accommodation, a subsequent appeal was 
withdrawn.

Page 124



Kelan House, 78, Pretoria Road North 
TP/02/1448 Change of use of part of building to Function Hall, refused in October 2002 for 
reasons relating to impact on the industrial estate, lack of parking and inadequate servicing and 
access. 

Consultation

Public

Consultation letters have been issued to 17 neighbouring properties. No objections have been 
received. However, letters have been received in support of the proposal and these are set out 
below:

a) DAY-MER Turkish and Kurdish Community Centre, Howard Road N16  

- states that there is a need for the Conference and Wedding Hall, due to the growing 
community and the shortage of such facilities.  They consider 4 Princes Road is an ideal 
place for Weddings and the support of the business seeking to serve the community 
requested.

b) Alevi Cultural Centre and Cemevi, Stoke Newington Road, N16 (a religious and cultural 
organisation looking after the rights of the Alevi Turkish and Kurdish Community) 

- state that in their culture prayers with music and folk singers is very important to them 
and because they and other organisations are in need of available halls, they support the 
application.  They consider this will be a good opportunity to provide for larger 
conferences and bring their cultural singers to sing special prayers.   

c) Kurdish Community Centre, Ridley Road, E8 ( a community organisation and registered charity 
serving refuges living in London, particularly those from the Kurdish region).

- They state their main aims are to empower and encourage quality of life by advancing 
education, welfare and providing facilities for recreation and leisure time.  The response 
concludes that one of the major problems in London is the absence of a Wedding and 
Conference facility in Enfield and they strongly support the provision of such a facility. 

d) Anadolu Halk Kültür Merkezi – Anatolia People Culture Centre Stoke Newington Road, N16 ( a 
community organisation serving the Turkish-speaking community since 1989)  

- state that they support people adopting to life in the UK as well as maintaining their own 
culture.  They run various activities such as folk dancing, interpreting/translation services, drama 
classes, family support, projects against drug issues, yearly picnics, musical concerts and 
celebrating other international and national holidays and their main problem is finding venues for 
these activities, as, whilst there are lots of venues in London, prices for hire are too high.  They 
request that consideration be given to the community needs when making any decision. 

External

The Environment Agency initially objected as the submitted Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) did not 
demonstrate effective arrangements for safe egress, particularly for vulnerable persons, in the 
event of a flood and the lack of flood resilience measures for the warehouse units.  After the 
submission of additional details, the Environment Agency maintained their objection as the safe 
egress led to a ‘dry island’, the exit from which would have been through other flood waters.  
However, after further negotiations, the Environment Agency withdrew their objection subject to a 
condition relating to a flood warning and evacuation plan and flood proofing measures set out by 

Page 125



the applicant, as a dry escape can be provided from the development to a dry island.  They also 
commented that the Council is the competent authority on emergency planning and evacuation, 
the applicant should contact the Council’s emergency planning team and the emergency services 
to establish whether they are happy for people to be evacuated to this dry island and comment on 
the practicability of rescue and evacuation from this location. 

Internal

The Head of Economic Development objects to the application on economic development 
grounds stating that the Montague Industrial Estate has been the subject of substantial grant 
investment to upgrade infrastructure and enhance operational conditions for the range of 
industrial firms on the estate.  Within this context, the proposal is not acceptable as the operation 
of the function hall 7 days a week, would be likely to create conditions in conflict with other 
businesses on the estate especially as the proposed car park would be inadequate to cope with 
the full capacity of the venue leading to high levels of on-street parking which would create traffic 
congestion.  This issue would be exacerbated by the lack of off-street parking or loading for the 4 
ground floor industrial units.  In addition, direct loading facilities are not provided for these 
industrial units with the unloading area shown only serving the function hall.  The entrance doors 
to all the warehouse units are also inadequate to serve normal warehouse operations.  The 
response concludes by acknowledging that the shape and size of the unit may render it difficult to 
attract a single occupier, but suggests that the unit be split to form 2 separate two-story 
warehouse units. 

Environmental Health do not object to the application subject to conditions relating to extract 
ventilation, hours of use and for deliveries and refuse. 

Relevant Policies 

London Plan (2008)

3A.17  Addressing the needs of London’s diverse population  
3B.1  Developing London’s Economy 
3B.4  Strategic Industrial Locations 
3B.11  Improving Employment Opportunities for Londoners 
3C.1  Integrating transport and development  
3C.21  Improving Conditions for Walking 
3C.22  Improving Conditions for Cycling 
3C.23  Parking Strategy 
4A.3  Sustainable Design and Construction 
4A.12  Flooding 
4A.13   Flood risk management 
4A.19   Improving air quality 
4A.20   Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes 
4B.8  Respect the context of local communities 
Annex 4 Parking standards 

Unitary Development Plan

(I)GD1  Regard to Surroundings / Integrated into Local Community 
(I)GD2  Quality of Life and Visual Amenity 
(II)GD1 New development to be appropriately located.  
(II)GD3 Character / Design 
(II)GD6 Traffic Generation 
(II)GD8 Site Access and Servicing 

Page 126



(II)GD12 Development in Areas at Risk from Flooding 
(II)GD13 Increased Risk of Flooding downstream 
(II)T13  Creation or improvement of accesses 
(II)T16  Adequate access for pedestrians and disabled persons 
(I)E4  Use of land in employment generating areas 
(II)E2  Concentrate B1-B8 uses within Primary Industrial Area. 
(II)CS1 Support through the planning process the work of various community services.  

Local Development Framework - Core Strategy Preferred Options

The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires the Council to replace the UDP with a 
Local Development Framework (LDF). The LDF Core Strategy will set out the spatial vision and 
strategic objectives for the Borough. The Core Strategy is at an early stage in its adoption 
process. As this continues the weight given to it will grow and the relevant objectives are reported 
to demonstrate the degree to which the proposals are consistent with the emerging policy 
direction.

SO1  Sustainability and Climate Change 
SO3  Protect and enhance Enfield's environmental quality; 
SO11  Safer and stronger communities 
SO17 Safeguard established communities and the quality of the local environment 
SO21  Sustainable Transport 

Other Material Considerations

PPS1  Delivering Sustainable Communities 
PPG4    Industrial, Commercial and Small Firms 
PPG13  Transport 
PPS25  Flood Risk 

Analysis 

Background

There have been three previous applications for a function hall at this site all of which have been 
refused planning permission. 

A letter accompanying this application suggests the current proposals overcome the reasons 
imposed on the first two applications (TP/05/0098 & TP05/0754), due to he retention of more 
industrial floor space.  Whilst there is a marginal increase in the industrial floor space, no mention 
is made of the third submission (TP/05/1843), which is similar to the current proposal and was 
also refused.  The main differences between this most recent refusal (TP/05/1843) and the 
current application is that the correct identification of  the site to the north ensuring it correctly 
forms part of the application site, the provision of a central entrance to the first floor function hall 
and some minor internal alterations. 

In assessing this application therefore, it must be considered whether the previous reasons for 
refusal have been addressed or whether there has been a material change in policy or 
circumstances in the interim to warrant an alternative decision being made with reference to the 
following key issues: the principle of a non industrial use in a primary industrial area, the impact of 
the proposed use on the character and function of the surrounding industrial area, the adequacy 
of parking, access and servicing arrangements as well as the issue of flood risk. 

Page 127



Principle and Character and Function of the Industrial Estate 

Within Primary Industrial Areas and Strategic Industrial Locations both the Unitary Development 
Plan and the London Plan seek to retain, preserve and enhance the industrial function of the area 
and resist the introduction of uses that do not fall within Classes B1/B2/B8.  Notwithstanding that 
the ground floor would remain in use as a B8 warehouse, the proposed change of use to a 
function hall would represent the introduction of a non conforming use and result in the loss of 
industrial floor space. 

In mitigation, the applicant has submitted letters detailing the marketing of the premises which 
states that after 9 months and 28 viewings, there were no interested parties.  However, the 
premises is of modern construction, the ground floor of the premises is currently let and there is 
no evidence that consideration has been given to the subdivision of the premises into two units as 
suggested by the Head of Economic Development.  Consequently, it is considered that the unit 
remains viable warehousing and distribution unit.   

It has also been suggested that the proposal would result in a greater retention of industrial floor 
space than was approved in March 2001 under reference TP/00/1889.  However, this proposal 
involved the rebuilding of the units to provide improved parking and servicing for the industrial 
units themselves and would not have resulted in the potentially negative impacts on the 
surrounding businesses referred to above. 

Notwithstanding the above, whilst it is acknowledged that the majority of the ground floor would 
be retained in industrial use, it is considered that the first floor function room would be likely to 
make the ground floor more difficult to let for an industrial purpose and therefore, would 
undermine the industrial use of the unit and its contribution to the Borough’s employment 
opportunities.  It is also considered the proposed external alterations would only serve to identify 
that the building was no longer in industrial use. The proposed use also has the potential to be 
noise sensitive as well as providing for large numbers of pedestrian movements within the estate, 
which could curtail the existing surrounding industrial activities. 

To this end, it is considered that the loss of part of a viable warehousing and distribution unit 
together with the imposition of potential restrictions on the remaining floor space from the 
banqueting use and the character of the wider industrial estate, would represent an inappropriate 
and incompatible addition to this primary industrial area and a significant departure from strategic 
directions relating to industrial land within the Borough.   

It should also be noted that the use of the land as a car park further erodes the supply of 
industrial land.  This land opposite appears to have historically been used as a separate unit (no. 
4).  Planning permission was granted in 1976, ref TP/76/0696 for the erection of a single storey 
shed and fencing for use as a sawmill.  The site currently has temporary permission for use as a 
car wash and no information has been put forward to suggest that it is unsuitable for development 
for industrial purposes.  In light of the Primary Industrial Area designation it is considered that the 
use of the land as a car park is not acceptable, particularly for the benefit of a non-industrial use. 

Four supporting letters have been received from community groups that identify the need for such
a facility within the area, particularly for the Turkish-speaking community.  To this end, the 
applicant cites a shortage of such facilities within the area: a view supported by the applications 
for function halls within industrial estates referred to earlier in this report.  In particular, the 
applicant refers to the planning permission at Toaken House, Pegamoid Road where it is claimed 
a mixed use has set the precedent.  However, this permission at Toaken House is on a temporary 
basis and is tied to The Kings House Trust and more recently, to an associated training company.  
The trust is a Registered Charity and whilst that proposal results in the temporary loss of part of 
an industrial unit it was considered, on balance, that the benefits to the community from the 

Page 128



proposed training, the use was acceptable for a temporary period whilst a more permanent 
location could be found 

Nevertheless, the cultural benefits to the community can be given weight in the overall 
assessment.  However, this must be balanced against the other planning matters detailed within 
this report but particularly, the retention of the industrial purpose of the premises and the wider 
estate.  Moreover, it would be difficult to justify an approval at this particular site when where 
planning permission has been refused elsewhere.  No such justification has been provided in this 
case.

Overall, notwithstanding the identified need and the cultural benefits of the proposal discussed 
above, it is considered that on balance, that the proposal would be contrary to the objectives of 
this industrial land designation and therefore, Policies (I)GD1, (I)GD2 and (II)E2 of the Unitary 
Development Plan, Policy 3B.1 and Policy 3B.4 of the London Plan and PPG4.  

Parking, Access and Servicing

The site is located on Princes Road, which, whilst not a classified road, is the primary route 
serving the Montagu Industrial Estate.  The site is located over two plots separated by Princes 
Road with the northern plot containing the car parking facility.  The parking facility is located on a 
corner section with three street frontages and provides for 30 parking spaces.   

The applicant has confirmed that approximately 250 guests, in addition to the 23 staff, would use 
the premises; although the indicative layout of 30 tables may suggest up to 360 guests.  The 
applicant suggests that in line with PPG13 the parking requirement would be a maximum of 24 
spaces for 120 guests.  Notwithstanding that guest numbers have now been confirmed to be at 
least 250, PPG13 is only applicable in areas of high accessibility. The site in question only has a 
PTAL rating of 1b which is considered low. Consequently the parking provision is not considered 
suitable even for the lowest of the estimates for the number of guests and even at this level, it 
could lead to indiscriminate parking of vehicles on surrounding roads that prejudice the 
functioning of the industrial area.  Moreover, these issues would be significantly compounded as 
guest numbers increased to 360  

The proposed use will generate a high level of pedestrian activity, both from pedestrians crossing 
Princes Road from the car park and also any users arriving via public transport. However, there 
are no pedestrian crossing facilities in the area or a network of properly defined pedestrian 
footways.  The separation of the parking facility from the main building would thus require 
pedestrians including disabled persons, to cross Princes Road and compete with turning traffic at 
the Dane Road and Barnes Roads junctions. This would be prejudicial to pedestrian safety and 
be contrary to the provisions of Policy (II)T17. Having regard to the above and the industrial 
context of the area, it is considered that a pedestrian crossing at this location would not be 
acceptable given the impact on traffic movements. 

To address this concern, the applicant has suggested that the hours of operation could be 
controlled to prevent conflict with other estate traffic and that two car valet staff could be present 
at all times the premises were open. They have also confirmed that they would be willing to enter 
into a S106 agreement to confirm this.  However, whilst both may provide some assistance, the 
estate operates on a 24/7 basis and to impose a condition limiting the use of the function hall to 
evening hours (after 6 pm) would be an unreasonable restriction on the use for which permission 
is sought.  In addition, it is considered that using car valet staff would not overcome the fact that 
vehicles would still be arriving at and parking in the vicinity of the premises. 
On balance therefore, it is not considered that the applicant’s suggestions would overcome the 
above concerns, nor could they be resolved by any other planning conditions or clauses in a legal 
agreement.

Page 129



Loading for the function hall would be towards the southern end of the building and for the ground 
floor industrial unit, towards the northern end.  This reflects existing openings in the building and it 
is considered it would not create a materially worse impact on the function of Princes Road.  
However, as noted by the Head of Economic Development, the loading doors have been reduced 
in height to such an extent that it brings into question the practicability of their use.  It is 
considered this is another matter that has the potential to limit the industrial function of the unit. 

Overall, it is considered that the inaccessibility of the site via public transport, the potential for 
unacceptable on street parking and the potential conflict between vehicles and pedestrians would 
not only serve to further undermine the primary industrial function of the entrance into the estate 
but would be hazardous to the safety and free flow of traffic and contrary to Policies (II)GD6, 
(II)GD8, (II)GD11, (II)T16 and (II)T17 of the Unitary Development Plan. 

Flood Risk

The site is located within the 1 in 100 year flood zone and the proposals will increase the number 
of people, including vulnerable individuals, in the location in the event of a flood.  After detailed 
modelling it has been determined that the dry egress would be possible in the event of an 
extreme flood.  However, this would be onto the higher ground of Stacey Avenue, which would be 
enclosed by flood waters to the west and the railway to the east creating a ‘dry island’.  The 
Environment Agency advises that, in accordance with PPS25, the Council is the competent 
authority for emergency planning and must consider, in consultation with the emergency services, 
whether appropriate measures are in place for the potential rescue of those taking refuge on the 
‘dry island’.   

The Emergency Planning Team has confirmed the Council would only assist evacuees once they 
had been brought to a place of safety.  Whereas the London Fire and Emergency Planning 
Authority have confirmed that whilst they do not have any statutory duty in respect of flooding 
rescue, they would assist where possible.
However, the applicant has demonstrated that the site is on the edge of the peak of the 1 in 1,000 
flood event.  This peak would build up over a number of hours and as such there would, provided 
an adequate flood warning and evacuation plan were in place, the premises could be safely 
evacuated long before the flood waters created the ‘dry island referred to above.  In any event, 
even if evacuation could did not take place before the peak of the flood event, there is potential 
for dry escape to the east via the railway.  Alternatively, the modelling data suggests that the 
peak would last for only a few hours.  As such, there would be potential to take refuge in the 
building itself while peak flood waters reduced. 

The Environment Agency has sought conditions to secure the implementation of a flood warning 
and evacuation plan and flood proofing measures set out by the applicant and subject to theses 
condition, on balance, no objection is raised on grounds of flood risk. 

Other Matters

It is considered that there is sufficient separation from the nearest residential dwelling such that 
the proposal would not adversely affect their amenities.

Conclusion

In the light of the above assessment, it is considered that even when considering the weight to be 
attached to the need for such a facility and the potential benefits to the community the balance of 
these matters is that they do not outweigh the significant harm that has been identified in respect 
of the impact on the loss of industrial space, the impact on the wider industrial function of the 

Page 130



estate, the lack of parking and the potential pedestrian hazards.  As a result, it is considered that 
planning permission should be refused.  

Page 131



Page 132



© Crown copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Enfield.
License No LA086363, 2003

Scale 1/1250 Date 10/6/2009

TP/09/0435

Centre = 535137 E 193861 N

Page 133



Application Number:  TP/09/0435 Ward:  Lower Edmonton       
Date of Registration:  30th March 2009 

Contact:  Jennie Rebairo 3822 

Location: 21, EXETER ROAD, LONDON, N9 0JY 

Proposal: Retention of single storey extension 

Applicant Name & Address:

Mrs D  DaCosta 
21, EXETER ROAD 
LONDON
N9 0JY 

Agent Name & Address:

Note for Members 

An application of this mature would normally be determined under delegated authority. However, 
the Applicant is a member of staff within Development Services and thus, in accordance with the 
scheme of delegation, the proposal is reported to committee for determination 

Recommendation: That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions 

1. C25 No additional Fenestration 

2. C26 Restriction of Use of Extension Roofs 

Site and Surroundings 

A two-storey end of terrace dwelling located within a residential area.  

Proposal

Permission is sought to retain a 3 metre deep single storey rear extension. The extension is 5.3 
metres wide across the full width of the dwelling with a height of 3.27 metres. 

Relevant History 

LDC/08/0441 – an application for a Lawful Development Certificate in respect of a single storey 
rear extension was granted in April 2009. Unfortunately, the extension was built larger than 
shown on the plans and now requires formal planning permission. 

Consultations

Public

Consultation letters were sent to 3 neighbouring residential properties. No replies have been 
received.

Page 134



External: None 

Internal: None 

Relevant Policy 

London Plan

4B.8  Respect local context and character 

Unitary Development Plan

(I)GD1  Development appropriate to surroundings 
(I)GD2  Quality of life and visual amenity 
(II)GD3 Character and appearance 
(II)H12  Rear extensions 

Other Material Considerations

None

Analysis 

The key issue in assessing the acceptability of this proposal is whether the extension has any 
impact on the amenities of neighbouring residential properties having regard to the criteria 
contained in Policy (II)H12. 

At 3 metres, the extension is deeper that normally considered acceptable. However, with the 
introduction of revised permitted development regulations in October of last year, an extension 
with a depth of 3 metres can often be built as permitted development. In this instance, the 
extension does not constitute permitted development due to its height which exceeds 3 metres. In 
such cases, weight is given to the individual circumstances and the effects on the residential 
amenities of neighbouring properties. 

The adjoining property, No. 23 Exeter Road, has a small 1 metre deep lean to at the rear. As a 
result, the extension projects 2 metres beyond this and having regard to its 3.27m height which is 
within normally applied parameters, it is considered that the extension does not impact on the 
amenities of this adjoining property through a loss of light or outlook. 

No 19 Exeter Road is separated from the boundary with the application site by a 3m wide access 
road serving a garage court. As a result, the presence of the extension has no impact on the 
amenities of this property. 

The appearance of the extension is appropriate and in keeping with the character of the property 
and other extensions in the surrounding area. No objection is therefore raised in terms of its effect 
on the character and appearance of the locality. 

Conclusion

In the light of the above, it is recommended that the proposed rear extension be approved for the 
following reasons:

Page 135



The rear extension due to its size, siting and design, does not have an impact on the amenities of 
the adjoining occupiers or detract from the character and appearance of the surrounding area 
having regard to Policies (I)GD1, (I)GD2, (II)GD3 and (II) H12 of the Unitary Development Plan. 

Page 136



Page 137



© Crown copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Enfield.
License No LA086363, 2003

Scale 1/1250 Date 9/6/2009

TP/09/0604

Centre = 531319 E 198369 N

Page 138



Application Number:  TP/09/0604 Ward:  Highlands       
Date of Registration:  29th April 2009 

Contact:  David Snell 3838 

Location: CHASE FARM HOSPITAL, THE RIDGEWAY, ENFIELD, MIDDLESEX, EN2 8JR 

Proposal: Reconstruction of upper floor and roof to ward areas of medium secure unit, 
construction of 2 external staircases for upper floor garden access, addition of roof terrace to 
upper floor to east, addition of roof solar panel and external alterations. 

Applicant Name & Address:

Mr R Horsley, B, E & H Mental Health Trust 
Ivy House 
The Ridgeway 
Enfield
Middx
EN2 8JL 

Agent Name & Address:

Mr Neville Penter, Devereux Architects Ltd 
Zeta House 
200, Upper Richmond Road 
London
SW15 2SH 

Recommendation: That planning permission be GRANTED, subject to the following conditions: 

1. C07 Details of Materials 

2. C51A Time Limited Permission 

Site and surroundings 

The application relates to the Medium Secure Unit Building within the Chase Farm Hospital 
Complex that was the subject of major fire damage that destroyed the first floor of the building. 
The building is located on the west boundary of site adjoining the Metropolitan Green Belt.  

Proposal

The scheme proposes the rebuilding of the upper floor and roof, the construction of two new 
external staircases, the addition of a roof terrace and the introduction of solar panels to the new 
roof. Small extensions are proposed to parts of the ground floor together with replacement 
windows. . 

Relevant planning history 

TP/94/0131 – planning permission granted for the construction of a 20 bed space medium secure 
unit.

Page 139



Consultation

Public

Given that the application involved rebuilding an existing building and its location in relation to 
residential properties no property specific consultation was carried out. The application was 
advertised. No responses were received. 

Internal

None.

External

None.

Policy 

The London Plan

3D.9  Green Belt 
3A.18  Social infrastructure and community facilities 
4A.3  Sustainable design and construction 
4B.2  Design 
4B.12  Conservation 

Unitary Development Plan

(I) GD1 Appropriate regard to surroundings 
(II)GD1 Appropriate location 
(II)GD3 Design 
(II)G1  Green Belt 
(II)CS1  Community facities 

Local Development Framework

The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires the Council to replace the Unitary 
Development Plan with a Local Development Framework. At the heart of this portfolio of related 
documents will be the Core Strategy which will set out the long-term spatial vision and strategic 
objectives for the Borough. 

In response to consultation in respect of Issues and Options which identified key areas, the 
Council is now consulting on the Preferred Options for the Core Strategy. As a policy document, 
the Core Strategy is at an early stage in its process to adoption and thus, presently, can only be 
afforded limited weight as a material consideration. As the process continues the weight to be 
attributed to the Core Strategy will increase and the relevant policies are reported to demonstrate 
the degree to which development proposals are consistent with the emerging policy direction for 
the Borough. 

Core policy 2  Sustainable design and construction and energy 
Core policy 14  Safer and stronger communities 
Core policy 15  Supporting people 
Core policy 19  Green Belt and the countryside 

Page 140



National policy

PPG2  Green Belts 
PPG15  Planning and the historic environment 

Analysis 

The building would be reconstructed largely as it existed prior to fire damage but with minor 
extensions, improvements to window design, improved amenity space facilities, solar panels and 
an improved external staircase design. 

There have been no material changes in circumstances since planning permission was granted 
for the construction of the building in 1994. The development is therefore considered to be 
acceptable. 

Conclusion

The application is recommended for approval for the following reason: 

1. There have been no material changes in circumstances since the grant of planning 
permission to construct the original building having regard to Unitary Development Plan and 
London Plan policies. 

Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



© Crown copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Enfield.
License No LA086363, 2003

Scale 1/2500 Date 10/6/2009

TP/09/0664

Centre = 536003 E 195860 N

Page 144



Application Number:  TP/09/0664 Ward:  Ponders End       
Date of Registration:  8th May 2009 

Contact:  David Snell 3838 

Location: ALMA PRIMARY SCHOOL, ALMA ROAD, ENFIELD, MIDDLESEX, EN3 4UQ 

Proposal: Installation of temporary classroom with access ramps to south east of site. 

Applicant Name & Address:

Mrs Janice  Feavearyear 
ALMA PRIMARY SCHOOL 
ALMA ROAD 
ENFIELD
MIDDLESEX 
EN3 4UQ 

Agent Name & Address:

Mr Anil  Rana 
London Borough Of Enfield 
Architectural Services 
Po Box 50 
Civic Centre 
Enfield
EN1 3XB 

Recommendation: That in accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning 
(General) Regulation 1992, planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED subject to the 
following condition: 

1. C51A Time Limited Permission 

Site and surroundings 

Primary school campus fronting Alma Road and Curzon Avenue. 

Proposal:

Erection of single temporary classroom with access ramps in the south east corner of the site. 

Relevant planning history 

None

Consultation

Public

11 surrounding properties were consulted. No replies have been received. 

Page 145



Policy 

The London Plan

3A.24  Education facilities 

Unitary Development Plan

(I) GD1  Appropriate regard to surroundings 
 (II)GD1  Appropriate location 
(II)GD3  Design 
(II)G6  Traffic generation 
(II)CS1  Community services 

Local Development Framework

The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires the Council to replace the Unitary 
Development Plan with a Local Development Framework. At the heart of this portfolio of related 
documents will be the Core Strategy which will set out the long-term spatial vision and strategic 
objectives for the Borough. 

In response to consultation in respect of Issues and Options which identified key areas, the 
Council is now consulting on the Preferred Options for the Core Strategy. As a policy document, 
the Core Strategy is at an early stage in its process to adoption and thus, presently, can only be 
afforded limited weight as a material consideration. As the process continues the weight to be 
attributed to the Core Strategy will increase and the relevant policies are reported to demonstrate 
the degree to which development proposals are consistent with the emerging policy direction for 
the Borough. 

Core policy 16  Children and young people 

Analysis 

The building would be sited close to the boundary of the school adjoining the front/side garden of 
No.80 Curzon Avenue, a residential dwelling. Within the boundary of this dwelling adjoining the 
new classroom is a large domestic shed building and on the boundary is a concrete fence that 
would partially screen the proposed development. 

The proposal has been amended to provide of screening to the access ramp to prevent 
overlooking and disturbance to the occupiers of No.80 the proposed siting of the classroom is 
considered to be acceptable. 

It is recommended that planning permission be granted for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed development improves school facilities in accordance with Policy (II)CS1 of 
the Unitary Development Plan and Policy 3A.24 of the London Plan. 

2. The proposed development has appropriate regard to its surroundings and does detract 
from the amenities of surrounding residential occupiers having regard to Policies (I)GD1 of 
the Unitary Development Plan. 

Page 146



Page 147



Page 148

This page is intentionally left blank



TOWN PLANNING APPEALS 

 

 

 

 

Appeal Information for Period: 07/05/2009 to 09/06/2009 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Section 1: New Town Planning Application Appeals 

 

 

 

             Section 2: Decisions on Town Planning Application Appeals 

 

Page 149



Page 150

This page is intentionally left blank



SECTION 1 
NEW TOWN PLANNING APPLICATION APPEALS 

 1 

Application No.: AD/09/0002 Ward:Edmonton Green 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Received date: 04-Jun-2009 

Location: Land between 17 Park road and, Railway Lines, Edmonton, London, N18 

Proposal: Installation of 1 non illuminated sign to side of building and 1 non illuminated sign 
to fence at rear. 

 

 

 

Application No.: LDC/09/0036 Ward:Southgate 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Received date: 08-May-2009 

Location: 31, CHELMSFORD ROAD, LONDON, N14 5PS 

Proposal: Single storey rear extension and rear dormer. 

 

 

 

Application No.: TP/08/0555 Ward:Chase 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Received date: 18-May-2009 

Location: GUY LODGE FARM, WHITEWEBBS LANE, ENFIELD, EN2 9HJ 

Proposal: Formation of new access road from Whitewebbs Lane to Whitewebbs Farm 
incorporating fencing and planting.  (RETROSPECTIVE) 

 

 

 

Application No.: TP/08/1773 Ward:Palmers Green 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Received date: 15-May-2009 

Location: 9, BROOMFIELD AVENUE, LONDON, N13 4JJ 

Proposal: Conversion of premises into 5 self-contained flats (comprising 1 x studio, 3 x 1-
bed and 1x2-bed) to provide supported accommodation for people with special 
needs(RETROSPECTIVE). 

 

 

Page 151



 

 2 

 

Application No.: TP/08/1854 Ward:Palmers Green 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Received date: 05-Jun-2009 

Location: 196, HEDGE LANE, LONDON, N13 5DA 

Proposal: Vehicular access. 

 

 

 

Application No.: TP/08/1861 Ward:Highlands 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Received date: 13-May-2009 

Location: 28, CURTHWAITE GARDENS, ENFIELD, EN2 7LN 

Proposal: Porch at side involving new side doorway. 

 

 

 

Application No.: TP/08/1950 Ward:Ponders End 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Received date: 08-Jun-2009 

Location: 15, WHARF ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 4TD 

Proposal: Demolition of existing units and erection of a new workshop and hardstanding 
involving a change of use to Sui Generis for commercial vehicle hire and ancillary office 
accommodation. 

 

 

 

Application No.: TP/09/0024 Ward:Edmonton Green 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Received date: 04-Jun-2009 

Location: Land between 17 Park Road and, Railway Line, Edmonton, London, N18 

Proposal: Change of use to display and sales of motor vehicles together with a temporary 
wooden building to provide an office (RETROSPECTIVE). 

 

 

Page 152



 

 3 

 

Application No.: TP/09/0111 Ward:Ponders End 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Received date: 07-May-2009 

Location: 2, NAGS HEAD ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 7AJ 

Proposal: Erection of a 2-storey 2-bed end of terrace single family dwelling. 

 

 

 

Application No.: TP/09/0116 Ward:Southgate 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Received date: 26-May-2009 

Location: 234, CHASE ROAD, LONDON, N14 6HH 

Proposal: Conversion of single family dwelling into 3 self contained flats (comprising 1x3-
bed, 1x2-bed and 1x1-bed) involving the erection of a two storey side extension, part two, 
part single storey rear extension, conversion of garage into a habitable room, rear dormer, 
parking to front and new access to Chase Road. 

 

 

 

Application No.: TP/09/0135 Ward:Upper Edmonton 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Received date: 21-May-2009 

Location: Unit C42 & C38, HARBET ROAD, LONDON, N18 3HU 

Proposal: Change of use of Unit C38 from warehouse (B8) to banquet hall (sui generis) 
together with retention of existing cafe to Unit C42. 

 

 

 

Application No.: TP/09/0193 Ward:Enfield Highway 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Received date: 18-May-2009 

Location: 56, OSBORNE ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 7RW 

Proposal: Use of premises as 5 self contained flats (comprising 3 x 1-bed and 2 x 2-bed). 

 

Page 153



 

 4 

 

 

Application No.: TP/09/0210 Ward:Palmers Green 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Received date: 02-Jun-2009 

Location: 37, FARNDALE AVENUE, LONDON, N13 5AJ 

Proposal: First floor side and rear extension and rear dormer. 

 

 

 

Application No.: TP/09/0239 Ward:Turkey Street 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Received date: 11-May-2009 

Location: 3, THE GREENWAY, ENFIELD, EN3 6TT 

Proposal: Single storey rear extension. 

 

 

 

Application No.: TP/09/0256 Ward:Ponders End 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Received date: 13-May-2009 

Location: 13, QUEENSWAY, ENFIELD, EN3 4SA 

Proposal: Change of use of part ground floor to provide retail in connection with existing 
use (RETROSPECTIVE). 

 

 

 

Application No.: TP/09/0293 Ward:Ponders End 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Received date: 05-Jun-2009 

Location: 373, LINCOLN ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 4AG 

Proposal: Alterations to external staircase at rear with walkway and handrail. 

 

 

 

Page 154



 

 5 

Application No.: TP/09/0336 Ward:Highlands 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Received date: 05-Jun-2009 

Location: 6, FARORNA WALK, ENFIELD, EN2 8JG 

Proposal: Redevelopment of site to provide 3 detached 2-storey single family dwelling 
houses (comprising 2 x 6-bed and 1 x 4-bed) with double garages. 

 

 

 

 

Page 155



Page 156

This page is intentionally left blank



SECTION 2 
DECISIONS ON TOWN PLANNING APPLICATION APPEALS 

 1 

Application No.: AD/08/0026 Ward:Southgate Green 

(Delegated - 24-Nov-2008 - REFUSED) 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Decision: Appeal allowed subject to 
condition(s) 

Decision Date: 18-May-2009 

Location: 26, CANNON HILL, LONDON, N14 6LG 

Proposal: Installation of externally illuminated fascia sign and non illuminated projecting 
sign(Retrospective). 

 

 

Application No.: LDC/07/0501 Ward:Grange 

(Delegated - 10-Mar-2008 - REFUSED) 

Appeal Type: Inquiry 

Appeal Decision: Appeal Allowed Decision Date: 08-May-2009 

Location: 29, VILLAGE ROAD, ENFIELD, EN1 2ER 

Proposal: Use of the outbuilding as a gym. 

 

 

Application No.: LDC/08/0462 Ward:Edmonton Green 

(Delegated - 24-Nov-2008 - REFUSED) 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Decision: Appeal withdrawn Decision Date: 05-Jun-2009 

Location: 37, CRAIG PARK ROAD, LONDON, N18 2HG 

Proposal: Single storey rear extension. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 157



Application No.: TP/07/2497 Ward:Southbury 

(Delegated - 30-Apr-2008 - REFUSED) 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed Decision Date: 29-May-2009 

Location: 81, SOUTHBURY ROAD, ENFIELD, EN1 1PJ 

Proposal: Change of use from a single family dwelling to a centre for adult education 
courses, between the hours of 8:00-18:00 mon-sat and sunday 9:00-13:00. 

 

 

Application No.: TP/08/0217 Ward:Enfield Highway 

(Delegated - 10-Jun-2008 - REFUSED) 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Decision: Appeal allowed subject to 
condition(s) 

Decision Date: 03-Jun-2009 

Location: 55, CARTERHATCH ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 5LT 

Proposal: Conversion of dwelling into two self- contained dwellings, (comprising 1x5-bed 
and 1x2-bed) and new front porch extension (PART RETROSPECTIVE). 

 

 

Application No.: TP/08/0264 Ward:Winchmore Hill 

(Delegated - 16-Jun-2008 - REFUSED) 

Appeal Type: Hearing 

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed Decision Date: 15-May-2009 

Location: 9, OAKLANDS, LONDON, N21 3DE 

Proposal: Single storey rear extension and rear patio (RETROSPECTIVE) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 158



Application No.: TP/08/0280 Ward:Enfield Lock 

(Delegated - 17-Mar-2008 - REFUSED) 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed Decision Date: 08-May-2009 

Location: 88, BEACONSFIELD ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 6AP 

Proposal: Conversion of a single family dwelling into 6 studio flats (RETROSPECTIVE). 

 

 

Application No.: TP/08/0554 Ward:Enfield Lock 

(Delegated - 22-May-2008 - REFUSED) 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed Decision Date: 12-May-2009 

Location: 17, FOREST ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 6ST 

Proposal: Conversion of single family dwelling into 4 flats (comprising 1 x 3-bed and 3 x 2-
bed) involving a 2-storey side extension, 4 off street parking spaces at front and new 
access from Forest Road. 

 

 

Application No.: TP/08/0578 Ward:Winchmore Hill 

(Delegated - 15-Jul-2008 - GRANTED WITH CONDITIONS) 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Decision: Appeal allowed subject to 
condition(s) 

Decision Date: 22-May-2009 

Location: 551, GREEN LANES, LONDON, N13 4DR 

Proposal: Variation of application TP/06/0361 to allow an increase in ground floor 
floorspace  to be used in connection with private clinic use, and the erection of a single 
storey side extension to be used in connection with the private clinic use, (the first floor and 
roof space are to be retained for residential use). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 159



Application No.: TP/08/0588 Ward:Town 

(Delegated - 22-May-2008 - REFUSED) 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Decision: Appeal Allowed Decision Date: 14-May-2009 

Location: 173, WILLOW ROAD, ENFIELD, EN1 3BS 

Proposal: Demolition of detached shed at rear and erection of a detached building at rear 
(RETROSPECTIVE). 

 

 

Application No.: TP/08/0634 Ward:Palmers Green 

(Delegated - 15-May-2008 - REFUSED) 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed Decision Date: 04-Jun-2009 

Location: 95, NEW RIVER CRESCENT, LONDON, N13 5RL 

Proposal: Conversion of single family dwelling into 2 x 1-bed self contained flats. 

 

 

Application No.: TP/08/0645 Ward:Cockfosters 

(Delegated - 15-May-2008 - REFUSED) 

Appeal Type: Hearing 

Appeal Decision: Appeal allowed subject to 
condition(s) 

Decision Date: 12-May-2009 

Location: 37, LANCASTER AVENUE, BARNET, EN4 0ER 

Proposal: Construction of basement incorporating swimming pool, gym, games room & 
study including extension to previously approved terrace.  (Revised scheme) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 160



Application No.: TP/08/0784 Ward:Haselbury 

(Delegated - 10-Jun-2008 - REFUSED) 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed Decision Date: 04-Jun-2009 

Location: 46, KENDAL AVENUE, LONDON, N18 1NG 

Proposal: Conversion of single family dwelling into 2 x 1-bed self contained flats 
(RETROSPECTIVE). 

 

 

Application No.: TP/08/0878 Ward:Cockfosters 

(Delegated - 20-Jun-2008 - REFUSED) 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Decision: Appeal allowed subject to 
condition(s) 

Decision Date: 08-May-2009 

Location: 22, CHASE ROAD, LONDON, N14 4EU 

Proposal: Alterations to existing vehicular access to chase side and construction of new 
vehicular access to Lakenheath. 

 

 

Application No.: TP/08/0939 Ward:Highlands 

(Delegated - 07-Jul-2008 - REFUSED) 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed Decision Date: 29-May-2009 

Location: 10, LOWTHER DRIVE, ENFIELD, EN2 7JL 

Proposal: Erection of single storey rear extension, raising roof height at the side and a rear 
dormer window. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 161



Application No.: TP/08/0983 Ward:Winchmore Hill 

(Delegated - 22-Jul-2008 - REFUSED) 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed Decision Date: 20-May-2009 

Location: 9, BOURNE HILL, LONDON, N13 4LJ 

Proposal: Conversion of single family dwelling into 5 flats (comprising 1 x 1-bed and 4 x 
studio) with 3 off street parking spaces at front. 

 

 

Application No.: TP/08/1050 Ward:Chase 

(Delegated - 22-Aug-2008 - REFUSED) 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed Decision Date: 26-May-2009 

Location: 12, LAVENDER GARDENS, ENFIELD, EN2 0TP 

Proposal: Front canopy 

 

 

Application No.: TP/08/1090 Ward:Cockfosters 

(Delegated - 24-Jul-2008 - REFUSED) 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Decision: Appeal allowed subject to 
condition(s) 

Decision Date: 15-May-2009 

Location: 19, HEDDON COURT AVENUE, BARNET, EN4 9NE 

Proposal: Erection of a 2-storey side, part single part 2- storey rear extension, rear dormer 
and front porch involving demolition of garage. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 162



Application No.: TP/08/1119 Ward:Enfield Lock 

(Delegated - 07-Aug-2008 - REFUSED) 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Decision: Appeal allowed subject to 
condition(s) 

Decision Date: 12-May-2009 

Location: 17, FOREST ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 6ST 

Proposal: Conversion of single family dwelling into 4 self-contained flats (2 x 3-bed, 2 x 2-
bed) involving erection of a 2-storey side extension with rear dormer and alteration existing 
rear extension, new access to Forest Road and associated car parking. 

 

 

Application No.: TP/08/1136 Ward:Bowes 

(Delegated - 29-Jul-2008 - REFUSED) 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed Decision Date: 14-May-2009 

Location: 21, GREEN LANES, LONDON, N13 4TT 

Proposal: Change of use of part ground floor and division of 1 unit into 2 to provide a 
restaurant to the front and retail unit to the rear involving alterations to the shop front at 
side and installation of an extractor flue at rear. 

 

 

Application No.: TP/08/1315 Ward:Turkey Street 

(Delegated - 27-Aug-2008 - REFUSED) 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed Decision Date: 11-May-2009 

Location: 624, HERTFORD ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 5TD 

Proposal: Change of use of rear ground floor from storage to a studio flat 
(RETROSPECTIVE). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 163



Application No.: TP/08/1627 Ward:Edmonton Green 

(Delegated - 13-Oct-2008 - REFUSED) 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed Decision Date: 26-May-2009 

Location: 10, DUNHOLME GREEN, LONDON, N9 9LS 

Proposal: First floor rear extension (RETROSPECTIVE). 

 

 

Application No.: TP/08/1647 Ward:Bush Hill Park 

(Delegated - 16-Oct-2008 - REFUSED) 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Decision: Appeal allowed subject to 
condition(s) 

Decision Date: 21-May-2009 

Location: FLAT 1-12, WOODLEA LODGE, 72, WELLINGTON ROAD, ENFIELD, EN1 2NW 

Proposal: Installation of replacement windows to all elevations. 

 

 

Application No.: TP/08/2016 Ward:Jubilee 

(Delegated - 17-Dec-2008 - REFUSED) 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Decision: Appeal allowed subject to 
condition(s) 

Decision Date: 19-May-2009 

Location: 203, BURY STREET, LONDON, N9 9JG 

Proposal: First floor side extension. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 164



Application No.: TP/08/2058 Ward:Winchmore Hill 

(Delegated - 09-Jan-2009 - REFUSED) 

Appeal Type: Written Representation 

Appeal Decision: Appeal Dismissed Decision Date: 22-May-2009 

Location: Site, Public footpath Hoppers Road, Adjacent To Land At Rear Of, 136-138, 
Woodland Way, Southgate, London, N21 

Proposal: Installation of a telecommunication mock telephone pole to a maximum height of 
8 metres incorporating 1 antennae with equipment cabinet at base. 

 

 

Application No.: TP/94/0123/VAR2 Ward:Chase 

(Planning Committee - 23-Oct-2008 - REFUSED) 

Appeal Type: Inquiry 

Appeal Decision: Appeal allowed subject to 
condition(s) 

Decision Date: 08-May-2009 

Location: ST JOHN SENIOR SCHOOL,ST NICHOLAS HOUSE, THE RIDGEWAY, 
ENFIELD, EN2 8AQ 

Proposal: The continued use of St John's Senior School as a school without complying with 
condition 6 of planning permission ref: TP/94/0123,  and the provision of a new vehicular 
access. 

 

 

 

 

Page 165



Page 166

This page is intentionally left blank



MUNICIPAL YEAR 2009/2010 REPORT NO. 25 
 

 
CONSERVATION ADVISORY  
GROUP  
2 June 2009 
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 
24 June 2009 
 
REPORT OF: 
Director of Place Shaping and 
Enterprise 
 

Contact officer and telephone number: 

Christine White  
Tel : 020-8379-3852 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject:  
ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE 

CONSERVATION ADVISORY GROUP 

2008/09 
  

Agenda – Part: 1

Wards: All  
 

 

 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 

1.1  This report is for Members information and is an annual review summarising 
the contribution made by the Conservation Advisory Group (CAG) over the 
municipal year 2008/09 to managing change in the built environment. 

 
 

 

 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 That the report be noted, for information. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6Page 167



3. BACKGROUND 
 

3.1  The Council’s Conservation Advisory Group (CAG) for 2008/09  comprised seven Members 
of the Council and eleven co-opted representatives of a number of local heritage study groups.  
The Group’s remit is to consider and advise the Council (particularly the Planning Committee and 
Cabinet Members for Place Shaping and Enterprise and the Environment and Street Scene) on 
the preservation and enhancement of heritage buildings, features and areas and to promote a 
greater awareness of architectural design quality. 

 
3.2  The table attached as Appendix A summarises the issues CAG has given advice on during 
the Municipal year 2008/09 and demonstrates how CAG has contributed to facilitating and driving 
forward built heritage and other environmental and design initiatives this year.  

 
3.3  The statistics show that CAG has considered in detail and tendered advice on 50 applications 
during the last municipal year.  The applications are selected by the conservation officer, 
development control team leaders and the CAG Chairman and comprise cases that constitute 
significant development and / or have a major impact on the conservation area.  CAG contribute 
to the quality of decisions taken on the most environmentally sensitive sites by bringing to bear 
members knowledge of local history, design and construction.  Of the cases considered, CAG 
supported approximately 48% of the applications either as presented, or with specified 
modifications and objected to 44%.  (The remaining 8% being deferred applications).   
 
3.4  This compares favourably to 35% supported and 65% objected to in 2007/8.  A number of 
factors contribute to this e.g. improved quality of applications submitted as a result of increasing 
take up in the use of guidance now available such as the character appraisals, improved 
submissions resulting from early consultation under the pre application advice system, and more 
stringent registration requirements such as design and access and conservation statements and 
not least CAG’s positive and proactive approach to development proposals. CAG have also made 
a major contribution to ensuring that important development details such as materials selection 
are of sufficient quality, (for example the Enfield Town Library extension and the Enfield 
Evangelical Free Church, Cecil Road). 

 
3.5  The Group has also monitored the decisions taken on 480 applications in the last year.  Most 
of these applications were considered in detail and commented on by the relevant individual local 
study groups represented on CAG.   
 
3.6  By focussing it’s input into the most significant conservation area and listed building 
applications and reaping the benefits of the guidance now in place in the conservation area 
character appraisals and management proposals and other guidance, CAG has again created 
agenda time to continue their input into guiding other projects, strategy and policy initiatives and 
monitoring across the borough during 2008/09.   
 
3.7  For example, the Group has again this year made a number of strong contributions to the 
evolution of proposals affecting the public realm and street scene in conservation areas and the 
whole borough.  This includes input into major design and heritage initiatives such as the PFI 
street lighting renewal scheme.  This is a significant initiative, which will affect the character and 
appearance of the conservation areas and the whole borough for many years to come.  Other 
examples include the contribution to the evolution of major corporate projects; such as the 
restoration and re use of the Grade II listed Queen Elizabeth Stadium, Donkey Lane.  The Group 
have also continued a strong interest in the importance of trees and have taken an active role in  
tree proposals for the HLF funded restoration of the kitchen garden at Myddelton House, Bulls 
Cross and the landscaping and tree works at Library Green.   

 
3.8  This focussing of activity has also enabled CAG to continue their full engagement with the 
Local Development Framework (LDF) process which will form the spatial planning framework for 
the borough for the next ten years and the importance of which cannot be underestimated.  CAG 
has engaged with the LDF process through contributions to the Preferred Options Action Area 
Plan for the North Circular Road and North East Enfield.  They have also contributed to the 
evolution of a Heritage Strategy for the Borough, which underpins the prioritisation and delivery of 
major heritage regeneration programmes such as the multi million pound HLF scheme for Forty 
Hall.  

 
 

Page 168



3.9  The CAG are now receiving regular feedback on decisions taken on conservation area and 
listed building cases determined by the Planning Committee via the CAG Chairman’s Feedback 
item.  The Group have continued to monitor appeal decision in conservation / listed buildings.  
The CAG continue to monitor the management of conservation areas and have during 2008/09 
strived to forge closer links with the Enviro Crime Unit and monitor the outcome of investigations 
into breaches of planning control in conservation areas and listed buildings.  The CAG has been 
particularly proactive in 2008/09 in the area of monitoring change and protecting the boroughs 
heritage through pro-active planning enforcement projects.   
 
3.10  The Group have embraced the Council’s initiative for proactive enforcement in conservation 
areas and engaged with area enforcement officer to identify enforcement needs and priorities in 
each conservation area.  The Conservation Area Management Proposals identified (as a 
management action) working with the CAG to investigate new ways of monitoring and recording 
conservation areas within available resources.  To this end CAG have commenced the 
Conservation Area Photographic Benchmarking Project, which involves making a photographic 
record of each of the conservation areas to establish clear dated evidence against which change 
(including unauthorised works can be assessed).  
 
3.11  In addition, CAG has maintained a strong input into the Conservation Area Review, 
contributing to the monitoring of the implementation of the actions of the Conservation Area 
Management Proposals.  The Group have played a strong role in the CAR Phase II, which 
culminated in the designation of four new conservation areas.  The CAG has been proactive in 
supporting existing conservation area study groups and facilitating the establishment of new study 
groups to manage the new conservation areas.  This has included the Chairman addressing a 
public meeting on setting up and running study groups and facilitating workshop sessions and 
enabling the associated re structuring of CAG’s membership, through the Constitution Review 
Group..    

 
3.12 CAG has continued to monitor new listings and to contribute to Buildings at Risk work, 
particularly monitoring and promoting a solution to Truro House, Palmers Green and the listed 
statuary at Trent Park Mansion. 

 
3.13  Figures for issues raised by CAG Members in Open Session remain robust, as in previous 
years.  These include a wide and diverse range of matters including enquiries related to the 
monitoring of change at major heritage sites and reporting potential contraventions of planning 
legislation for investigation by the Enviro Crime Unit.   

   
 

4.  CAG WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2009/10 
 
4.1  The CAG work programme for 2009/10 will undoubtedly remain extensive.  The main areas 
of focus for CAG over the forthcoming year are likely to include :- 

• Monitoring and reviewing the organisation and operation of the CAG to balance and 
focus finite time and resources and maximise the delivery of added value to key aspects 
of the historic environment of the borough.  

•  Consideration of Stage III of the Conservation Area Review, which is intended to bring 
the borough’s designations of heritage areas more up to date by delivering up to date 
boundaries for the boroughs conservation areas in the form of extensions and deletions. 

• Monitoring and facilitating the implementation of the Conservation Area Management 
Plan for each of the conservation areas.  

• Supporting the review / delivery of the Enfield Design Awards programme. 

• Delivering the conservation area benchmarking project 

• Promote and facilitate the establishment of conservation area study groups for 
unrepresented conservation areas. 

 
5.  PUTTING ENFIELD FIRST 
 
5.1  The work of CAG is consistent with the Enfield First objectives, particularly Aim 5, ‘Supporting 
the delivery of excellent services’ and 5e) to ‘provide effective community leadership and increase 
public participation in the Council’s decision making processes and local initiatives.  The proposal 
is also consistent with Aim 1 of this initiative ‘A Cleaner and Greener Enfield’ and 1f) to ‘protect 
and enhance the character and quality of Enfield’s buildings and access to green spaces (Local 
Development Framework).  

Page 169



 
 
Background Papers 
File PL52 

Page 170



 
APPENDIX A 
 

NUMBER OF REPORTS CONSIDERED BY CAG 
MUNICIPAL YEAR 2008/09 

 
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 

 

 
NATURE OF 

REPORT 
2008/09 

 
2007/08 2006/07 

 
2005/06 2004/05 2003/04 2002/03 2001/02 

Applications 
discussed 

50 49 101 142 137 142 162 114 

Decisions Monitored / 
Noted 

480 667 664 670 611 622 415 343 

Pre Application 
schemes considered 

5 - - - - - - - 

Appeal decisions 
Monitored / Noted 

6 9 - - - - - - 

Envirocrime Unit 
Updates 

6 3 - - - - - - 

Chairman’s 
Feedback from 
Planning Committee 

10 8 - - - - - - 

 
 
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL DECISIONS ANALYSIS 2008/09 
 

Year Total 
applications 
discussed 

Applications supported, or 
supported subject to identified 
improvements  

Applications deferred Applications objected to. 

2008/09 50 24 4 22 

2007/08 49 17 0 32 

2006/07 101 43  8  50  

 
 
CONSERVATION AREA REVIEW 
 

NATURE OF REPORT 2008 
/09 

2007 
/08 

 

2006 
/07 

2005 
/06 

2004 
/05 

2003 
/04 

2002 
/03 

2001 
/02 

Conservation Area Review and 
Management Proposals. 

3 1 4 7 10 0 5 1 

 
 
DESIGN INITIATIVES 
 

NATURE OF REPORT 2008 
/09 

 

2007 
/08 

 

2006 
/07 

2005 
/06 

2004 
/05 

2003 
/04 

2002 
/03 

2001 
/02 

Enfield Design Awards 1 7 1 8 1 12 1 2 

Design Guidance  0 0 1 - - - - - 

London Open House 1 1 1 1 0 1 1 0 

 

Page 171



 
STREETSCENE ISSUES 
 

NATURE OF REPORT 2008 
/09 

2007 
/08 

2006 
/07 

2005 
/06 

2004 
/05 

2003 
/04 

2002 
/03 

2001 
/02 

Highway and streetscene schemes 
(PFI Street lighting scheme The 
Green N21 & N14, Fore Street Litter 
bin replacement, Street tree works 
adj Library Green, public bench 
design).  

7 14 7 7 5 3 5 4 

 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS  
 

NATURE OF REPORT 2008 
/09 

 

2007 
/08 

 2006 
   /07 

2005 
/06 

2004 
/05 

2003 
/04 

2002 
/03 

2001 
/02 

Enfield Heritage Fund schemes 0 0 1 - - - - - 

Other schemes  
(St Andrews Churchyard 
resurfacing),  

1 8 3 3 10 8 12 9 

Edmonton PSICA Scheme 
(Partnership Schemes in 
Conservation Areas) 

0 0 0 1 2 1 2 1 

 
 
NATIONAL AND LOCAL POLICY ISSUES 
 

NATURE OF REPORT 2008 
/09 

 

2007 
/08 

2006 
/07 

2005 
/06 

2004 
/05 

2003 
/04 

2002 
/03 

2001 
/02 

New and Draft Guidance, 
legislation and policy.  

0 0 2 1 3 4 5 1 

Local Development Framework 
(North Circular & North East 
Enfield Action Area Plans 
Preferred Options, Heritage 
Strategy)  

3 8 3 2     

Forty Hall Conservation 
Management Plan 

0 0 1 - - - - - 

 
 
NEW LISTINGS 
 

NATURE OF REPORT 2008/09 2007/08 2006/07 2005/06 2004/05 2003/04 2002/03 2001/02 

Additions and amendments 
to the statutory list and 
decisions on submissions 
to English Heritage  

(rejection, Gwalior 
House) 

1 4 5 3 3 3 6 4 

 

Page 172



 
BUILDINGS AT RISK 
 

NATURE OF REPORT 2008 
/09 

2007 
/08 

2006 
      /07 

2005 
/06 

2004 
/05 

2003 
/04 

2002 
/03 

2001 
/02 

Buildings at Risk (English 
Heritage Register Update) 

1 3 1 1 1 2 3 2 

Queen Elizabeth Stadium 1 - - - - - - - 

 
 
ISSUES RAISED BY MEMBERS IN OPEN SESSION 
 

NATURE OF REPORT 2008/09 2007 
/08 

2006 
    /07 

2005 
/06 

2004 
/05 

2003 
/04 

2002 
/03 

2001 
/02 

Issues raised by Members in 
Open Session 

71 110 111 115 89 81 88 50 

 
 
ORGANISATIONAL ISSUES 
 
NATURE OF REPORT 2008 

/09 
2007 
/08 

2006 
    /07 

2005 
/06 

2004 
/05 

2003 
/04 

2002 
/03 

2001 
/02 

CAG organisational issues 
(Annual Report 07/08, 
Elections, new Council 
organisational structure, 
amendment to CAG constitution 
for new study groups) 

5 12 2 3 2 5 4 2 

 
1.5.09  

 

 

 

Page 173



Page 174

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
	4 MINUTES
	5 REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
	Agenda list 24 JUN 09
	AGENDA REPORTS 24 JUN 09 - 1
	AGENDA24JUN09- 2
	AGENDA24JUN09- 3
	AGENDA24JUN09- 4
	Appeal report header 24 Jun 09
	appeals received 24 Jun 09
	appeals decided 24 Jun 09

	6 ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE CONSERVATION ADVISORY GROUP

